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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ERWE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Kafelaku Coffee Holding Limited (the
“Company,” together with its subsidiaries, collectively known
as the “Group”), | hereby present to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) the audited consolidated
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024
(the “Year” or the “Reporting Period”), together with the
comparative figures for the corresponding period in 2023 (the
“Previous Year”) as set out below for their consideration.

Business Review

The Group is primarily engaged in providing food and
beverage services in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC” or “China”). During the Year, we were
facing the weakened economies in China which affected
the catering industry. The Group’s total revenue for the
Year amounted to approximately HK$139.6 million (2023:
approximately HK$178.5 million), representing a year-on-
year decrease of approximately 21.8%. Loss attributable
to the owners of the Company for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$48.7 million (2023: profit of approximately
HK$8.0 million).

This shift from profit to loss was mainly attributable to:
(1) the decline of the Group’s revenue of approximately
HK$38.9 million as compared to the Previous Year due to
the weakened economy in China: (2) the one-off gain on
deconsolidation of a subsidiary of approximately HK$17.8
million in the Previous Year; and (3) the share-based
compensation expense of HK$15.0 million during the Year
(20283: Nil). For a detailed financial review, please refer to the
section “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual
report.

In December 2024, our first franchised coffee shop under the
brand name “Kafelaku Coffee (58 B M BE)” (the “Kafelaku
Coffee”) was proudly opened in Wenzhou City, Zhejiang
Province, the PRC. This shop features a curated menu that
highlights single-origin coffees and seasonal specials, expertly
crafted by skilled baristas, along with a diverse selection of
cakes. We anticipate further expansion of the franchising
business and directly operated shops with additional shops
opening in 2025.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continued)
FERE (@)

As of 31 December 2024, the Group operated one full-
serviced Chinese restaurant in Hong Kong under the brand
name “Li Bao House (F|Z & £§)” (the “Central Restaurant”),
focusing on classic and refined Cantonese cuisine. In the
PRC, we had three full-serviced Chinese restaurants in
Shenzhen under the brand name “Star of Canton (F| &
B)” (the “Shenzhen Restaurants”). We also operated a
franchising business of coffee shop under the brand name
“Kafelaku Coffee (5 FR I BE)”.

Future Outlook

During the Year, the Hong Kong market continued facing
challenges due to the sluggish economy and the traveling
north to Shenzhen for consumption and dining of many
Hong Kong residents. While the mid-term outlook remained
difficult, there has been some signs of improvement following
the Chinese government’s new policies facilitating easier
travel for mainland visitors to Hong Kong. Despite the
aforesaid obstacles, the Chinese restaurant sector in Hong
Kong had shown resilience, maintained steady demand for
both traditional and modern Chinese cuisine. The Chinese
government’s introduction of more accessible multiple-entry
visas for PRC travelers had, to a certain extent, counteracted
the impact of Hong Kong consumers, traveling north, leading
to a gradual recovery.

Similarly, the Chinese restaurant sector in mainland China
was also impacted by the economic challenges. While it is
expected that the market will remain competitive, adapting
to consumer preferences and economic conditions will be
crucial for sustaining growth.

In contrast, the coffee market in China is experiencing rapid
growth, with forecasts indicating a significant increase in
consumption in the coming years. Key drivers of this trend
include urbanization and the burgeoning middle class. Coffee
is becoming the mainstream beverage, particularly among
younger consumers. Major coffee chains are expanding
aggressively, further enriching the local coffee culture.
Additionally, Chinese consumers are experimenting with
various coffee styles, including iced coffee, coffee-based
beverages, nitro coffee, and innovative tea blends, presenting
opportunities for innovation.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continued)
FEHRE (@)

Looking forward, the Group intends to enhance its market
share in the coffee sector in Hong Kong and China by
capitalizing on the burgeoning café culture, offering a diverse
and exciting array of options, and improving the overall
customer experience. We remain committed to diversifying
our catering business and exploring expansion opportunities
in both the restaurant and coffee sectors, maximizing returns
for our Shareholders.

Appreciation

I would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to all of our
business partners, staff, investors and customers for their
support. The Group will continue to work tirelessly to boost
the sustainable development of the overall business.

Liang Naiming
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2025
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W&

Business and Operational Review

The Group is primarily engaged in providing food and
beverage services in Hong Kong and the PRC. Currently,
we are undergoing a rebranding process and developing our
civet coffee business.

In December 2024, our first franchised coffee shop under
the brand name “Kafelaku Coffee (3t F& Ul BE)” was proudly
opened in Wenzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC.

As of 31 December 2024, the Group operated one full-
service restaurant in Hong Kong under the brand name “Li
Bao House (F] & & §8)” (the “Central Restaurant”), which
focuses on classic and refined Cantonese cuisine. In the PRC,
we have three full-service restaurants in Shenzhen under
the brand name “Star of Canton (#]Z )" (the “Shenzhen
Restaurants”). We also operated a franchising business of
coffee shop, the Kafelaku Coffee (5t FZ U BE).

During the Year, the Hong Kong market continued facing
challenges due to the sluggish economy and the trend of
residents traveling north to Shenzhen for consumption and
dining. While the mid-term outlook remained challenging,
there has been some of improvement following the Chinese
government’s introduction of new policies facilitating that
simplified travel for mainland visitors to Hong Kong.

Despite the aforesaid obstacles, the Chinese restaurant
sector in Hong Kong had demonstrated resilience, maintained
steady demand for both traditional and modern Chinese
cuisine. The Chinese government’s introduction of more
accessible multiple-entry visas for PRC travelers had, to
a certain extent, counteracted the impact of Hong Kong
consumers’ traveling north. A gradual recovery is anticipated.

Similarly, the Chinese restaurant sector in mainland China was
also impacted by the effects of the sluggish economy. While
it is expected that the market will remain competitive and face
ongoing challenges, adapting to consumer preferences and
economic conditions will be crucial for achieving sustained
growth.

8 BRMBHERERAT — S NEEERS

EBEREEDRE
AEBEEARERFARERHERRR
KRB - BA - RMERTRIEELRE
B 5 SR GE 275 o

R-ZT-WME+F - T 0A 56 R Wk
b hR A TB P R BT AR N T R E R AR
B INBEMBEE o

BHE-_Z-_ME+-A=+—0 A&£H
NIFESE RE2BREELE —BIR
HE2ERBOBEZE ((PRBEE]) @ AgR
BEREXAE -RPAE - BMUTFER]
mMEAERNFIEE =ZFREE2ERBEH
ERE (DRYIERR ) o FPITRASE [ 58 RS
O E JE AN BE 275 o

RAFE BEMBHKEERSERR R
ERILERIEE R BEBLEH 2B -
BEPHREZDNABES  FEBRMIH
R REHEENBRERE AR
ME e

BEEYBAAER EEHIAERERR
- BEGERBERBARBNETERIDE
FRRE - PEBRFHELEAKRETZRAR
HE|BNREER - ERELREFEHRE
FUABZRE - FAITMBEESERE -

BEEAG TEAMPAERETZINL
BRUAEE - EATRHAD B DT RmBHEF
EmERFERE  HEEEEERTEL
BERE  BEERARFEEROBE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ERE MmN DN (@)

In contrast, the coffee market in China is experiencing rapid
growth, with forecasts indicating significant increase in
consumption in the coming years. Key drivers of this trend
include urbanization and the expansion of the middle class.
Coffee is becoming the mainstream beverage, particularly
among younger consumers. Major coffee chains are
expanding aggressively, enriching the local coffee culture.

All of the Group’s restaurants and its franchised coffee shop
are strategically situated in landmark shopping arcades
or commercial complexes at prime locations. The Group
maintains a business philosophy of offering good quality food,
beverage and services at reasonable prices in an elegant
and comfortable dining setting. All of the Group’s restaurants
target at mid-to-high end spending customers.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had,
In Hong Kong:

(i) one Chinese restaurant, which was located in Central,
Hong Kong (i.e. the Central Restaurant);

In Shenzhen, the PRC:

(i) three Chinese restaurants, which were located in
Futian District, Shenzhen, the PRC (i.e. the Shenzhen
Restaurant and the Shenzhen One Avenue Restaurant)
and Baoan District, Shenzhen, the PRC (i.e. the
Shenzhen Uniwalk Restaurant), respectively; and

In Zhejiang Province, the PRC

(i) afranchised coffee shop, which was located in Wenzhou
City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC.

Since the business environment on restaurant operations
remains weak, the expansion plan of the Group has been
delayed. However, the Group will explore the opportunity to
develop its coffee operations in both Hong Kong and China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

EEE MmN DN @)

Financial Review

Revenue

For the Year, the Group recorded a total revenue of
approximately HK$139.6 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 21.8% as compared to approximately
HK$178.5 million for the Previous Year.

The Group’s total revenue for the Year mainly comprised of
(a) food catering which was restaurant operations delivering
Cantonese cuisine, Chinese banquets and dining services;
and (b) beverage services which was coffee operations.

Food Catering

The revenue derived from the restaurant business in Hong
Kong of approximately HK$19.8 million (2023: approximately
HK$19.1 million), which increased by approximately 3.7% and
remained stable compared to the Previous Year;

The aggregate revenue of the three Chinese restaurants in
Shenzhen, the PRC, of approximately HK$118.8 million (2023:
approximately HK$159.4 million), decreased by approximately
25.5%, which was mainly due to the sluggish economic
growth of the PRC during the Year; and

Beverage Services

The revenue generated from our new civet coffee franchising
business in the PRC of approximately HK$1.0 million
(2023: Nil), which included sale of goods and equipment to
franchisees, provision of pre-opening training service and
non-refundable upfront initial fee.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s gross profit (i.e. revenue minus cost of materials
consumed) amounted to approximately HK$83.6 million for
the Year, representing a decrease of approximately 27.0%
from approximately HK$114.6 million for the Previous
Year, which was in line with the decrease in revenue
of approximately 21.8% during the Year. Furthermore,
the Group’s overall gross profit margin decreased to
approximately 59.9% for the Year (2023: 64.2%) due to the
increased discounts offered by the Group due to the weak
business environment in the PRC during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ERE MmN DN (@)

Employee benefits expense

Employee benefits expense was approximately HK$62.4
million for the Year (2023: approximately HK$51.9
million), representing an increase of approximately 20.3%
as compared to 2023 which was due to the cost of
approximately HK$15.0 million for granting 110.5 million
awarded Shares to the eligible employee participants under
the share scheme of the Company.

Depreciation

Depreciation in respect of the right-of-use assets in relation to
the Group’s leased properties for the Year was approximately
HK$14.3 million (2023: HK$16.7 million).

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses mainly include but not limited to
expenses incurred for the Group’s restaurant operations,
consisting of operating lease expenses, building management
fees, air conditioning charges, cleaning and laundry
expenses, utility expenses, service fees to temporary workers,
advertising and promotions. For the Year, other operating
expenses amounted to approximately HK$33.8 million (2023:
HK$39.5 million), representing a decrease of approximately
HK$5.8 million or 14.6% which was mainly due to the
combined effects of (i) the decrease of lease payment of
approximately HK$0.4 million which was not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities; (ii) the decrease of building
management fee and air conditioning charge of approximately
HK$0.3 million; (i) the increase in advertising and promaotion
expenses of approximately HK$0.8 million; and (iv) a
decrease of penalty and related interest in relation to litigation
approximately HK$2.2 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

EEEFWmE DN @)

Impairment losses on right-of-use assets and
property and plant and equipment

The impairment loss on right-of-use assets and property,
plant and equipment amounting to approximately HK$5.6
million (2023: HK$3.5 million) and HK$0.9 million (2023:
HK$0.6 million), respectively, for the Year. The increments
were because of the impairment losses arised from the
unsatisfactory performance of Chinese restaurants in the PRC
during the Year.

Finance costs

Finance costs for the Year were approximately HK$5.4 million
(2023: HK$7.8 million) in respect of interest expense on lease
liabilities in relation to the Group’s leased property, plant and
equipment and debenture.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

For the Year, the Group recorded a loss attributable to
owners of the Company of approximately HK$48.7 million,
whereas the Group recorded a profit attributable to owners of
the Company of approximately HK$8.0 million for the Previous
Year. Such loss-making position for the Year was mainly
attributable to the combined effects of (i) the increase in
employee benefits expenses due to the increase in the share-
based compensation cost of approximately HK$15.0 million;
(i) the decrease in aggregate revenue by approximately
HK$38.9 million; and (iii) the increase in the impairment loss
on right-of-use assets by approximately HK$2.1 million.

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s current assets
include, among others, the deposits, prepayments and other
receivable amounting to approximately HK$19.8 million (2023:
HK$9.8 million). Such increase was mainly attributable to the
amount due from a related entity of the Group, Guangzhou
Kafelaku Coffee Food Company Limited* (& M 5 FR Ul BE & &
A PR A 7)) (“Guangzhou Kafelaku”), which was unsecured,
with interest rate at 3.95% per annum (the “Loan”). The Loan
are repayable on demand.

For further details, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 31 March 2025.

* The English name is for identification purpose only.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ERE MmN DN (@)

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure
Capital Structure

The Group’s objectives in managing capital are to safeguard
its ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for its Shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to its Shareholders,
return capital to its Shareholders, issue new Shares or sell
assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors its capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. The Group’s strategy, which was unchanged during the
Year, was to maintain the gearing ratio at an acceptable level.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents were approximately HK$10.6 million, representing
a decrease of approximately HK$6.3 million as compared
with approximately HK$16.9 million as at 31 December 2023.
The decrease was mainly due to an increase in cash used in
operations and development of the civet coffee business in
the PRC.

As at 31 December 2024, cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately HK$10.6 million, of which
approximately HK$8.4 million and approximately HK$2.2
million were denominated in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) and
Renminbi (‘RMB”), respectively.

Debenture

On 12 November 2024, the Group has issued a secured
debenture with principal of HK$2 million (2023: Nil) and issued
at 100% of the principal amount, with interest rate at 3% per
annum payable annually in arrears and maturity of 7 years
from date of issuance, i.e., 12 November 2031, unless early
redeemed.

/)Ibgbﬁﬁ
BRRIE
AEEEAEERRREARASERTE
B2 URBRREROABFY #FREEAR
REUBDESHA

MBERREREE

REFIPBEARRE  AEERESH
EREBRRKNORESE MEBRRE
EBER BIIHRMNIHEEENRDER

$¢luﬁﬁaﬁm?%gﬁﬁ
AEBRAEEREREH
BELXRESEIZEN E’]7J<3|Z

i

RZZE-_ME+=—A=+—RH XEEH
BehBeEEMHAEI06BEB T &
—ECZF+ A=+ —H®WL169B &
Bl HesBEEE T - ZBLTIEER
RERKEE R R B3 R 5H R UNOE 75 P
2R INATE -

R_E_NMF+_A=+—"H BEEL KR
SEBYHI06EEBT EPH84EE
%75&%@2.25%5%7‘5%%'%;‘%7%(D%J_EJ)

RARB(TAR®DAE-
i
RZFZMF+—A+=B AKREET

$i7%2000000,%7z TECZF HE)N
BEBEREE  BTERLSEM100%
BEMEI%FTEBESFNAE—IX BIER
BHED TRZEAAEETABRETE
ﬂ—g:—$+ }EJ"?’*E >

Kafelaku Coffee Holding Limited  Annual Report 2024 13



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
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Indebtedness and Banking Facilities

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no bank borrowings
(as at 31 December 2023: Nil).

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s gearing ratio, which
is calculated based on the interest-bearing debts divided
by total equity attributable to owners of the Company (the
“Shareholders’ Equity”), was irrelevant as the Company
recorded a deficit in its Shareholders’ Equity as at 31
December 2024. The Directors, taking into account the
nature and scale of operations and capital structure of the
Group, will closely monitor the gearing ratio and will adjust its
business strategies to improve it to a reasonable level.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Most of the income and expenditures of the Group are
denominated in HK$ and RMB, which are the functional
currencies of the respective group entities. Although
HK$ is not pegged to RMB, the historical exchange rate
fluctuation on RMB was not significant during the Year under
review. Thus, no significant exposure is expected on RMB
transactions and balances. Accordingly, the Group does not
have any material foreign exchange exposure. During the
Year, the Group had not used any financial instruments for
hedging purposes.

Securities in Issue

As at 31 December 2024, there were 1,410,250,000 ordinary
Shares in issue (2023: 1,105,100,000 ordinary Shares).
During the Year, the Company has: (i) placed an aggregate
of 194,650,000 Shares to not less than six independent
third parties (please refer to section “Placing of New Shares
under General Mandate” below for details); and (i) allotted
110,500,000 Shares to the trustee of the share award
scheme of the Company.

14  pRyCHERERAT —T-NEFERS

AR RIRITRVE
R_F-_NE+=-_A=1+—H0 AKEL
i =

ERITER(N =T ==
) o

RZE-_MFE+-_A=+—RH AKEHE
ERELE (R EEBBRARRBEES A
J%fﬁ%ﬁﬁ%@%ﬁ(FH&%EEJ)?r%)j'IT*EF%
REA/RABAR_T_WOF+_A=1+—
H 15 Hx%@é\ EBa-EZEEBEAKE
MEREERBEULREANRBER K&
EREEREL X UWKHBHE XK
MG ERSEEEKF -

SN [ B

AEBORBOWARFAZABTREAR
B (RESBERNDEER)E - BIfE
BTTEIFEARBHE  ARBESLEX
KBROEFERIERK - Bt - AR
BRXHLEHTBEERAR - Bt - ~&E
W EAMEBERIMNERR - RAFE - NEE

WEFRATMER T EEE PAR -
BRITES
RZE_NMF+_A=+—H BT

1,410,250,000 R E B (Z == F :
1,105,100,000 (R E@AR) - RAFE - A4

BB IPRANEBBYIE=TEEAH
194,650,000 & 10 (FFE BB LM T X RE
—BEERETRMD] —&) Ri)mAR
A1 B2 BT &8 2 5+ A B2 2 110,500,000
BERZ D o



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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Placing of New Shares under General Mandate

On 7 June 2024, the Company has completed a placing of an
aggregate of 194,650,000 Shares (the “Placing Shares”) to
not less than six placees (the “Placees”), who were individual,
institutional or other professional investors that were third
parties independent of the Company and its connected
persons, at HK$0.144 per Placing Shares pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the placing agreement entered into
between the Company and the placing agent on 14 May
2024 (the “Placing” and “Placing Agreement” respectively).
The market closing price was HK$0.178 per Share on the
date of the Placing Agreement. The gross proceeds and
the net proceeds (after deduction of the relevant expenses
and fees) from the Placing amounted to approximately
HK$28,030,000 and HK$27,098,000, respectively. Please
refer to the Company’s announcements dated 14 May 2024
and 7 June 2024 (the “Placing Announcements”) for details.

Please refer to the section “Use of Proceeds from the Placing”
on page 20 below for details of the use of the Placing
proceeds.

Grant of Awards Pursuant to Share Scheme
Pursuant to the share scheme of the Company adopted by
the Shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 24
May 2024 (the “Share Scheme”), the Company has on 29
August 2024 allotted an aggregate of 110,500,000 Shares
(the “Awarded Shares”) to the employee participants subject
to their meeting of the performance targets to be determined
by the Group from time to time. As at 31 December 2024,
the Awarded Shares were held by the trustee of the Share
Scheme pending vesting. Please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 29 August 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
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Significant Investment Held, Material Acquisition
or Disposal of Subsidiaries and Affiliated
Companies

On 5 August 2024, Jiangsu Kafelaku Holding Co., Ltd.* (L &k
S BB 1E AR B R A &) (“Jiangsu Kafelaku”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a State-Owned
Land Use Rights Transfer Contract with the Dongtai Bureau
of Natural Resources and Planning* (3 & ™ 8 % & R
# 2| /), a government entity under the Dongtai Municipal
People’s Government of the PRC, in relation to the acquisition
for the land use rights of a land (the “Acquisition”) located
at the east side of Yingbin Avenue, Coastal Economic Zone
and south side of Haiwang Road of Dongtai City, Jiangsu
Province, the PRC (PRI I B R e M e S&EERODEF KX
BE A FE A (the “Land”) at a consideration of
RMB5,790,180. In line with the Group’s rebranding process
and developing its civet coffee business, the Directors
intended to use the Land to set up an in-house civet coffee
production base for the processing of coffee beans for the
supply of its own coffee shops and coffee trading business.
The Acquisition constitutes a discloseable transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. For details,
please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 17
December 2024 and 23 January 2025.

Save for the above, there was no significant investment held,
material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies during the Year.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any charge
over its assets (2023: Nil).

* The English name is for identification purpose only.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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Contingent Liabilities

On 31 December 2019, Excel Linker (Hong Kong) Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company received a
Writ of Summons together with an indorsement of claim dated
31 December 2019 issued in the High Court of Hong Kong
(the “Court Action”) by Foxhill Investments Limited as plaintiff
against Excel Linker (Hong Kong) Limited as defendant.
For details, please refer to the announcement titled “Inside
Information — Litigation” dated 6 January 2020. A provision of
HK$15.8 million has been made in the consolidated financial
statements as at 31 December 2024 (2023: HK$13.4 million).
The Company is of the view that the Court Action did not
and will not have any material adverse impact on the ordinary
operation and financial positions of the Group. To the best
knowledge of the Directors, no trial in relation to the Court
Action has been scheduled up to the date of this report.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, the
Group did not have any material contingent liabilities.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

The Group had approximately 378 employees as at 31
December 2024 (2023: 430). The employee benefits
expense, including Directors’ emoluments, of the Group
were approximately HK$62.4 million (2023: HK$51.9
million), increased by approximately 20.2% compared to 31
December 2023 which was due to the cost of approximately
HK$15.0 million for granting Awarded Shares under the Share
Scheme.

The Directors and the senior management of the Company
(the “Senior Management”) receive compensation in the
form of salaries and discretionary bonuses with reference to
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and the performance of the Group. The Group regularly
reviews and determines the remuneration and compensation
package of the Directors and the Senior Management with
reference to, among other things, the market level of salaries
paid by comparable companies, the respective responsibilities
of the Directors and the Senior Management and the
performance of the Group.

HREE
RZB-NF+A=+—B AQFMEE
2EMBARKE (BB ERARKE—

MEHBEREARAF(ERREAN)KE
BEE AR AERE (FE) ARQE (FRK
EANBEARAR T -NF+_A=1—
BzERSRERBREE ([ERHFRLD -

HEBF2H T TF-ANERERIA
BHE—F *’\Jﬁﬁ’“i°158§§ﬁ§fuﬁ’]%§f
BER_ZE_WF+_A=+—HNES

ﬁ?fﬂ‘*#&i‘%qﬂ*ﬂm —EC=F 134@%}%
T) o RRBRE AR FRL BTG E
xTZlK%IE’JE%“i“‘MWEMXHﬁ/RFEEH
ERTMEE - BEZAA BEEAREH
Bl WKL BB AR SR AR BRI [ o

BREXHBEEN R-FT-_MOF+_-A
=t—B AEEYETAERKAREAE -

BERFMMEK
R-ZE-_WFE+_A=+—8 ' A&£E8H
BI78H (ZTEZ=F : 430K)EBE - K
SENEERMNAS (BRESEM2)NA
CRABBET(ZE-=F: 51088 %
) BR-_E_=F+_A=+—HENY
20.2% ' YA IRIER (5T 81% T 2B A (5
ZHAL15.0 B BB T ©

EFERAR EE(F.—J%&““EJEJ)
Tﬁ%ﬁ’f&@‘]l Eﬂﬁ’]ﬂﬁ&ﬁ’aiﬁw
BIO2BRALBRAREHT &)\%F’ﬁ&ﬁ
%l% & M & E - $Eliﬁﬁ$ﬁﬁ&#$
EENEREEEFMEMESE  HEX
%EE%E’&(Eqﬂ’@ﬁ)—[ttfﬁjﬁﬁﬁﬁ,
e msKkE BSEERSREEENHR
BERAKERNFEMET °

-

Kafelaku Coffee Holding Limited ~ Annual Report 2024



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
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The remuneration committee of the Board (the “Remuneration
Committee”) reviews and determines the remuneration and
compensation packages of the Directors with reference to their
responsibilities, workload, the time devoted to the Group and
the performance of the Group. The Directors may also receive
awarded shares to be granted under the Share Scheme.
During the Year, none of the Directors has been awarded any
Shares under the Share Scheme.

Dividend

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of
any final dividend for the Year (2023: Nil).

Prospects

The Directors believe that, from the perspective of mid-
to-longer terms, the Chinese government will gradually
implement various stimulus policies, so as to boosting
consumer confidence and hence an improvement of and an
increase in the revenue in the catering and coffee operation
industry in China can be expected. However, the catering
industry still faces several challenges and the business
environment still remains weak as compared to previous year.
The Directors anticipate that the Group’s business will face
various challenges in the foreseeable future. The Group’s key
risk exposures and uncertainties are summarised as follows:

()  the Hong Kong and China economies may be further
worsened as a result of the unfavourable development
of the China-US trade war, the Ukraine war and the
Israel-Gaza war, which would negatively affect the
consumption sentiments of the general public and
consequently the retail and catering sectors;

(i) the unforeseeable trend of in interest rates in Hong
Kong may affect the consumers’ spending sentiments
which will adversely affect the business of the Group’s
restaurants in the year to come;

(iiy the Group’s future success relies heavily on its ability to
constantly offer menu items, creatively-designed banquet
and dining services based on changing market trends
and changing tastes, dietary habits, expectations and
other preferences of the Group’s target customers. As
such, significant costs to survey and research customer
trends and preferences and to develop and market
new menu items, banquet and dining services may
be required, this may place substantial burden on the
Group’s managerial and financial resources;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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(iv) the operation of the Group may be affected by the
price of the food ingredients, including the price of the
imported food ingredients which will be affected by the
fluctuating exchange rate; and

(v) there may be labour shortage in the future and intensive
competition for qualified individuals in the food and
beverage industry.

It is expected that more policies will be announced by the
Chinese and Hong Kong governments to support and
stimulate consumer spending such as the expansion of the
“Individual Visit Scheme” (&2 B B 1T) to more Mainland
China cities, and that the Group can benefit from these
policies.

Despite this, Hong Kong citizens have grown accustomed
to visiting the Mainland China at the weekends, which may
impede the growth of the Hong Kong operation of the Group.

Going forward, the Group will continue to utilise available
resources to implement its business strategies, namely,
steady growth and prudent expansion in Hong Kong with
its multi-brand strategy, progressive expansion in the
PRC market, continuing promotion of brand image and
recognition through marketing initiatives, enhancement of
existing restaurant facilities and strengthening of staff training
aiming to attract more new customers. In this process, the
Group will continue to maintain its commitment to quality as
always. For the time being, the Group will put more effort
into online marketing to promote existing business and to
increase market share. Following the rebranding, the Group
will continue to develop the beverage business of its coffee
operations in the PRC so as to diversify the Group’s catering
business.

The Group will also consider the expansion of its food
catering and beverage business into other types of cuisines
and operation modes when opportunities arise, taking into
account the Group’s available resources, with the aim to
maximize the return to its Shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
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Use of Proceeds from the Placing

Reference is made to the Placing Announcements. The
Company has successfully placed on 7 June 2024 a total of
194,650,000 new Shares under the general mandate granted
to the Directors by the Shareholders at the AGM held on 20
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June 2023. The net proceeds (after deducting the placing FIEHIEF%E (KHIKRE SRS FEEH

commission, professional fees and all related expenses) were
approximately HK$27.1 million. For details, please refer to the

Placing Announcements.

As at 31 December 2024, the planned use of the net
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proceeds from the Placing and the actual use of net proceeds FTE R FEAE AR MNEE T —NF
T A=+—HAEFRBEFEERRENOT

up to 31 December 2024 were as follows:

Planned use of
net proceeds

as stated in
the Placing Actual use of
announcement net proceeds Remaining
dated up to balance as at
7 June 31 December 31 December
2024 2024 2024
HERS
==l 1t S BZE
~NAtBRZ —E-EF
fdEEE +-HA=1t—H S
N FRiG IR —E-MEF
F1S50IE FHEER tTZA=t+-—8
FHEETEIRE AR ZFI T 8%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THERT FHET
For developing of civet coffee RN EE &+ B H)
businesses in Hong Kong and %t R W BE % 7%
in the PRC 16,260 12,797 3,463
For replenishing the business ~ i FE AR B EKIEE
operations and general E—REEESR
working capital of the Group 10,840 10,840 -

As a result, approximately HK$23.6 million of proceeds from
the Placing have been utilised in accordance with the planned
usage as detailed above. The portion of net proceeds yet to
be used was deposited in licensed banks in Hong Kong and
China, and is expected to be progressively utilised by 2025 in

accordance with the planned usage.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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Events After the Reporting Date of 31
December 2024

On 8 January 2025, Jiangsu Kafelaku entered into a
construction contract with Jiangsu Xuncai Construction
Engineering Co., Ltd.* (L&A ¥ 2 & T2 B R A 7)) (the
“Contractor”), an independent third party, pursuant to
which the Contractor has conditionally agreed to carry out
the construction of the production base on the Land at
the consideration of RMB66,088,580 (the “Construction
Contract”). Pursuant to Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules, the
Construction Contract constituted a major transaction of
the Company and was subject to reporting, announcement,
circular and shareholders’ approval. An extraordinary general
meeting (the “EGM”) would be convened and held for the
Shareholder to consider and, if thought fit, to approve the
Construction Contract and the transactions contemplated
thereunder. Further details are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 3 January 2025, 28 January 2025,
17 February 2025 and 31 March 2025, and the Company’s
Circular dated 31 March 2025.

Save for the above, the Board is not aware of any other
important event requiring disclosure that has taken place
subsequent to 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this
report.

* The English name is for identification purpose only.
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Introduction

Kafelaku Coffee Holding Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group” or “we”) is principally
engaged in providing food and beverage services in Hong
Kong and the PRC. Currently we are undergoing a rebranding
process and developing our civet coffee business. As at
31 December 2024, the Group operated one full-service
restaurant in Hong Kong under the brand name of “Li Bao
House (%] Z & £8)” (the “Central Restaurant”), which
focuses on classic and refined Cantonese cuisine. In the PRC,
the Group have three full-service restaurants in Shenzhen
under the brand name of “Star of Canton (¥ & B)” (the
“Shenzhen Restaurants”). We also operated a franchising
business of coffee shop under the brand name of “Kafelaku
Coffee (5 FR I E)”.

Reporting Period

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the
“ESG Report”) summarises the environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) initiatives, plans and performance of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 (the “Reporting
Period” or “2024”) and demonstrates its commitment
towards sustainable development. The Group attributes the
growth and success to its dedication by offering quality food
and services to customers.

Board Statement

The Group strives to develop its business in a sustainable
manner and create value to the stakeholders. We are
committed to maintaining high standards of business
practices in relation to environmental protection, social
responsibility, and corporate governance, as we believe this is
the key to our continuous success in the future. To pursue a
sustainable business model and align with the national vision
of carbon neutrality, we have set environmental targets to
optimise ESG performance.
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The Group constantly communicates with its internal and
external stakeholders to identify and prioritise material ESG
issues that have a significant impact on its operations and
stakeholders. The Board has delegated the ESG taskforce
(the “ESG Taskforce”) and hired an independent third party
to conduct materiality assessment. Information about the
stakeholder engagement channels and materiality assessment
conducted by the Group is stated in the sections headed
“Stakeholder Engagement” and “Materiality Assessment”
respectively.

The Board has an ultimate responsibility for overseeing and
making decisions for the Group’s ESG governance. The
Board is diverse in its composition and is considered to have
a balance of skills and experience in overseeing the ESG
matters of the Group. In order to better manage the Group’s
ESG performance, related issues and potential risks, the
Board is responsible for establishing a general direction for
the Group’s ESG strategies, reviewing the materiality of the
Group’s ESG issues, ESG-related risks and opportunities,
ESG policies, and the Group’s performance against ESG-
related targets at least annually. The Board also approves
disclosures in the ESG reports and ensures the effectiveness
of internal control mechanisms in managing ESG-related
risks.

To develop systematic management of ESG issues under
the Board’s delegations, the Group has established the ESG
Taskforce. The ESG Taskforce comprises core members from
different departments and is responsible for collecting ESG-
related information of the Group for preparing the ESG reports
and assisting in identifying and evaluating the Group’s ESG
risks and the effectiveness of the internal control mechanisms.
The ESG Taskforce also evaluates the Group’s performances
in different ESG aspects such as environment, health and
safety, labour standards and product responsibilities, as well
as reviewing the progress made against ESG-related targets.
The ESG Taskforce evaluates the effectiveness of current
policies and procedures, and formulates appropriate solutions
to improve the overall ESG performance of the Group. The
findings, decisions and suggestions should be reported to the
Board at least annually. The Board would review the updates
in regulatory requirements, set targets with ESG Taskforce
regularly to ensure the strategies are on the right track and
appropriate.
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Reporting Scope and Framework

The reporting scope of the ESG Report was assessed by
the ESG Taskforce by considering the materiality principle,
revenue source and number of staff headcount. Unless
otherwise stated, the ESG Report covers the Group’s ESG
performance of the office in Hong Kong, and the restaurant
operations in Hong Kong and the PRC, which is consistent
with the reporting scope for the financial year ended 31
December 2023 (“2023” or “Previous Year”). We collect the
Group’s key performance indicators (“KPIs”) in environmental
and social areas through the Group’s operation control
mechanism.

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the
mandatory disclosure requirement and “Comply or explain”
provisions of the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) in Appendix
C2 of the Listing Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

Information relating to the Group’s corporate governance
practices has been set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 82 to 117 of this annual report.

Reporting Principles
We adhered to the reporting principles of the ESG Reporting

Guide that are described below in preparation of this ESG
Report.

Materiality: A materiality assessment was conducted to identify
material ESG issues during 2024. The confirmed material
issues were then adopted as the focus for preparation of
the ESG Report. The materiality of issues was reviewed and
confirmed by the Board and the ESG Taskforce. For further
details, please refer to the sections headed “Stakeholder
Engagement” and “Materiality Assessment”.

24 BRMEHERERAT - T MEEERS

REHERESR

RE e REARENBREEEHRIRE -
HekEREENEABRBEEZMERI W
ARBERET ABETEMSE - B BT
BN IRIB B RERREREANEEA
REBNREERER S LT REZMNG
BERE (e kERAEMNRKR  HEH
E-E_=F+_A=1+—BLUHFE
([ZZ2==F | [BEEE]) OREEE
— B o TP E B AN 5 B A A8 I B Uk
EXAEEERB MG HEABEEERE
Z(EAREMEELD -

ARE HEREAREDREBBH
RPHERAF (BWRF) ERES LT
RN 8% C2 T LY % 2 BB B R B
I8 RERRE HE) (RS HAREA

HBEES DO TETHRER] R EMRER -

AEREENERD#HY

EIRTSE 3
) HWMEEERRS

% =
R FRES2E 117

&R A
RBRARS 8 REARE - RIAE
FTXARERE M EREARERID
HsRA -

EEM - R_ZT-_NF AKEDETEE
MHERHE - ABRIBEARRE g hErEE
ERERAMBENERZEEREHRE
RE #HekEaRE EFELERE
eREARBR/NHCEENEREEZE
MERMY -E— 15 FLHFhESE]
MIEZME]—&0 -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

RIE - tERERTE @)

Quantitative: The standards and methodologies used in the
calculation of KPIs data in this ESG Report, as well as the
applicable assumptions were supplemented by explanatory
notes.

Consistency: Unless otherwise stated, the preparation
approach of this ESG Report was consistent with the Previous
Year for meaningful comparison. If there are any changes in
the scope of disclosure and calculation methodologies that
may affect comparison with previous reports, explanations will
be provided to the corresponding data.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group values its stakeholders and their views related
to its business and ESG issues. By communicating with the
stakeholders, the Group is able to understand their concerns
and identify crucial ESG issues. We communicate with our
key stakeholders through different channels.

In formulating operational strategies and ESG measures, we
take into account stakeholders’ expectations and strive to
improve our performance through mutual cooperation. The
Group’s major stakeholders’ communication channels and
their corresponding expectations are as follows:

EEHEARS  HEREAREHMR
8 S0 4 B T A RO P 2 o A R
BRE bR T -

—HMHRIERAHRA AR -HERE
BRENRETZEABEFEELR -
NETARENLR ERBERENGE
HEBEMEE AT ERBERSHIE
MLLE - @ HARBURIEL RE -

FhESR
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B HBREREENTR - BBERD
EBE ARETTRABONFELH
PIEZBERUEER - RIBBTRAR
EREBHHELITER

EHIEZSERBARRE e RERE
Mol - R EZ BRI ENIE - WiEBNA
EAESNRASEEN AEHETE
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Stakeholders Communication channel Expectation
BHE BRERE HE
Investors and e Annual general meetings and other e  Complying with relevant laws and
shareholders shareholder meetings regulations
REE KRR e BRERBFASLAMBRRGE o ETHBAERER
e Financial Reports e Disclosing latest information of the
o WBWE corporate in due course

e  Announcements and circulars
o RERMK

e  Corporate website

o  RA)MBUA

o ENRBARSFAN
e  Financial results

o FITEELE

e  Corporate sustainability
o DEURBERE

2
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Stakeholders Communication channel Expectation

BHE BRERE e

Customers e  Customer satisfaction survey and e  Product and service responsibility
®P feedback form e EmRRBEMR

s FFREREABRRER

e  Customer service manager

e Customer information and privacy
protection

o KR o EFEFEREILEBRE
e  Direct communication e  [Food safety
s HEEM e BAm%dE
Suppliers e Supplier management meetings and e Fair competition
e events o RNFHmF

e HEBEEGHLLHY

e  Business ethics and reputation

e Supplier audit management system ¢ EEEELEE

o HEMBEEREGE
e  Site visits
s EMZE

Employees e  Employee opinion survey
(=] e EEBERFASL

e Cooperation with mutual benefits
e AfEHE

e Health and safety
e RBEHERE

e  Channels for employees’ feedback e  Equal opportunities

(forms, suggestion box, etc.)
s REERBERE

(ER%X -ERMESE)
e Notice boards

o HIRIR
Government and e  Performance reports
regulatory bodies o  BRURE
B & BEE e e Written response to public
consultation

e  Site visits
o TR E

o TEHEHE

e Remuneration and benefits
o EHBHRAEA

e  Career development

e BEIERE

e Tax payment as required by law

o IR

e  Business ethics

e MWEBE

e Complying with relevant laws and
regulations

o  EBSTHEIAEEMR

Community, non- e Community investment programs e  Giving back to society
governmental o HERIEEFE o [MOfEHE
organisations, and e  ESG reports e  Environmental protection
media e R -HERERAWME o RIFRE

tTlE -~ FEBAT AR A K e  Compliant operations
e s ERKE

We aim to collaborate with our stakeholders to improve our
ESG performance and create greater value for the wider
community on a continuous basis.
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Materiality Assessment

The Group reviews its operations, identifies relevant ESG
issues, and assesses the importance of those relevant issues
to its business and stakeholders regularly. The Group’s
management, the ESG Taskforce and staff in major functions
are involved in the materiality assessment process. With
reference to the Group’s business development strategy and
industry peers, the Group identified and determined a list of
material ESG issues. The Group prepared a questionnaire
based on the list and invited relevant stakeholders to rate the
potential material issues according to the level of influence
on stakeholders’ assessment and decisions and the level of
significance of economic, environmental and social impacts.

The results of the survey were analysed to develop a
materiality matrix as shown below. The materiality matrix and
the identified material topics were reviewed and confirmed by
the Board and the ESG Taskforce and disclosed in the ESG
Report.

EE
ARETHEEAREEE S5 ERR
B HeREARER WM EZFHEREE
HEMNEBERBNENEZN - AKEE
BE - RE 4EREASRNERTIRE
EHFNBETH2RE R EFEHBER - A
KE2RASENEBERRBEREZAR
T BAREEEARE HERERSE
RE - ASEREABBERAUMNS - W
AR 0 B RIBE R0 F G RRT R
VERERABEE RERMEFEN
ERMBERHEREASHEIR -

AEBEHTATERAREEZEER (10

TXAHR) c EEZHERE KB ERNFEE

EHEFELRE HEekERFEHENE

ﬁfyﬂ&ﬁﬁ?ﬂ CWRERE  HERERRET
B

Materiality Matrix

EEMERE

Supply Chain Management ftfEs#E 12 o

Water Management f /K& 12
Development and Training & & K& 1535

Corporate Social Responsibility (S 24+ & & {F @ \

Advertising and Labelling /&% Z1Z4

HERETIMRAENYERE

Level of Influence on Stakeholders’ Assessments and Decisions

Exhaust Gas Emissions ®
EERBER \

Recruitment, Promotion and Dismissal 382 + FH; & ff (&
Diversity and Equal Opportunities % 7o/t B2 F & &
Remuneration and Benefits i Ei{#& 7|

Climate Change &£t

Food Quality and Safety
BYMEREZR
Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

{ B 1EE T Rosamss T
Anti-corruption R &5

@ Customer Service & F 7%

Waste Management &2 ) & 12
Health and Safety Management fi# fz £1 %7 2 & 12

Sewage Discharge 55 7KHF
Energy Management g&R & 12

@ Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions ;& = fAZHEK

Use of Packaging Materials 22 1 £Hs /3
The Environment and Natural Resources 32352 5 A &R

Level of Significance of Economic, Environmental and Social Impacts
HEHE BERMSYENEEMEE

Contact Us

We welcome stakeholders to provide their opinions and
suggestions. You can provide valuable advice in respect
of the ESG Report or our performance in sustainable
development by emailing enquiry@kafelaku.com.

B 4% 2R P9
EZPBAOFEHEREERREZ B TH
KB ARE g REAWMEXKME
ARBEERFTEMNKARHEESER B
3t & enquiry@kafelaku.com °
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A. Environmental

28

A1l. Emissions

The Group is committed to supporting
environmental sustainability by introducing
environmentally friendly business practices
and educating our employees to enhance their
awareness on environmental protection. We strive
to minimise the potential impacts of our business on
the environment and society in which we operate so
to fulfil our commitment on social responsibility.

We have adopted and implemented relevant
environmental policies. These policies are to
respond to emission mitigation principles and
waste management principles of “Reduce, Reuse,
Recycle and Replace”, with the objectives of
minimising the adverse environmental impacts,
and ensuring the emissions or wastes being
generated are managed in an environmentally
responsible manner. We implement measures that
promote energy conservation, waste reduction
and any other green initiatives across the life cycle
of our services. Environmental-related education
was delivered to our employees to raise their
awareness on environmental protection and ensure
compliance with the relevant environmental laws
and regulations.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was
not aware of any material non-compliance of
environmental laws and regulations in relation to
exhaust gas and GHG emissions, water and land
discharge, and the generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes that have a significant
impact to the Group. Such environmental laws and
regulations include but are not limited to the Hong
Kong Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap.311), the
Hong Kong Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap.354),
the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Water Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China,
and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution.
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Exhaust Gas Emissions

The Group strictly controls the emissions of
oil fumes in accordance with the legislation
requirements of Hong Kong and the PRC. To
control the emissions of oil fumes and other exhaust
gas, all restaurants of the Group have installed
exhaust emission systems and air pollution control
equipment, including mechanical ventilation systems
and oil fume exhaust filters. To maintain their optimal
filtering capacity, regular cleaning of these systems
and equipment will be conducted. In addition, the
Group has formulated policies and implemented
various emission reduction measures to reduce
emissions from sources including operating vehicles
that meet the emission standards of the government
and conducting regular vehicle maintenance to
maintain engine function and provide better fuel
economy. The Group also instructed staff to
prioritise the use of public transport for business
commuting purposes.

The major source of exhaust gas generated by the
Group’s business operations were fuel consumed
by vehicles for transportation as well as towngas
and natural gas for cooking. During the Reporting
Period, exhaust gas emissions decreased compared
with the Previous Year, which is mainly due to the
decrease in the operation level of vehicles.
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The Group’s performance on exhaust gas emissions
was as follows:

ZNER B BE SR P AN T

Indicator Unit Emissions
EE B HmE
FY2024 FY2023
“ECOHBFE —E=HF
Nitrogen oxides (NOXx) kg 161.88 186.54
R A% (NOx) /NI
Sulphur oxides (SOx) kg 0.55 0.58
&L ¥ (SOx) /NS
Particulate matter (PM) kg 8.27 10.32
BFHOR (PM) Af
Note(s): Bt 3
1. The calculation method of exhaust gas emissions is based 1. BEREREEAED2BBIAERE

on “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by The Stock
Exchange.

GHG Emissions

The major sources of the Group’s GHG emissions
are direct emissions from towngas and natural gas
used for cooking, as well as petrol consumed by
vehicles (Scope 1), and energy indirect emissions
from purchased towngas and electricity (Scope 2).
The Group actively adopts electricity conservation,
emission reduction and energy-saving measures to
reduce GHG emissions, such measures include but
are not limited to:

e Actively adopt vehicle emission reduction
measures. Relevant measures are described in
the section headed “Exhaust Gas Emissions”;
and

e  Actively adopt measures for environmental
protection and energy conservation. Relevant
measures are described in the section headed
“Energy Management”.
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In the Previous Year, the Group has set a target
to keep the total GHG emissions intensity in 2024
lower than that of the Previous Year. The Group’s
total GHG emissions intensity during the Reporting
Period is similar to the Previous Year. The Group
continues to strengthen the current measures
and targets to maintain or reduce its current GHG
emissions intensity in next financial year.

The Group’s GHG emissions performance was as
follows:
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REEFE AERBERET=_F
“HENRERB AT EE
RBEFENER - NEBEHHE -
AEENREREHERATEHE
BEFERE AEBESEE N
RIRBREEMBERE U T/
BEERFIEERRENEER
BHREE -

AREENREREHBGERDT

Indicator? Unit Emissions
EE2 By e
FY2024 FY2023
“EMBFE —T_=HF
Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) tCOe 1,043.62 1,093.43
BEEAERBHHR(EE) M-S e E
Energy Indirect GHG emissions
(Scope 2) tCO,e 1,545.00 2,246.81
BEREERERBER (HE2) WS E 2
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and 2) tCO.e 2,588.62 3,340.24
BAERBHNES (BE1K2) WE A iR E 2
Total GHG emissions intensity® tCO,e/thousand revenue 0.019 0.019

BEREENE BT

Note(s):

2. GHG emissions data presented above were based on “How to
prepare an ESG Report — Appendix II: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” issued by the HKEX, “The Greenhouse Gas
Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards”
issued by the World Resources Institute and the World
Business Council for Sustainable Development, the global
warming potential values from the “IPCC Fifth Assessment
Report” and “IPCC Sixth Assessment Report”, the “Notice on
the Management of Enterprise Greenhouse Gas Emissions
Reporting by Power Generation Industry for 2023-2025" issued
by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the PRC In 2023,
“CLP 2024 Sustainability Report ESG Data Hub” published by
CLP Holdings Limited, and “HKEI Sustainability Report 2023”
published by HK Electric Investment Limited.

3. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total revenue was
approximately HK$139.6 million (2023:HK$178.5 million). The
data is also be used for calculating other intensity data.
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Sewage Discharge

During daily operations, the Group generates
domestic sewage mainly in the course of food
preparation and cleaning. The sewage generated will
first be purified in the subsurface sewage treatment
system, then discharged to the urban sewage pipe
network. The Group has rigorously monitored the
usage and disposal of the sewage, and complies
with relevant laws and regulations to meet local
government sewage discharge standards. Since
the Group’s sewage are discharged through the
municipal sewage pipe network to the regional
water purification plant, our sewage discharged is
considered as the water consumed. Hence, the
performance of sewage discharged will be disclosed
in the section headed “Water Management”.

Waste Management

No hazardous waste is generated from the Group’s
routine operations in both Hong Kong and the PRC.
Non-hazardous wastes generated mainly come
from food wastes, used cooking oil, and other
domestic wastes such as wastepaper. The Group
adheres to the waste management principles and
strives to properly manage and dispose all wastes
produced in its business activities. The Group’s
waste management practices comply with related
environmental protection laws and regulations.

Hazardous Wastes

Although the Group did not generate hazardous
wastes, the Group has established guidelines
in governing the management and disposal of
hazardous wastes. In case there are any hazardous
wastes produced, the Group is required to engage
a qualified chemical wastes collector to handle such
wastes, and complied with relevant environmental
rules and regulations. The reduction target of
hazardous wastes was not applicable to the Group.

HRMVHERERAR —T _NFFERE

5 IKEE IR

REFLED AEEXZEERM
SUERIBRBREPELELIEITK -
EEMSKE LRI TI5KEE
Rl RREBNEHTS
IKE M e AN E B AR BE RIS K
ERANMGRE WETHREERER
AT & & BT 65 /K BE AR 2
REBERSKEBTBISKE B
PRI E MR KER - R FI85
IKBEMEBHRBAKE - Bt - 75
KB AR RKER] —

T -

BEYEE
AREEBRFENRTENB T EE
VTERELBEEED MELENE
EEVMEIEREFSR EEAN
R R E AL AR REY) (RREEAR) -
AEBRTEMEERA BN
ZEBERBEXRGADELN
FTBEYD AEENENERE
B ARBENRREEER

BEEY
BEAEERELEFED B
DRIBEENEEREERES| -
HEEEAEEEY AKEA
REAERNILERYKEER
BULEREY W EBTHEBNIRE
RAIRKH - AEELEEERE
YRR B AR



Non-hazardous Wastes
Food Wastes

Food wastes are considered as the major types of
non-hazardous waste generated during the course
of our business operation as being a corporation
that is engaged in providing and delivering catering
and dining services. The Group has developed
stringent policies and procedures in managing food
wastes, and has appointed qualified professional
third parties in collecting and handling the food
waste generated. With regards to the used cooking
oil, the waste oil generated during the cooking
process is collected and handled by qualified third
party companies, therefore relevant data is not
available. The used cooking oil generated in our
business operation in PRC is collected and recycled
by a waste oil company to produce biodiesel. The
biodiesel burns cleaner than traditional diesel or
petrol, resulting in fewer GHG emissions.

The Group has also placed several designated
garbage bins in different areas in kitchens for staff
to centralise food wastes. The Group also puts
posters on walls to remind employees to reduce
food waste and encourage them to only take
the food they need in order to avoid waste. The
qualified wastes collector will collect these garbage
bins on a daily basis to ensure the environmental
hygiene of kitchens and restaurants. Apart from
appointing qualified third parties in handling food
wastes, the Group has also implemented various
measures in minimising food waste, such as making
better use of food ingredients. During the Reporting
Period, all food wastes generated by the Group
were collected and handled by qualified third party
wastes collectors.
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Other Wastes

Other wastes generated by the Group are mainly
office papers and dim sum papers. The Group
takes action to reduce waste by using less material
to minimise waste generation and preserve natural
resources. More specifically, the Group has adopted
various initiatives to minimise the generation of such
wastes which include but are not limited to:

Promote double-sided printing to utilise the use
of paper efficiently;

e Use recycled paper for printing and copying;

° Utilise electronic communication where
applicable; and

e Distribute office memos to remind staff to only
print necessary materials to avoid wastage.

Employees’ waste reduction awareness has been
raised by above waste reduction initiatives. The
Group’s paper waste during 2024 increased slightly
when comparing with the Previous Year. The Group
continues implementing waste reduction measures
and targets to maintain or reduce its current waste
disposal intensity in the next financial year.
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The Group’s waste disposal performance was as REERBEYREEST
follows:
Indicator Unit Disposal
B By EZEE
FY2024 FY2023
SECDMBFE —T_=HF
Office paper tonnes 0.57 0.72
N3 A
Dim sum paper tonnes 1.52 1.23
BHAR 47
Total non-hazardous wastes tonnes 2.09 1.95
EEEYBE i
Total non-hazardous waste intensity ~ tonnes/million revenue 0.015 0.010
BEEVEERE mE, B & T A
A2. Use of Resources A2. ERfE R
The Group understands that efficient use of AEBRARBERERRBRD
resources is one of the critical methods to reduce MESNEEREZZ2— BME
carbon footprint. We have implemented relevant FERD AR IR IR IR RN B 1B &8
environmental policies and taken initiatives to ERAEENEBKELSIAER
introduce resource efficiency and eco-friendly MERIRRENE - AEEEHE
measures to the Group’s operations. The Group AR KEBEMEERK
has established relevant policies and procedures in EREF UERSRERME
governing the use of energy, water and packaging BRI TBERNFERAMRER -

material with reference to the objective of achieving
higher efficiency and reducing the unnecessary use
of materials.
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Energy Management

The energy consumption of the Group was mainly
contributed by electricity consumption for operation,
petrol consumption for vehicles, and towngas and
natural gas for cooking. The Group advocates
the principle of efficient use of energy. Employees
are required to adopt the related measures and
initiatives, and assume responsibility for the
Group’s overall energy efficiency. By establishing an
energy management system, we regularly review
our energy objectives and strive to continuously
enhance the Group’s energy performance. Abnormal
consumption of energy will be investigated to find
out the root causes, and corresponding preventive
measures will be taken where deemed necessary.

The Group has introduced various measures and
initiatives to achieve the goal of electricity-saving and
efficient consumption. For example, the employees
are expressly required to turn off all unnecessary
electronic appliances and devices when they are
not in use to avoid wastage of electricity. Restaurant
and office facilities maintenance are conducted
regularly to ensure optimal efficiency. The Group
gives priority to using LED lightings instead of
traditional lamps and incorporating daylighting
where possible to minimise the use of electricity for
lightings.

In the Previous Year, the Group has set a target to
maintain or lower total energy consumption intensity
in 2024 compared to the Previous Year. In 2024,
the Group’s total energy consumption intensity
(MWh/thousand revenue) decreased compared to
the Previous Year, mainly due to the decrease in the
Group’s revenue. The Group continues to implement
energy-saving measures and targets to maintain
or reduce its current energy consumption intensity
(MWh/thousand revenue) in the next financial year.
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The Group’s energy consumption performance was

REBHBEROB AT

as follows:
Indicator Unit Consumption
A L B
FY2024 FY2023
SECDMBFE —T_=HF
Total energy consumption MWh 9,004.29 9,252.70
BEFEEE JK FLBF
Total energy consumption intensity* ~ MWh/thousand revenue 0.065 0.052
REFREERE KRR, F A
MWh/m? 0.76 0.78
JKEE,TF K
Direct energy consumption®
BEREFES
Unleaded petrol MWh 119.25 135.67
i DR JKELBF
Towngas MWh 615.55 648.96
R JKELBF
Natural gas MWh 4,459.55 4.608.74
RAR JK LB
Indlirect energy consumption
A BEFE
Purchased electricity MWh 3,809.94 3,859.33
BEE KB
Note(s): BSE -
4. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total floor area was 4. RHEEHME ZAEENEEEAR

approximately 11,788.25 m? (2023: 11,788.25 m?). The data will

also be used for calculating other intensity data.

The unit conversion method of direct energy consumption
data is based on the “Energy Statistic Manual” issued by the

International Energy Agency.
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Water Management

Water consumption is mainly from tap water used in
restaurants for cleaning and sanitisation purposes.
Due to the geographical location of the Group’s
operations, the Group did not encounter any
issues in sourcing water that was fit for purpose.
While providing high-quality catering service, we
still encourage our employees and customers to
develop the habit of conscious water use in order to
minimise water consumption.

The Group has been strengthening its water-
saving promotion in various ways, such as
posting water-saving slogans near water outlets in
kitchens, washrooms and sink areas, and guiding
employees to use water reasonably. Water pipes
and water taps are also checked regularly to
prevent water leakage. If abnormal conditions are
detected, employees are required to report to the
departmental managers and related departments
for repairment.

In the Previous Year, the Group has set a target to
maintain or lower total water consumption intensity
in 2024 compared to the Previous Year. In 2024,
the Group’s total water consumption intensity (m3/
thousand revenue) increased compared to the
Previous Year, mainly due to the decrease in the
Group’s revenue. The Group continues to implement
energy-saving measures and targets to maintain or
reduce its current water consumption intensity (m®/
thousand revenue) in the next financial year.
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The Group’s water consumption performances were REEZFEKIBRAT
as follows:
Indicator Unit Consumption
A L B
FY2024 FY2023
SECDMBFE —T_=HF
Water m? 87,587.00 89,384.20
FA7K ST K
Water consumption intensity m?3/thousand revenue 0.63 0.50
FKEE SR F A
ms/m? 7.43 7.58
SR T K
Use of Packaging Materials BEMEHE A
The packaging materials used by the Group are KE HEEANREMBAEERA
mainly plastic containers and bags for take-away RINEETEMNBRASIRET -
orders. We require our staff to maximise the use BMEREIZAREMANAS
of space within each packaging materials in order E BERMBOZER LN 2RE
to avoid over-packaging. During the Reporting Ko RWMEHHE XEEHEAED
Period, the Group has consumed approximately 2 O0ME (ZZ =4 : 2.50MF) %8
2.00 tonnes (2023: 2.50 tonnes) plastic packaging BefmE - BETF Tl A%0.014
materials, which approximates to 0.014 kg (2023: AT (ZEZ=F : 00142/7) °
0.014 kg) per thousand revenue. The consumption BRBEERERFET -

of plastic package remains at a stable level.
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A3.

A4.

The Environment and Natural Resources
In addition to complying with relevant environmental
laws and regulations for protecting the natural
environment, we have integrated the concepts
of environmental protection and natural resource
conservation into our internal management and
daily operations in order to achieve environmental
sustainability. To minimise the impact brought by oil
and grease in wastewater when providing catering
service, we engaged with recognised service
providers to perform regular vacuum cleaning and
handle the wastewater according to corresponding
regulations.

Being a high-quality catering service provider, the
Group heavily emphasises on indoor air quality.
The Group has strict control over air quality
management. Smoking is prohibited in all areas
within restaurants. Any person who is found
to have violated such rule will be subjected to
disciplinary action, up to and including termination
of employment. Besides, the Group has installed
exhaust emission systems and air pollution control
equipment, including mechanical ventilation systems
and oil fume exhaust filters in all restaurants. This
helps to minimise the oil fume emissions and odour
nuisance arising from our restaurant operations.
Apart from these measures, the Group will also
conduct regular cleaning of the air conditioning
systems to ensure a high level of indoor air quality
is provided for both employees and customers.
Moreover, the Group has maintained sufficient
numbers of air purifiers in restaurant and office area.

Climate change

Climate change and global warming are the
major environmental concerns in recent decades,
and the risks brought by climate change may
inevitably spread to the catering service industry. In
response to the community’s growing concern on
climate change and related issues, the Group has
implemented a Climate Change Policy on climate
mitigation, adaptation and resilience across its
operations and along the value chain.
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Pursuant to the international recommendations from
Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures
(“TCFD”) established by the Financial Stability
Board, the Group has evaluated and recognised
the impact of climate-related risks on the Group’s
business. With reference to the risk categorisation
by TCFD, the identified climate-related risks of the
Group and corresponding actions taken to manage
them are as follows:

Physical Risks

With regards to acute physical risks, the increasing
frequency and severity of extreme weather events
such as typhoons, floods, and heavy rainfall,
may cause damage to the Group’s properties
and disruptions to the supply chain network, and
increase the risks for staff during the journey to
work. These events may lead to reduced revenue,
as well as an increase in the cost of repairing or
restoring damaged sites and operations.

To address the risk, we maintain a large supplier
base to ensure that there are alternative choices for
goods in the event of our suppliers being affected
by extreme weather conditions. Also, the Group has
established a work arrangement policy to provide
clear guidelines for staff under extreme weather
conditions. Response and emergency plans
under extreme weather events are also in place in
accordance with corresponding guidelines from the
local governments and the Group has purchased
insurance for its employees and assets to avoid
potential losses
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Transition Risks

There are more stringent climate-related legislations
and regulations to support the global vision of
decarbonisation. For instance, the Stock Exchange
has required listed companies to enhance climate-
related disclosures in their ESG reports. Stricter
environmental laws and regulations may expose
enterprises to higher risks of claims and lawsuits.
Corporate reputation may also decline due to failure
to meet the compliance requirements for climate
change. In addition, consumers’ awareness of
climate change issues has increased over the years
and customers may gradually turn to restaurants
that actively promote and integrate sustainability in
their operations. If the Group fails to adapt to this
shift in customer preference, it may face the risk
associated with changes in market demand and
potentially lose its competitiveness.

In response to the transition risks, the ESG
Taskforce would continue to identify the risks
and opportunities faced by the Group regarding
climate change, monitor the updates in the latest
environmental-related laws and regulations and
regularly report to the Board to ensure the Group
meets the regulatory requirement and reduce the
impacts towards the business operation. In addition,
the Group continues to reduce GHG emissions and
energy consumption from our operations through
various environmental protection measures as
mentioned above, contributing to the mitigation of
climate change.
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B. Social B. &
B1. Employment B1. %

We regard our employees as the valuable assets of
the Group and are dedicated to providing them with
equal and fair treatment. We believe that success
in hiring, training and retaining talents is critical in
providing reliable and quality services.

We have established relevant employment policies
to fulfil our vision on people-oriented management
strategy and realise the full potential of employees.
Relevant employment policies are formally
documented in the Employee Handbook, covering
aspects including recruitment, promotion and
dismissal, remuneration and benefits, working hours
and rest periods, diversity and equal opportunities,
etc. The Group will review these policies and
employment practices periodically to ensure the
continuous improvements of our employment
standards.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was
not aware of any non-compliance with laws
and regulations relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare,
including but not limited to the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance (Cap.57), the Hong Kong
Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap.608), the Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China, and the
Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China that would have a significant impact on the
Group.
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Recruitment, Promotion and Dismissal

We adopt a robust, transparent, and fair recruitment
process based on merit selection against the
job criteria, and recruit individuals based on their
suitability for the position and their potential to
fulfil the Group’s current and future needs. To
ensure fairness and equality, we never evaluate
candidates by gender, age, race, family status,
religion or disability status, etc. The Group attracts
talents through open recruitment, and candidates
are subject to assessments (both written and
technical depending on position’s requirement)
prior to employment. Employment decisions will be
made based on results of the assessment, work
experience and overall ability of the candidate.

The Group specifies the basis and process for
employees’ transfer and promotion. Regular
performance reviews are carried out to assess
employees’ abilities. We offer transfer and internal
promotion opportunities for employees who
have outstanding work performance to optimise
the allocation of human resources within the
Group. Transfer of job positions can either be
recommended by department supervisors or
through self-application; while promotions are
required to be recommended by department heads.
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As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a total RZEZWFE+=—HA=+—H K
of 319 (as at 31 December 2023: 430) employees EEAHEBEA39RE (R ==
in the reporting scope. The breakdowns of our F+-_A=+—H:430%) B®
workforce by gender, employment type, age group HEHEZES - BRMIRER - EBE
and geographical region are as follows: A FRARNRMWERIEE S
2% TR -

As at As at

31 December 31 December

Category Bl 2024 2023

RIBE-NE RB-_=F
+=A=+-8 +=A=+—H

By gender g Ar- o

Male S 72% 71%

Female peg 28% 29%

By employment type ZIEBEZ 5

Full-time 25 98% 94%

Part-time R 2% 6%

By age group 12 E i B &) 77

Under 30 years old 30BR AT 34% 44%

30-50 years old 30-50 5% 39% 30%

Over 50 years old 50m% A £ 27% 26%

By geographic region Tzt 72 [ 15 2 77

Hong Kong BB 6% 6%

The PRC H 94% 94%
The Group has formulated standardised procedures AEBECH CEENRERT
for dismissal. The dismissal process will only RERFESKRBEGIEASE#RIT
be proceeded with a reasonable basis, and the REBEZE FERIAEGENERE-
Group forbids unreasonable dismissal under any AEEBBEREEABEANRE
circumstances. The Group will ensure sufficient BEAETRD BB - EERA
communication has been conducted on the SEBEBE ABFAELRME
problems prior to official dismissal. Employees FEANNERE -

are required to return all company property to the
Human Resource Department upon leaving the
Group.
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During the Reporting Period, the turnover rate® of
total employees is 91% (2023: 62%). The increase
in turnover rate during the Reporting Period is
attributed from the nature of the high turnover rate
in food and beverage industry.

The turnover rate® by gender, age group and

REEHE  BERE 2K K
HB91% (ZE =4 :62%) ° i}
EHEZRAREATIARR SR
MRBITENSRAREERE -

RIER - F AR R N IR & i 2l

geographical region are as follows: DZIMARESAT -
Category Hhl FY2024 FY2023
SEIMBFE —_T_=HF
By gender 14t FIE 5
Male Bt 96% 65%
Female pegis 76% 55%
By age group HFEEEFE 5
Under 30 years old 303 AT 154% 110%
31-50 years old 31-507% 47% 27%
Over 50 years old 50 B A 52% 25%
By geographic region Tzt 72 [ 15 2 77
Hong Kong A 62% 16%
The PRC F 93% 65%
Note(s): B3

6. Employee turnover rate = number of employees leaving
employment in the category during the financial year — average
number of employees in the category at the beginning and the
end of the financial year X 100%
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Remuneration and Benefits

The Group’s basis for remuneration is job-related
skills, qualifications, work performance, and market
conditions. Remuneration package includes
holidays and different leave types such as annual
leave, maternity leave, and sick leave. Due to the
Group’s business nature, the Group runs business
as usual on public holidays. Employees who are
working on public holidays are therefore granted
with compensatory leave. Besides, free meals and
staff quarters are provided for employees in the
PRC. Discretionary bonus may also be awarded
based on individual work performance.

In addition, the Group participates in the pension
scheme registered under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance of Hong Kong (the
“MPF Ordinance”) for employees in Hong Kong.
It is funded by contributions from employers
and employees pursuant to the provisions of the
MPF Ordinance. The Group also pays “five social
insurance and one housing fund” for its employees
in the PRC, namely, endowment insurance, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance, employment
injury insurance, maternity insurance and housing
provident fund, to ensure employees are covered
by social insurance. Moreover, employees of the
Group in the PRC are members of respective state-
managed defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes operated by the local governments. The
employers and employees are obliged to make
contributions at a certain percentage of the payroll
under rules of the schemes.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
RIE - tERERTE @)

7 BN K2 48 A

NS B W B T LA TIEARRE B8k -
BE THERARTSEERE
EETF FHNFBERERENAK
R -EBRAFRBESSHEER A
RASENEHEE  AKEHE
RABHPBRELE - FHlt - £RAR
B TENRE A ZXEHNR -
o AEEEREFBENET
RHZEBEHNREIBE A&
EreEREBEEATIERREREY

TBIEAL °

BESN  AE B2 IR EE B (58
HERATEE R ERGD(MREERE )
REBEEEMORKEF S -
RECRBEE RO HRTE  &E
REHEINREERMK KAEE
NRETFBEEESNIAR—%]
&R BERR RERR
ITEBRE £ERRMEEATES
NHEREEZELERE ot
AEENTREESEHRGTZ
B ER B R EE T RHE TR
TRFEIMIAX R - RIFFTFBIHIRE -
BELRBEAEHRIEN T
L BIETTHER

Kafelaku Coffee Holding Limited  Annual Report 2024 47



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
RIE - tERERTE @)

48

B2.

Diversity and Equal Opportunities

The Group is committed to creating and maintaining
an inclusive and collaborative workplace culture. We
are dedicated to providing equal opportunities in all
aspects of employment and maintaining workplaces
that are free from discrimination, physical or verbal
harassment against any individual on the basis of
gender, age, race, family status, religion, disability
status, colour, place of origin and sexual orientation.
With the aim of ensuring fair and equal protection
for all employees, we have zero tolerance on sexual
harassment or abuse in the workplace in any form.

Health and Safety

Employees’ health and safety are the most
concerned areas for the Group. We strive to
eliminate potential health and safety hazards at
the workplace. We have implemented guidelines,
policies and standard operating procedures
to ensure the health and safety of the working
environment, as well as providing employees
with a safe working environment. We follow
the occupational health and safety guidelines
recommended by the Hong Kong’s Occupational
Safety and Health Council and the Drug
Administration of Shenzhen Municipality.

The Group’s restaurant in Hong Kong satisfies the
requirements of the Hong Kong Public Health and
Municipal Services Ordinance (Cap.132) in respect
of means of ventilation, sanitary fitments, facilities
for cleansing equipment and utensils, means of
exit and entry, and fire safety. To maintain a safe
working environment and ensure employees’
health and safety, the Group has formulated and
implemented the Kitchen Safety Manual. The
Kitchen Safety Manual sets out clear guidance on
different occupational safety matters. Instructions
on the use of kitchen equipment are also provided
in the manual. In addition, the Group provides
employees with appropriate safety equipment to
protect their bodies from injuries at work. Relevant
policies and procedures are reviewed regularly by
the management to ensure their effectiveness.
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There were zero reported cases of work-related
fatalities for the past three years, including the
Reporting Period. There were 20 (2023: 17)
employees who were injured during work which
caused 434 (2023: 185) work days lost during
the Reporting Period. Relevant employees were
given adequate medical leaves in accordance
with applicable regulations while the medical
expenses were responsible by the Group in high-
consequence cases. Corresponding work safety
training has been delivered to employees after the
accidents happened to remind employees of good
safety practices. The Group will avoid work-related
injuries from happening in the future.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was
not aware of any non-compliance with laws and
regulations relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards, including but not limited to
the Hong Kong Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance (Cap.509), the Hong Kong Employees’
Compensation Ordinance (Cap.282), Work Safety
Law of the People’s Republic of China, Fire
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China
that would have a significant impact on the Group.

Fire Safety

The Group strictly follows the fire safety-related
laws and regulations. Fire equipment such as
fire extinguishers and fire blankets are placed in
accordance with the legal requirement. Fire safety
trainings are also arranged for employees across all
departments on a regular basis to raise awareness
of the threat posed by fire to people, property
and our business community. Employees of the
Group are required to be equipped with the basic
knowledge of fire-fighting, the skills of escape and
self-help in the event of a fire and be proficient
in using fire extinguishing equipment. Regular
fire and emergency drills will also be arranged
by the property management office and regional
governmental department for employees to ensure
employees are aware of the emergency procedures
and routes. In addition, the Group conducts regular
safety inspections to minimise the safety risks of
employees and ensure safety standards are met.
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B3. Development and Training

The Group offers a variety of training programmes
to employees based on their job duties. All new
employees have to attend induction training to learn
about the company structure, employee duties
and safety requirements. For front-line employees,
they are also trained with the topic of customer
services in order to attract and retain customers.
The Group regularly arranges vocational training on
food ingredients, food preparation and preservation,
flow of food production, hygiene conditions of the
kitchen and quality control in different aspects of the
restaurant operation to raise employees’ awareness
in providing high-quality catering service. The Group
has recorded the training details, assessment
results, and relevant information and has established
a training file for the management’s inspection.

The Group has always encouraged its Directors to
attend relevant training courses to receive the latest
news and knowledge regarding the Listing Rules,
corporate governance and other applicable statutory
and regulatory regimes. During the Reporting
Period, 94%" (2023: 64%) of total employees took
part in training with following breakdown by gender
and employment category:

B3. #E K EI
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Breakdown of

Category 5l Employees Trained®
ZIESHMA
FY2024 FY2023
—ECNME —T=HF
By gender ZIEFI# 7
Male B4 73% 68%
Female 4 27% 32%
By employment categories ZIEBERZ 5
Senior level personnel =RAEB 2% 1%
Middle level personnel FRAEB 13% 12%
Entry level personnel /AN E 85% 87%
Note(s): Bt 3
7.  Percentage of employees trained = number of employees 7. ZIREBEASHL=-RUKRFENZIE

trained during the financial year = number of employees at the
end of the financial year X 100%.

8. Breakdown of employees trained = number of employees
trained in the category during the financial year = total number
of employees trained during the financial year X 100%.
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The average training hours per employee® was 3.57
(2023: 4.29) hours with following breakdown by
gender and employment category:

BREE 2 VAR H357
N (ZB =5 4.29/\F) -
BRI RI R EEERIEI D Z RN T -

Category XAl Average training hours®
Fi9Z IR
FY2024 FY2023

“ENEBE ZE=HF

By gender 7z & 7

Male B 3.57 4.01

Female pegis 3.54 5.00

By employment category ZEBIER 27

Senior level personnel =2RAE 11.88 6.71

Middle level personnel FRAE 3.23 4.56

Entry level personnel IRANE 3.57 4.20

Note(s): sk -

9. Average training hours = number of training hours in the
category during the financial year = number of employees in
the category at the end of the financial year.

During the Reporting Period, the average training
hours of training decreased compared to the
Previous Year, mainly due to the increased workload
of the employees, thus less time is available for
training.
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B4. Labour Standards

Prevention of Child and Forced Labour
During the Reporting Period, the frequency and
duration of training increased compared to the
Previous Year, mainly due to the lifting of social
distancing measures in PRC.

The Group has formulated policies in determining
the working hours and rest periods for employees
in accordance with local employment laws. Work
schedules are arranged by department heads,
and employees can request the change in work
schedules by applying to department heads.
Furthermore, employees of the Group only work
overtime if necessary and on a voluntary basis.
We also prohibit any punishments, management
methods and behaviours involving verbal abuse,
physical punishment, physical abuse, oppression,
sexual harassment, etc. against our employees for
any reason. In case any child or forced labour is
noted, the Group would immediately prohibit the
arrangement and perform an investigation for the
cause and rectify the job arrangement.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any non-compliance with child and forced
labour-related laws and regulations, including
but not limited to the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance (Cap.57), the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China, and the Regulations on the
Prohibition of Using Child Labour in the People’s
Republic of China that would have a significant
impact on the Group.
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B5. Supply Chain Management B5. it ESEEIE

Sourcing capability plays an important role in the
management of restaurant operations, and an
effective supplier selection procedure is considered
an essential element for our business operation.
The Group sets up a supplier management system
to closely evaluate and monitor suppliers regularly
and puts forward requirements for suppliers on
environmental and social risk control.

The Group has established a rigorous supplier
selection system based on a set of selection
criteria including but not limited to price, quality
of ingredients, reputation, service quality, past
performance, and delivery efficiency. Background
search will also be performed to ensure that the
Group has proper understanding on the supplier
selected. The Group will also consider suppliers’
environmental and social risks during the supplier
selection process. Priority will be given to supplier
which holds certificates or accreditations related
to environmental or social issues as part of our
selection criteria.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had 126
(2023: 122) major suppliers in total with 42%
(2023: 43%) of suppliers from Hong Kong and
58% (2023: 57%) suppliers from PRC. All of such
suppliers have gone through the supplier selection
and assessment process of the Group before
engagement. Hong Kong and PRC suppliers are
served to corresponding operation locations to save
transportation cost and reduce carbon footprint by
limiting products that require long shipping time.
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The Group has formulated respective measures to
ensure suppliers could engage in fair competition
during the procurement process. Employees or
personnel having any interest in or relationship with
suppliers will not be allowed to participate in relevant
procurement activities. We have zero tolerance
towards bribery and corruption, and the practice
of partners or suppliers obtaining partnerships or
procurement contracts through any form of benefits
transfer is strictly prohibited.

To ensure a steady supply of food ingredients and
minimise the risks of non-delivery, substandard
products and suppliers’ delinquencies, the Group
sources major raw materials from a number of
approved suppliers. The Group places great
importance on the quality of raw materials and
closely monitors if the suppliers have met the
aforementioned criteria. The above-mentioned
procedure is applicable to all suppliers for the
Group.

In hopes of maintaining product quality and safety,
our Purchasing Department conducts supplier
reviews regularly in the areas of food quality,
delivery time, food packaging, compliance with
operation and accreditation etc. All suppliers
are required to hold valid licences issued by the
government, while all imported goods shall obtain
proper clearance from respective authorities. Goods
received from suppliers have to comply with the
food labelling requirements and relevant hygiene
and sanitary regulations. To safeguard the quality
and condition of goods, suppliers with records of
material environmental or social accidents will be
excluded from the list of suppliers. Relevant policies
and procedures are reviewed regularly by the
management to ensure their effectiveness.
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B6. Product Responsibility B6. EmEE

As a high-quality Chinese restaurant operator,
we prioritise food safety and service quality. The
Group actively monitors the food and service
quality through internal controls. We also maintain
communication with our customers to understand
customers’ needs and satisfaction levels and to
meet their expectations.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws
and regulations relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters for
products and services provided, including but
not limited to the Hong Kong Trade Descriptions
Ordinance (Cap.362), Food Safety Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Protection of the Rights and
Interests of the Consumers, and the Advertising
Law of the People’s Republic of China that would
have a significant impact on the Group.

Food Quality and Safety

The Group has placed great effort into ensuring and
maintaining the quality of food and ingredients for
restaurants’ daily operations. We have implemented
a Quality Control System that emphasises food
hygiene and safety as well as the sanitation and
cleanliness of restaurant premises. The Quality
Control System covers every aspect from food
preparation and cooking to the dining environment
of restaurants. We have also developed a series of
food safety policies for employees according to the
standards as required by governmental authorities.
Restaurant managers are responsible to monitor the
operations and performances of the restaurants so
to ensure the restaurant operations are consistent
with the Group’s established guidelines and policies.
All employees, in particular kitchen staff, are
required to strictly obey the policies on daily food
preservation and preparation, dress code and food
processing instructions.
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Raw materials and food ingredients are only
sourced from the approved supplier list endorsed
by the Group’s senior management. We select food
ingredients mainly based on the place of origin,
freshness, nutritional value, and consumption
safety. Freshness and quality of the raw materials
and food ingredients are examined on a regular
basis. The Group would cease sourcing from those
suppliers who fail to provide quality food ingredients
as specified.

We also place great emphasis on the food
ingredients preservation process by developing
different standards and guidelines on the storage
of food ingredients. The Group has developed a
warehouse management system to specify different
instructions and measures to standardise the daily
logistics of the warehouse. Such measures include
storing food ingredients separately, tagging food
with exclusive labels, and marking opening dates for
each package of food to prevent consumption after
the expiry date. It is believed that such measures
can better maintain food safety while ensuring food
quality.

For catering services for major events and dinners
with more than 100 persons, the Group has
implemented the Food Sample Reservation Policy
and assigned designated personnel to trace the
source of material when food safety incidents
occur. The policy includes the details of the
required sample quantity, proper labelling, storage
conditions, maintaining records, and sample
sealing and verification in case of any abnormalities.
Additionally, it emphasises the dedicated use of
the refrigerator for food samples and the need
for locking the sample during important reception
activities.

In addition, the hygiene of cutlery and utensils is
cleaned and sanitised routinely to ensure food
safety. Instructions for cleaning and sanitising
utensils are posted on kitchen walls to ensure
employees are aware of the procedures for cleaning
cutlery and utensils.

HERMBHERAR AR —T_MFFERE

RMHEREMEREECHRNEE
SREEEHENHERSE -
BRPEBREBEL MEE 2
BEMRAZEMEERM -
MeEBmERN M RRMEOH
HEErEE - AEEKEFELAE
ERHETEERMOHEERE
TTERAB -

BT EEREMOFREFRER
I B R A B 17 R B E A RS 2 K
/ol - AEBREYREEERSR -
FIATREMIERRERARER
EHREYR ZEHEEERED
RiEHREM ERYMLRUEZESR
SH - UANEBOHRYDLEERE
ERHHIEBREER -HfIHEE
ZEREAIAEBRRRMEEN
RN EHFHRITRMAELE

HR100 A EMREEE RBRE
MESRKRYS AEEEET RM
BEBRR YREBELERALESE
W IHEREABPRARIR © 5%
BRBEMENELAKRE Ef®
RIZE - BRI - RTS8 5
AHTFURHRESHNZES
FEIB o AN - RZBUR MR T RS
KN ERMEUAREEEEFE
BRI TERANEN -

o BARMKEGEMZER
HE  NHERRMEZE - HHEEE
tHREERBRRESHA
®ER THERLRANBRIER



The shop manager and senior management are
responsible for implementing various quality control
measures on food production, including, among
others, checking the quality upon purchase of raw
materials, receipt of food ingredients, and cooking
and serving of foods.

During the Reporting Period, no products sold
were recalled for safety and health reasons and no
material complaints were received regarding the
products and services provided to customers (2023:
Nil).

Customer Service

High quality and customer-centric service are
fundamental to our business success. To achieve
this, the Group developed standardised service
management policies. The Group has set up
comprehensive and concrete instructions to guide
employees in providing quality customer service
manners. Such guidelines include the correct
positioning of dishes and the handling method of
food trays, etc. All instructions are illustrated with
pictures and posted in kitchen areas so to provide
employees with a clear image of the appropriate
and standardised method of delivering when
serving customers. We believe these instructions
and guidelines can help to improve employees’
customer service manner while building the Group’s
image of a high-quality catering service provider.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s Hong
Kong restaurant was accredited with The Quality
Tourism Services (“QTS”) Scheme administered
by The Hong Kong Tourism Board. Under the
scheme, QTS Scheme accredited establishments
must pass stringent annual assessments showing
that we met high standards of product quality and
service. To maintain high-quality hygiene standards
of restaurants, the Group has regularly engaged
external suppliers to clean the fish tanks and
carpets, as well as carry out pest control practice.
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We value every comment and feedback from
customers. Customers are encouraged to provide
feedback directly to staff or managers in the
restaurant or through our corporate email listed on
our website. All reviews and comments received
from customers are reviewed by restaurant
managers and the senior management and
considered for improvement and rectification. To
actively collect customer feedback, we conduct
customer satisfaction surveys annually.

We also provide regular training to employees in
handling enquiries and complaints in a decent and
professional manner. Restaurant managers are
responsible for settling complaints and carrying out
further and follow-up actions to improve the quality
of catering service provided by the restaurant. The
senior management regularly reviews the complaint
record and the actions taken by the restaurant
manager so as to improve service quality and offer
the required resources.

Advertising and Labelling

We maintain highest integrity in promoting our
products and services in ways that do not mislead
consumers. Clear and reliable information about our
products helps customers make informed choices.
We strictly adhere to the Trade Descriptions
Ordinance (Cap.362) of Hong Kong and relevant
laws and regulations in PRC. The Group advertises
our restaurants through a variety of platforms
including corporate website, billboards, and floor
directories, etc. The Group organises promotion
campaigns and creates advertising materials in
compliance with relevant legislations and code of
practices and in a reliable and reasonable way in
order to protect consumers’ interests, rights and
benefits.
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Intellectual Property Rights

The Group strives to protect its intellectual property
rights and respect the intellectual property rights of
other parties. The Group’s employees are prohibited
from infringement of the intellectual property of
the Group or third parties. Only licenced software
was allowed to be used in restaurants and back
offices. We closely monitor the status of all existing
licence and trademarks to ensure the validity of the
Company’s intellectual property rights.

Customer Data Privacy

The Group emphasises the importance of the
protection of the confidential data of our customers.
To ensure data privacy, all documents containing
sensitive personal data are only allowed to be used
within the operation area. The data is restricted
to be used by the authorised employees who are
required to fully comply with the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance (Cap.486) of Hong Kong and
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC at all
times when handling customers’ personal data.
Such procedures are reviewed regularly by the
management to ensure their effectiveness.

Anti-corruption

The Group believes that a corporate culture with
integrity is not only a foundation for corporate social
responsibility, but also a cornerstone to the Group’s
continued success. We value the importance
of anti-corruption work and do not tolerate any
corruption, fraud and all other behaviours violating
work ethics. The Group does not allow any forms of
corruption. Disciplinary measures will be taken once
corruption is identified and confirmed. The Group
has established the Code of Business Conducts
and has put in place internal control mechanism
to prevent the occurrence of fraud, theft, bribery,
corruption and other misconducts involving
employees, customers and other third parties.
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The Group has formulated and documented
policies in the employee handbook that prohibit
employees from performing acts that will result in
any form of corruption, and such policies include
prohibiting employees from receiving gifts and
tips from customers, and prohibiting employees
from obtaining or providing benefits to customers,
contractors, suppliers or those who have business
relationships with the Group. During the Reporting
Period, 6 Directors and 1 employee received a total
of 28 hours of training which covers anti-corruption
related information. Updated anti-corruption training
materials and information are also circulated to
employees and Directors regularly to raise their
awareness towards anti-corruption and keep them
updated on the latest requirements.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering, including but not limited to
the Hong Kong Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
(Cap.201), Company Law of the People’s Republic
of China, and Bidding Law of the People’s Republic
of China that would have a significant impact on the
Group. Also, there were no concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought against us or
our employees during the Reporting Period (2023:
Nil).

Whistle-blowing Mechanism

The Group has established a whistle-blowing
system and implemented the Whistle-blowing
Policy. This allows stakeholders to report
suspicious negligence, corruption, bribery and other
misconduct to the Group anonymously. Any whistle-
blowing related reports and complaints will be
handled by senior management in a prompt and fair
manner when cases are received. All reported cases
are investigated confidentially to ensure the whistle-
blower is protected. Therefore, the employee
reporting in good faith under the whistle-blowing
mechanism can be assured of protection against
unfair dismissal or victimisation, even if the reports
are subsequently proved to be unsubstantiated.
Such policies and procedures are reviewed regularly
by the management to ensure their effectiveness.
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B8. Community Investment B8. HE®RE

The Group recognises that the long-term viability of
the Group’s business is closely linked with the well-
being of society. We are committed to emboldening
and supporting the public by means of social
participation and contribution as part of its strategic
development. The Community Investment Policy
has been established on community investment
to nurture the corporate culture and encourage its
employees to participate in community services to
give back to the members of the public.

During the Reporting Period, the Group focused
on its business development, therefore the Group
has not participated in any community events. The
Group values returning to the social, and will seek
more opportunities to join charity events in the
future.
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Content Index of the ESG Reporting Guide HBXFERE  HBREARHKERES

of the Stock Exchange

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

AR =]

Section/Declaration

EERBEER 3 Xl

Governance Structure Introduction — Board Statement
EIRRE HEEESEH

Reporting Principles Reporting Principles

WERA wERA

Reporting Boundary Reporting Scope and Framework
HmEEE Hd EE RAER

Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPIs  Description Section/Declaration
TEHE BEH —REER
BEREMIER it 5H B9
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEA : BERY
General Disclosure Information on: Emissions
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
— AR EE FRABERIOAZEREBHYM - MKkt BEHRY
HWEEES  BlREREBEEMHE
HEEH
@ BR: Rk
b)) BEBFHBETAGEAZENEH
ERERBER -
KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective Emissions — Exhaust Gas

RS A IEIR AL
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emissions data.
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Subject Areas, Aspects,

WwE oA

General Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
TEHE -EBHE - —

BREMIER it 5689

KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect Emissions — GHG Emissions

RS A IR IEAL2

KPI' A1.3

BESRAEWIRIZEA1.S

KPI A1.4

BB A 1R A4

KPI A1.5
AR B IR IEALS

KPI A1.6

RAEE IR IZA1.6

(Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
E%(ﬁﬁ1ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ%(ﬁﬁ2hﬁ
EREBHENE (LAMEETE) & (W#ERA)
“HJ*(ZZDLAAFE B - BRI
) -
Total hazardous waste produced
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
FELEEREDRE (AMGE)
k(nER) BE (M EES B -
BIERBAHE) °
Total non-hazardous waste produced
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
ELXEERZEDRAE (ANEGE)
M(Em) BmE (A EES B -
BIERBAHE) °
Description of emissions target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.
BRI UMM ER R R AEDE
L B R P EREREY AP B -
Description of how hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes are handled,
and a description of reduction target(s)
set and steps taken to achieve them.
HEEEERBEEEMN A
R AAET L HREE B R R REDE
L B R P EREREY AP 5K -

B — R EREEHEN

Emissions — Waste Management

B —EmEE

Emissions — Waste Management

B —EEYE IR

Emissions
B

Emissions — Wastes Management

B — e R
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs
TEHR - EEH - —REER
BARENER

Description

it

Section/Declaration

N1

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BHEA2: EREMR

General Disclosure

— R E

KPI'A2.1

B8 52 4B IR IE A2

KPI A2.2

BB A IR R A2.2

KPI A2.3

RAREIRIZA2.3

KPI A2.4

RARE IR IZA2.4

KPI A2.5

RS A IR IEA2.5

64

Policies on the efficient use of
resources, including energy, water and
other raw materials.
BRERAER(BERER - KR EAM
JRAEL) B BUER o

Direct and/or indirect energy
consumption by type (e.g. electricity,
gas or oail) in total (kWh in ’000s) and
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

REAE DN ERE R SEEEIR (40
T Agol) BiEE (AT ETREER
B)RBE(WMASESEN  BER
MRt E) o

Water consumption in total and
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

RFEKERTEERE (WASESEEM
BERBAHE) °

Description of energy use efficiency
target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

AT RT L AR E A B IR R B
EDELEBSAERRNTRE -
Description of whether there is any
issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.

i 1t SR EE A KR £ R B (] i R
IARFEI LMKz B R ABES
EL B EMEREE SR

Total packaging material used for
finished products (in tonnes) and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

B m TR BEME R EE (AT
B)RiER  SEEBUhE -

HRMVHERERAR —T _NFFERE

Use of Resources

BIRER

Use of Resources — Energy
Management

BRER—ERERE

Use of Resources — Water
Management

BRER—-RKER

Use of Resources — Energy
Management

BRER—ERERE

Use of Resources — Water
Management

BRER-—AKER

Use of Resources — Use of
Packaging Materials

BIRER—BEMFHER
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Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
TEHE BEH —REER
BRENER it 3 X

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BHEHA3: RERXARER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s The Environment and Natural
significant impact on the environment Resources
and natural resources.

— AR EE ﬁﬁ%ﬁAﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁé RERRAEIR
AT EBR
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts The Environment and Natural

of activities on the environment and Resources
natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them.

R A B IR A3 R EBEHHRBERRAABRNE RERRRER
AVERERDNEBEHTENTH -

Aspect A4: Climate Change

BHEHA4: RIZEL

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation ~ Climate change
of significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which
may impact the issuer.

—RRWE Bl M EHE R R %Qﬁ%ﬁAF RixEL
ATENBEARKEBEENBRR
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate  Climate change

related issues which have impacted,
and those which may impact the issuer,
and the actions taken to manage
them.
R A WU IR A4 R RAREGHETAEETE SRt
WEAREHEBEE  MEHTE -
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Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
TEHE BEH —REER
BREMER it 3 X
Aspect B1: Employment
EBEB1: EE
General Disclosure Information on: Employment
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
antidiscrimination, and other benefits
and welfare.
— PRI EE TR E BEREA IE ERE
K& R TEHE Zit- K
e 4R A R L Ath 55 38 B AR R Y
(@ EE: &k
(b)) BEBFHBTAGEAXENEH
ERRBOINEH -
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, Employment — Recruitment,

RSB IR IE B A
KPI B1.2

FAS AR MIEIRB1.2

employment type (for example, full- or
part-time), age group and geographical
region.

IR - EERE (N2 RERE) -
FlER R E| 5 EE BB -
Employee turnover rate by gender, age
group and geographical region.
IR FicAR MRS D HES
i = =3

66 HRMHERERAT —ToMEEERS

Promotion and Dismissal

RIE—HE &7 KER

Employment — Recruitment,
Promotion and Dismissal
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs
TEHR - EEH - —REER
ARENER

Description

it

Section/Declaration

8001

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
BEB2: BREEZZE

General Disclosure

—MRIX R

KPI B2.1

R E IR IZ B2.1
KPI B2.2

MREMIEIRB2.2
KPI B2.3

FAS A MG 1R B2.3

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working

environment and protecting employees

from occupational hazards.

FAREZ2TERRRRE RS @

RREMEED

(@ HEX: R

b) EBTHEITATEAZENEH
FERRBOIER -

Number and rate of work-related

fatalities occurred in each of the past

three years including the reporting

year.

BE=F (BHEERFE)BFATL

THEOAB R E -

Lost days due to work injury.

EIBEAITERS-

Description of occupational health and

safety measures adopted, and how

they are implemented and monitored.

P ER A B R R B 22 245

AREBERITRERT -

Health and Safety

Health and Safety

fEREZ E
Health and Safety

fRRER S
Health and Safety

(R
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs
TEHR - EEH - —REER
BARENER

Description

it

Section/Declaration

N1

Aspect B3: Development and Training

EEB3 : 2R K&

General Disclosure

— R

KPI B3.1

BB AE IR 1R B3

KPI B3.2

R A IE1EB3.2

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EEB4 : & T A

General Disclosure

— MK R

KPI B4.1

Ba SR A IR 12 B4.1
KPI B4.2

FA S AR IR 1R B4.2

68

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training
activities.
EHARAEERITIIEBEMNAH KR
KREEHVIR - B aE® -

The percentage of employees trained
by gender and employee category
(e.g. senior management, middle
management).

RIEFIREERR (NEREEE -
HRERE) EDNXIEET DL
The average training hours completed
per employee by gender and employee
category.

RIERIREERRIE D  BEEE R
EElERSSlis3

Information on:

(@ the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced

labour.

BN IEET K& 55T :

(@ EE: &k

b) EBTHETATEAZENERH
ERRBOIEHR -

Description of measures to review

employment practices to avoid child

and forced labour.

f i st RIS B DI B AR 2 B T

Ksg T -

Description of steps taken to eliminate

such practices when discovered.

R EIFERBARERABIER

FREREREY 2P 8% o

HRMVHERERAR —T _NFFERE

Development and Training

R MIE

Development and Training

R MaE

Development and Training

TR R

Labour Standards

Labour Standards — Prevention
of Child and Forced Labour

BTHRA-FFIEET
a8 %5 T

Labour Standards — Prevention
of Child and Forced Labour

BTAEA-FIEET
Kog 25 T
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs
TEHR - EEH - —REER
ARENER

Description

it

Section/Declaration

8001

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

EEBS : ftEEEE

General Disclosure

—RRINE
KPI B5.1

B 4R B 1R B5.A
KPI B5.2

FASE AR IR 1R B5.2

KPI B5.3

BE SR A IR IEB5.3

KPI B5.4

FAR A M5 1R B5.4

Policies on managing environmental
and social risks of the supply chain.
EIRMH R ARG R g RAMRBR -
Number of suppliers by geographical
region.

B E D HHERHE -
Description of practices relating
to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are
being implemented, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

M BEERHERNES - AR
TEBENHERSE - AKREA
BMITRERAE-

Description of practices used to
identify environmental and social risks
along the supply chain, and how they
are implemented and monitored.
A EER RS ERONIRER
RitgREkEaE ol - A REERTR
ERATE-

Description of practices used to
promote environmentally preferable
products and services when
selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

i EREHREERKRERESZARRE
m R REEER - AR IT R EE

BIA e

Supply Chain Management

HEEER
Supply Chain Management

fregEE R
Supply Chain Management

HrEEEIE

Supply Chain Management

HrEEEIeE

Supply Chain Management

HrEgEEIE
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Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
TEHE BEH —REER
BRENER it 3 X

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
EmEmB6: EmEE
General Disclosure Information on: Product Responsibility
(@ the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of

redress.
—REE ERFREHEMERENERREEY EmREMT
2 BE EERLBEEUARERK
FEHR -
@ BX: &

) BFHBOTAGEAXENEH
ER RO EH -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or Product Responsibility — Food
shipped subject to recalls for safety Quality and Safety
and health reasons.

8§52 48 BUIE 13 B6.1 Egjaiiﬁuuﬁ'@%lﬁp -ﬁi\gﬁif@ ERET-RREEEHTE
REMRMmMARKT A S

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service Product Responsibility — Food
related complaints received and how Quality and Safety
they are dealt with.

R BEAE IE1R B6.2 BEEAREMRRBHORFEEUKR EnEf-RERmBEEHTE
JE¥ 7% -

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to Product Responsibility —
observing and protecting intellectual Intellectual Property Rights
property rights.

RABEAE 512 B6.3 M ERENRENAEEFTENE ExiE-—NI3EE
ol -

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance Product Responsibility — Food
process and recall procedures. Quality and Safety, Customer

Service
S4B BUIE1Z B6.4 il ERTAEREREKEF - EREF-REnEE8%2®.
%JEHW%

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data Product Responsibility —
protection and privacy policies, Customer Data Privacy
and how they are implemented and
monitored.

RABEAE 512 B6.5 HIUHBEEERNRERLERR - N EnBE-FFEELE

KMAEAATRERTA -
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs
TEHR - EEH - —REER

Description

it

Section/Declaration

8001

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7: R&ES

General Disclosure

—MRIXEE

KPI B7.1

BB IR IR BT A

KPI B7.2

B AE IR IR BT .2

KPI B7.3

R ENIEIZBT.3

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and

money laundering.

BRAMIEBE  $R BMFERERE

Yy -

(@ HEZE: &

b) EBTHEITATEAZENERH
FERRBOIEFR -

Number of concluded legal cases

regarding corrupt practices brought

against the issuer or its employees

during the reporting period and the

outcomes of the cases.

RERAANEETAKEESREL

EEAENEITRARMOEE RFR

R o

Description of preventive measures

and whistle-blowing procedures,

and how they are implemented and

monitored.

el 77 S48 b [ B ERARFF - A AR RS

MITRERTE-

Description of anti-corruption training

provided to directors and staff.

fmESE KB TRENRESHE -

Anti-corruption

Anti-corruption

RES

Anti-corruption — Whistle-
blowing Mechanism

RE S — B 5w
Anti-corruption

RES
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs
TEHR - EEH - —REER
BARENER

Description

it

Section/Declaration

N1

Aspect B8: Community Investment

EEBS: H ERE

General Disclosure

—MRIXEE

KPI B8.1

RS 4E B 1R B8
KPI B8.2

RS EIE1EB8.2

Policies on community engagement
to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’
interests.

BN RBERTRBITANEEMN
EHERERBREXEBEDEER
@ A 25 B9 BUR o

Focus areas of contribution (e.g.
education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport).
HEIEREE (WHE - REEH
BITHENR @R Xt 8BF) o
Resources contributed (e.g. money or
time) to the focus area.
EEISHEMBAER (N ER
) °

72  ERWMSERARAT —T RS

Community Investment

HERIRE

Community Investment

HERE
Community Investment

HERIE



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESEREHE

Executive Directors

Mr. Liang Naiming (2 J3 #8) (“Mr. Liang”), aged 64, the
controlling shareholder of the Company (the “Controlling
Shareholder”), was appointed as an executive Director on
23 June 2023 and became the chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman”), the chief executive officer of the Company
(the “CEQ”), the chairman of the nomination committee
of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) and a
member of the remuneration committee of the Company
(the “Remuneration Committee”) on 2 November 2023.
Mr. Liang is responsible for the Group’s overall management,
strategic development, financial management and major
decision-making of the Group.

Mr. Liang is currently the sole shareholder and sole director of
Kafelaku Coffee Industrial Limited (the “Kafelaku Industrial”),
the immediate holding company of the Company, the
executive chairman of Guangzhou Coffee Industry Association,
the vice president of Guangdong Federation of Commerce
and the chairman of Guangdong Chamber of Commerce.
Mr. Liang served as the general manager of Zhuhai Zhuofu
Computer Technology Co., Ltd. from 1993 to 2001 and the
chairman of Guangzhou Bangmeishu Coffee Co., Ltd. from
2003 to 2018. Mr. Liang founded a famous brand of Kafelaku
Coffee in 2011 and has been the chairman of Guangzhou
Kafelaku Coffee Chain Co., Ltd.* (& M 5 [ Yl BE & 85 A R
7~ a]) since 2011.

Mr. Liang holds a graduation certificate of the Self-taught
Higher Education Examinations jointly conferred by the Self-
taught Higher Education Examinations Committee* (& 52 &
B 2% 5% 8 %) and the South China University of
Technology in 1984.

* For identification purposes only
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Mr. Ma Xiaoping (& /) ¥) (“Mr. Ma”), aged 62, was
appointed as an executive Director on 2 November 2023
and is responsible for the Group’s overall management and
strategic development.

Mr. Ma worked at the Shanxi Province Jinzhong Economic
Commission* (ILFEE & H & EZ E€) from March 1978 to
September 1984. Following that, he served as the Manager of
the Shanxi Jinzhong Light Textile Industry Bureau Supply and
Marketing Corporation* (LI FA & R & 45 T B H# A R 7))
from October 1984 to May 2004. Subsequently, he held the
position of Manager at the branch company of Shanxi Xinxing
Real Estate Development Company Branch* (1L 78 ¥ i &=
b EE B 2 A 719 A B]) from June 2004 to December 2007.
Since 2008, Mr. Ma has been the General Manager of Shanxi
Xiangrui Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* (LU 7o % i = i
ERERRAT).

Mr. Ma graduated from the Shanxi University of Finance
and Economics (LU 78 81 ¢ K 8) specialising in Financial
Accounting in 1991 and the University of Science and
Technology of China (4 B &} 2 £ 1if X 2) with a post-
graduate qualification of Economics and Management in
1998.

Mr. Ma has served as a member of the Fourth Political
Consultative Conference (CPPCC) (LU 784 & & ™ M &
Bt % B) and held the position of deputy director at the
Environmental Economics Committee (3RIB&BEEZ S 2|+
f£) in Jinzhong City, Shanxi Province from October 2016 to
September 2021.

* For identification purpose only

74 ERwEERARAT — T EERERS

ENTHRE(TEXRE] 62 NZZ
T+ A-_HEZTARTESEKE
EAREENBREEIE N EEERE -

EXER—NWtENEFEF=ZAZ—hL/\WFh
ARULBEEREREBELZESER - BEE - &
R—NAN\MNFE+RE_ZETNFEH AET
IR E RS T RHEB R RLIE - Hi% -
BR_EENFENAZE_EZELF+=A
BEELAFEEHERE AR D QA &E
B - B2 N\Fie - FAEERTILAFE
ImEHERBEAERARBLIRE -

BSREER-—NAN—FEXRUAMEKES
EREFERXIR-ANNFEFHER
BREMASRKBEREREXRTLEZRE -

EXEER_E—RF+AE-_ZTE-_—FN
AHALAEELPTHERRBZ 8 RIEE
RBEEELZ BRI EXHK-



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

EEERFFHE @)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Cui Zifeng (£ F#) (“Mr. Cui”), aged 36, was appointed
as a non-executive Director on 2 November 2023, and is
currently the director (#2&5) of marketing department at Talent
Huge Limited in Hong Kong since January 2010, the director
at Hainan Meilangwan Tourism Industry Co., Ltd. /& & 3R /&
X RE ¥ B R A 7" since January 2021, the chairman and
director of Hainan Meilangwan Fragrance Biotech Co., Ltd. /&
MEREFELY AR AR since July 2022, the executive
director at Guangzhou Guxin Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd.
&M T2 e R A BR & £ 2 7 since May 2019, and the
director of Jiangsu Safety Holdings Group Co., Ltd. I & =48
KEBER D B BR A A)* (isted on Shanghai Stock Exchange
(the “SSEC”): 603028) since November 2020. He was the
director (4 ) of international business department at
Jianfeng Rigging Co., Ltd. }Z1& Z B B[R 2 7* from February
2012 to May 2021, the executive director and chief executive
officer at Guangzhou Ruipu Testing Co., Ltd. & N § 3Z % 8]
BR A 7]*, the chief executive officer at Jianfeng Rigging Co.,
Ltd. #1& = A B[R A 7)* and the chairman and director of
Jiangsu Safety Holdings Group Co., Ltd. JT & &8 X = B i
AR A7) (isted on the SSEC: 603028) from July 2019 to
March 2020. Mr. Cui obtained a Bachelor of Science degree
in Philosophy and Economics from the University of Bristol in
the United Kingdom in June 2010.

* For identification purpose only
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Huaiyu (21 %) (“Mr. Liu”), aged 53, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 2
November 2023, and is mainly responsible for overseeing
the management independently and providing independent
judgment on the issues of strategy, performance, resources
and standard of conduct of the Company. He is also the
chairman of each of the audit committee of the Company
(the “Audit Committee”) and the Remuneration Committee,
and a member of each of the Nomination Committee and
the legal compliance committee of the Company (the “Legal
Compliance Committee”).

Mr. Liu has over 26 years of experience in finance and
management with various large organizations and listed
companies. Mr. Liu acts as the chief financial officer, since
June 2022, and the company secretary, since August 2022,
of YNBY International Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 30). He has also served as an
independent director and chairman of audit committee of
BitFuFu Inc. (NASDAQ: FuFu), a company listed on NASDAQ,
since 5 August 2024. He was the chief financial officer of
V1 Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 82), in 2019. He was an executive director,
executive vice president, and company secretary of Chiho
Environmental Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 976), from 2016 to 2017. Mr. Liu also
served as the executive director and chief financial officer of
Xinyuan Real Estate Co., Ltd., a company listed on New York
Stock Exchange, from 2015 to 2016.

Mr. Liu obtained a Master of Business Administration from
Cornell University in 1997 and a Bachelor of Economics from
Shenzhen University in 1991. Mr. Liu is a member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
since January 2008 and June 2008 respectively.
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Ms. Zhang Guangfang (5& & %) (“Ms. Zhang”), aged 46,
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 21 June 2024, and is mainly responsible for overseeing
the management independently and providing independent
judgement on the issue of strategy, performance, resources
and standard of conduct of the Company. She is also a
member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Legal Compliance Committee.

Ms. Zhang holds the position of deputy general manager at
Guangzhou Yeke Catering Management Co., Ltd.* (& M
ZEHRER B R R A since May 2018. She served as the
human resources director at Guangzhou Kafelaku Coffee
Chain Co., Ltd.* (EINSEER W TEESE B BR A 7)), a company
controlled by Mr. Liang Naiming (an executive Director and a
controlling shareholder of the Company), from October 2012
to February 2018. Ms. Zhang obtained her Bachelor’s degree
in Music Education from Shanxi Normal University in July
2000.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. Chan Yan Kin Philip (Bf fiX #&) (“Mr. Chan”), aged 80,
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
30 September 2024, and is mainly responsible for overseeing
the management independently and providing independent
judgement on the issue of strategy, performance, resources
and standard of conduct of the Company. He is also the
chairman of the Legal Compliance Committee, and a member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Chan graduated from the Metropolitan Police Training
School in United Kingdom in 1972. He also graduated at La
Salle College in Hong Kong in 1965.

Mr. Chan, has more than 40 years of experience in the law
enforcement, entertainment and media industries. Mr. Chan
worked as a Chief Operating Officer of the Internet Division
at Star East Group (55 % 7752 @) from 1998 to 2001. Mr.
Chan worked at Hong Kong Metro Broadcasting Ltd. (&7 #T
¥ E &) as a Managing Director from 1996 to 1998. Mr. Chan
worked at Hong Kong Capital Artist Company Ltd. (2 218
Fr > @) as a General Manager from 1992 to 1995. During
1977 to 1979, he worked at Rediffusion Television Ltd. (& &Y
B 172 % 2l) as a Variety Show Host and Bang Bang Fashion
Co., Ltd. (BB F R A7) as a manager of its fim and
advertising department. Before Mr. Chan shifted from law
enforcement to entertainment & media industry, he worked
for the Royal Hong Kong Police Force during 1965 to 1976.
Mr. Chan was discharged with the rank of Superintendent.

Mr. Chan is currently the Honorary President of the Hong
Kong Film Directors’ Guild (B8 & § B8 )Eg), the Jiangmen
Wuyi Film and Culture Association (;LFi# & 18 XL &),
the Jiangmen Wuyi Overseas Friendship Association (;IF9 5
B8 5N 72 &) and the Guangdong Motion Picture Industry
Association (&R & 517 % % €). He is also the Honorary
Council Member of Hong Kong Performing Artistes Guild (&
BB E A 2). Mr. Chan was the former Vice President of

Hong Kong Film Awards Association (B8 E ¥ & & ZiH2).
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Mr. Wong Chun Peng Stewart (Z & §) (“Mr. Wong”),
aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 2 November 2023, and was mainly responsible
for overseeing the management independently and providing
independent judgment on the issues of strategy, performance,
resources and standard of conduct of the Company. He was
also the chairman of the Legal Compliance Committee, a
member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee.

Mr. Wong has more than 29 years of experience in the legal
industry. Mr. Wong worked at Deacons (formerly known as
Deacons Graham & James) as a trainee solicitor from August
19983 to July 1995 and became an associate solicitor in
the China Practice Group at Deacons from August 1995 to
December 1996. Mr. Wong has practiced law in a number
of international firms such as Deacons (including posting
as a representative in Beijing, the PRC) from September
2002 to March 2005, Baker McKenzie from January 2007
to July 2009 and Hogan Lovells from February 1999 to
March 2002, and has worked as in-house counsel in two
listed companies in Hong Kong, namely Dickson Concepts
(International) Limited, which is listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (the “Main Board”) (stock code: 0113)
and Samsonite International S.A., which is listed on the Main
Board (stock code: 1910), from August 2009 to May 2013
and May 2013 to January 2016, respectively. Mr. Wong also
practised as a consultant in law firms such as YTL & Co.
from February 2017 to July 2018 and AH Lawyers from April
2020 to September 2020. Mr. Wong has been a principal
of Stewart Wong & Associates since October 2020, which
is a law firm where he has been involved in the provision
of a wide array of legal services, including mergers and
acquisitions, litigation and general commercials. He was also
an independent non-executive director of TL Natural Gas
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8536) from 28 June 2017 to
19 June 2020. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Pinestone Capital Limited (stock code:
804) from 7 September 2022.
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Mr. Wong graduated from the City University of Hong Kong
(formerly known as City Polytechnic of Hong Kong) in Hong
Kong with a bachelor’s degree of law with first class honours
in November 1991. He also obtained his master’s degree
in law from the University of Cambridge in England in June
1993. Mr. Wong became qualified as a solicitor of the High
Court of Hong Kong in September 1995.

Mr. Wong has resigned as an independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of the Legal Compliance Committee,
a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, all on 30 September 2024.
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Mr. So Ting Kong (& & L) (“Mr. So”), aged 38, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 2
November 2023, and was mainly responsible for overseeing
the management independently and providing independent
judgment on the issues of strategy, performance, resources
and standard of conduct of the Company. He was also a
member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Legal Compliance Committee.

Mr. So is a Certified Public Accountant with 8 years
experience in financial management and regulatory
compliance. He is an independent advisor since October
2022, and specializes in providing expert advisory services to
SFC licensed corporations, focusing on regulatory compliance,
risk management, and strategic financial planning. Prior to
this role, Mr. So was an accounting manager at Silverbricks
Securities Company Limited from July 2020 to September
2022 and was as a financial controller at Gransing Securities
Co., Limited from June 2015 to July 2020, where he managed
the accounting department, implemented internal controls,
collaborated with external auditors for regulatory audits,
and led the financial reporting processes. Mr. So worked at
Kreston CAC CPA Limited from September 2011 to May
2015 and at Cheng & Cheng Limited from July 2008 to July
2011, where he conducted financial audits and prepared
audit reports for various clients. Mr. So received his Chartered
Accountant from the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales in 2021, obtained qualification of Certified
Public Accountant from the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in 2015 and obtained qualification of
Accredited Accounting Technician from the Hong Kong
Institute of Accredited Accounting Technicians in 2010.

Mr. So has resigned as an independent non-executive
Director, a member of each of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Legal Compliance
Committee, all on 21 June 2024.
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The Board is pleased to present herein the corporate
governance report of the Company for the Year.

The Directors and the management of the Group recognise
the importance of sound corporate governance to the long-
term success and continuing development of the Group.
Therefore, the Board is committed to upholding good
corporate standards and procedures, so as to improve the
accountability system and transparency of the Group, protect
the interests and create value for the Shareholders.

Corporate Culture and Strategy

The Company is embedded with a strong corporate culture
for compliance, corporate governance and corporate social
responsibilities, and at the same time, strives to provide high
quality and reliable products and services to create values to
the stakeholders through sustainable growth and continuous
development. The Company acts as an investment holding
company and the principal activities of its subsidiaries are
provision of food and beverage services in Hong Kong
and the PRC. As a group with a well-established business
foundation, it is the Board’s role to foster a corporate culture
with the following principles to guide the conduct and
behaviours of its employees, and ensure that the Company’s
vision, mission and business strategies are aligned to it:

(i)  Integrity — we strive to do what is right;
(i) Excellence —we aim to deliver excellence;
(i) Collaboration — we are always better together;

(iv) Accountability — we are accountable for delivering on our
commitments;

(v} Empathy we care about our stakeholders — employees,
customers, supply chain and the community; and

(vi) Sustainability — we are committed to a sustainable future.
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The Group continuously reviews and updates its strategies
to provide better clarity on direction and business models.
In addition, the Group takes active and prompt measures
to meet market changes through adjustment of business
strategies and control over costs for supporting continuous
business development of the Group.

Compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code

The Company is committed to ensure a high standard of
corporate governance in the interests of the Shareholders and
devotes considerable effort to maintain high level of business
ethics and corporate governance practices. The Company’s
corporate governance practices are based on the principles
and code provisions as set out in the section headed “Part 2
— Principles of good corporate governance, code provisions
and recommended best practices” of Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules.
The Company has applied the principles of, and complied
with, the applicable code provisions of the CG Code for
the Year, except for certain deviations as specified with
considered reasons for such deviations which are explained
below.

Under Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and the CEO should
be separated and should not be performed by the same
individual.

For the Year and up to the date of this report, the Company
has not separated the roles of Chairman and the CEO. Mr.
Liang has been acting as both the Chairman and the CEO
and is responsible for overseeing the operations of the Group.
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In view of the fact that Mr. Liang has the relevant food and
beverage operation and management experience since
2008, the Board believes that it is in the best interests of the
Group to have Mr. Liang taking up both roles for effective
management and business development.

The Board also believes that vesting the roles of both the
Chairman and the CEO in the same person has the benefit
of ensuring the consistent leadership within the Group and
enables more effective and efficient overall strategic planning
for the Group.

Although the roles of the Chairman and the CEO has
been performing by a single person during the Year, the
division of responsibilities between the two roles is clearly
established. While the Chairman is responsible for supervising
the functions and performance of the Board, the CEO is
responsible for the management of the Group’s business.
The Board considers that the balance of power and authority
for the present arrangement will not be impaired given the
appropriate delegation of the power of the Board to the
Senior Management for the day-to-day management of the
Group, and the effective functions of the independent non-
executive Directors representing at least one-third of the
Board such that no one individual has unfettered power of
decisions. This structure will also enable the Company to
make and implement decisions promptly and effectively. The
Board will continue to review and consider splitting the roles
of the Chairman and the CEO at a time when it is appropriate
and suitable by taking into account the circumstances of the
Group as a whole.

The Board will periodically review the Company’s corporate
governance functions and will continuously improve the
Company’s corporate governance practices by assessing
their effectiveness with evolving standards to meet changing
circumstances and needs.
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Board of Directors

The key responsibilities of the Board include formulation of
the Group’s overall strategies, the setting of management
targets and supervision of management performance. The
management is delegated with the authority and responsibility
by the Board for the management and administration of the
Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated various
responsibilities to the board committees of the Company
(the “Board Committees”). Further details of the Board
Committees are set out in this annual report. Under the terms
of reference, the duties of the Board in respect of corporate
governance are as follows:

1. to develop and review the policies and practices
on corporate governance of the Group and make
recommendations;

2. 1o review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and Senior
Management;

3. to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and
employees; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the corporate governance report of the
Company.
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Composition of the Board

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report, there have been changes in the composition
of the Board. As at the date of this annual report, the Board
comprises six Directors, including two executive Directors,
one non-executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors. The composition of the Board and the
aforesaid changes are set out as follow:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Liang Naiming

(Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ma Xiaoping

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Cui Zifeng

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Liu Huaiyu
Ms. Zhang Guangfang
(appointed on 21 June 2024)
Mr. Chan Yan Kin Philip
(appointed on 30 September 2024)
Mr. So Ting Kong
(resigned on 21 June 2024)
Mr. Wong Chun Peng Stewart
(resigned on 30 September 2024)
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In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the Board was consisted of three independent non-
executive Directors during the Reporting Period. During the
Reporting Period and as of the date of this annual report, the
number of independent non-executive Directors represents
more than one-third of the Board. As such, there is a strong
independent element in the Board to provide independent
judgement. Amongst the independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Liu Huaiyu has the appropriate professional
qualifications and accounting and related financial
management expertise required under Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules.

The Company has entered into a service agreement with each
of the independent non-executive Directors for a term of one
year, which may be terminated earlier by no less than three
months written notice served by either party on the other.

The Company has entered into a service agreement with the
non-executive Director for a term of three year, which may be
terminated earlier by no less than three months written notice
served by either party on the other.

The Company will use its best efforts to achieve the board
diversity policy and ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity which is appropriate to
the needs of the Company’s business. The selection of
candidates will be based on a range of criteria, including
but not limited to, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, experience (professional or otherwise), skills
and knowledge. The appointment of Directors will continue
to be made based on merit and potential contribution by the
candidate to the Board and the Company. Each of Directors’
respective biographical details is set out in the section
“Biographical Details of Directors” of this annual report.
The Directors have the necessary skills and experience
appropriate for discharging their duties as Directors in the
best interest of the Company.
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Pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles, any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only
until the first annual general meeting of the Company after
his/her appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election.
Accordingly, Ms. Zhang Guangfang and Mr. Chan Yan Kin
Philip will retire from office as Directors and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a
multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than
one third), not including those Directors who are subject to
re-election pursuant to Article 112 as described above, shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall
be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least
once every three years. Mr. Liang Naiming and Mr. Liu Huaiyu
will retire from office as Directors and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

Specific enquiry has been made by the Company to each
of the independent non-executive Directors to confirm their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
In this connection, the Company has received the positive
annual confirmations from all of the three independent non-
executive Directors. Based on the confirmations received, the
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors
to be independent under the Listing Rules.

The newly appointed Directors during the Year, namely Ms.
Zhang Guangfang and Mr. Chan Yan Kin Philip, confirmed
that they obtained legal advice referred to in Rule 3.09D on
20 June 2024 and 30 September 2024, respectively, and
they have confirmed they understood their obligations as a
director of a listed issuer.
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Board and General Meetings

During the Reporting Period, fourteen board meetings were
held to approve, among others, the annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2023, the interim results in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2024. The AGM which was held
on 24 May 2024 and the extraordinary general meeting which
was held on 19 February 2024 were the general meetings of
the Company during the Reporting Period.
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The attendance of the respective Directors at the Board ‘BEZEENHREFHHFEETS S Z AL
meetings during the Reporting Period are set out below: o -
Attendance/ Attendance/
Number of Number of
Board meetings general meeting
during the during the
Reporting Period Reporting Period
HEHHE HE
Ezeed RRAE
HERE 83818 LRERY S8EXE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Liang Naiming R EE 14/14 2/2
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (EERTHAEZ)
Mr. Ma Xiaoping 5)ExRE 7/14 2/2
Non-executive Director kBITES
Mr. Cui Zifeng EFBLE 11/14 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Liu Huaiyu EFiE 10/14 2/2
Ms. Zhang Guangfang REFRL 3/5 Not applicable
(appointed on 21 June 2024) (RZBZmEAA=+—HEZME) R
Mr. Chan Yan Kin Philip BRI E 2/2 Not applicable
(appointed on 30 September 2024) (RZB-mENA=THEZT) TEA
Mr. So Ting Kong BEILE 6/9 2/2
(resigned on 21 June 2024) (RZE-_mEFAA=+—HET)
Mr. Wong Chun Peng Stewart HEEEE 8/12 2/2

(resigned on 30 September 2024)

(R-Z-WFAA=THEME)
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The Directors can attend meetings in person or through other
means of electronic communication in accordance with the
Articles. All minutes of the Board meetings were recorded in
sufficient detail of the matters considered by the Board and
the decisions reached.

To facilitate the decision-making process, the Directors are
free to have access to the management for enquiries and to
obtain further information when required. The Directors can
also seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense, in discharging
their duties to the Company. All Directors have unrestricted
access to the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) who is responsible for ensuring that
the Board/committee procedures are complied with, and for
advising the Board/committee(s) on compliance matters.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover
in respect of possible legal action against its Directors and
senior officers.

Relationships among Board Members and
Senior Management

Saved as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors” of this annual report, there is no financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationship
among members of the Board and the Senior Management.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the required standard of
dealings set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”) as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors in respect of the Shares. The
Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors, and all
Directors have confirmed that they have fully complied with
the required standard of dealings set out in the Model Code
during the Year.
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Directors’ Continuing Professional
Development Programme

The Group acknowledges the importance of adequate and
ample continuing professional development for the Directors
for a sound and effective internal control system and
corporate governance. In this regard, the Group has always
encouraged its Directors to attend relevant training courses to
receive the latest news and knowledge regarding corporate
governance.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has provided
the Directors at least one training course on the updates of
the Listing Rules concerning good corporate governance
practices. The newly appointed Directors have also been
provided with induction so as to enable them to have a
proper understanding of the Company’s operations and
business and fully aware of their responsibilities and the
Company'’s business and governance policies. The Company
will, if necessary, provide timely and regular trainings to the
Directors to ensure that they keep abreast with the current
requirements under the Listing Rules.

EENFEEXRREE

REBESTEZERREARTOFEERR
ZRUBEMITZARNABEERG R
TEERNERNE - Bt - AEE—EHE
HEZHFABBEIRE ABERAEHAL
EERNSFHE M A -

RBEHA  ARAREMESFRIARD —
RIBFIRE ARABLETRAP I RR
HERERARRNRMES -FZENE
EMEEREEABE - ERFEHER
THRARRMNELREBARTDONEL H
MBEEARARBNELREQBEK - K
RABEFEAEFRMER RIERFI -
NHERNERR EHHRANRITARE -

91

Kafelaku Coffee Holding Limited ~ Annual Report 2024



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
ﬂé% éiﬁ#& = (&)

According to the training records maintained by the Company, RIEARRFENFIILE  SEERNIF
the continuous professional development programmes & HIRE SMFEZ BB mMT ¢
received by each of the Directors during the Reporting Period

is summarised as follows:

Type of Training

=5 B

Executive Directors iﬂﬁﬁ%
Mr. Liang Naiming Rk E

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (FEFITHAEE) A&B
Mr. Ma Xiaoping BNFEEE A&B
Non-executive Director EBITEE
Mr. Cui Zifeng BEFREE A&B
Independent non-executive Directors BYkHTES
Mr. Liu Huaiyu REFLE A&B
Ms. Zhang Guangfang RER L

(appointed on 21 June 2024) (RZE2-WFAAAZ+—HEZMT) A&B
Mr. Chan Yan Kin Philip PR R 2 4 A

(appointed on 30 September 2024) (RZZE_MNFNA=THEZE) A&B
Mr. So Ting Kong e LEE

(resigned on 21 June 2024) (R=—ZE-WMEA=-+—BH&T) A&B
Mr. Wong Chun Peng Stewart mEMEEE

(resigned on 30 September 2024) (RZZE-WWF LA =+HEHT) A&B

A:  attending training sessions, including but not limited to, seminars, briefings, ~ A: ZIEIIRIE - BREFRATFES - HHRe -5
conferences, forums and workshops. RIBAM e -
B:  reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy, general B : BIERE « BT EN  REBEREE  —RE
business, corporate governance and directors’ duties and responsibilities. % EBEARESBENSEME -
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board recognises that corporate governance should be
the collective responsibility of the Directors which includes:

(@ to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and Senior
Management;

(c) to develop, review and monitor the Code of Conduct
and compliance manual applicable to employees and
Directors;

(d) to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board and report to the Board
on such matters; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the annual report.

Corporate Governance Policies and
Mechanism

The Board recognizes that a comprehensive corporate
governance management structure is crucial in helping the
Company to implement its strategies and policies effectively
and consistently throughout the Group, and safeguard
the long-term interests of its shareholders. Accordingly,
the Company has established the following policies and
mechanism and has continuously reviewed them to ensure
that the Group meets the requirements of the applicable laws
and regulations:

° Board Diversity Policy

o Mechanisms Ensuring Independent Views Available to
the Board
° Anti-corruption Policy

° Whistle-blowing Policy
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy whereby
it recognises and embraces the importance and benefits of
a diversity of Board members. It endeavours to ensure that
the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business. All Board nominations, appointments
and reappointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the
Board members and the nomination policy of the Company.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills and knowledge.

The Board will strive to maintain gender diversity when
recruiting and selecting the workforce across the Group’s
operation. After the resignation of Ms. Chan Wai Sze
Josephine and Ms. Zhu Xuegin as Executive Directors on
2 November 2023, the Board had become a single gender
board and the Company was unable to fuffill the requirement
of the Listing Rules for including at least a director of a
different gender on the Board within three months from the
date the Board has become a single gender board. Upon the
appointment of Ms. Zhang Guangfang as an independent
non-executive Director on 21 June 2024, the Company has
fulfilled the requirement of including at least a director of
different gender of the Listing Rules.

The Board and the Nomination Committee will review
the Board Diversity Policy at least annually to ensure that
its continued effectiveness, and where necessary, will
make revisions that may be required and the Nomination
Committee will recommend any such revision to the Board for
consideration and approval.

At the meeting held on 31 March 2025, the Board and the
Nomination Committee have reviewed the Board Diversity
Policy and was satisfied with its implementation and
effectiveness during the Year.
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Workforce Diversity

As at 31 December 2024, the ratio of male and female in
the workforce by gender and age of the Group (including
executive directors and senior management) is 72% and 28%
respectively as set out in the section B1. Employment of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 43
to 48 of this annual report. The goal of a workplace diversity is
to create the right environment where people feel comfortable
working together with both collaboratively and effectively in an
environment without judgment; all staff is able to reach their
full potential while working as a team. The Group considers
that the current composition of workforce diversity objective
(gender ratio, plan or measurable objectives for gender
diversity, factors or circumstances affecting the gender ratio,
etc) had been achieved at acceptable level.

Independent Views of the Board

In compliance with Code B.1.4 of the CG Code, the
Company has established mechanisms to ensure that a
strong independent element on, and independent views and
input are available to the Board (the “Mechanisms”).

The Mechanisms are to ensure that a strong independent
element on, and independent views and input are available
to, the Board. The Mechanisms cover composition of the
Board and Board Committees; independence assessment;
compensation; Board decision making; and review of the
policy implementation.

The Board will review the implementation and effectiveness of
the Mechanisms annually. At the meeting held on 31 March
2025, the Board has reviewed and was satisfied with the
implementation and effectiveness of the Mechanisms during
the Year.

Anti-corruption Policy

To outline the Company’s expectations and requirements
on prevention, detection, reporting and investigation of any
suspected fraud, corruption and other similar irregularities;
and to provide information and guidance on recognizing
and dealing with bribery and corruption, the Company has
established its group-wise anti-corruption policy that complies
with Code D.2.7 of the CG Code.
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Under the anti-corruption policy, the Group has established
the Code of Business Conducts, and has put in place internal
control mechanism to prevent the occurrence of fraud,
theft, bribery, corruption and other misconducts involving
employees, customers and other third parties.

The anti-corruption policy is reviewed and updated
periodically to align with the applicable laws and regulations as
well as the industry best practice.

Whistle-blowing Policy

The Group is committed to achieving and maintaining the
highest standards of openness, probity and accountability,
the Company has established a whistle-blowing policy which
forms an important part of its effective risk management and
internal control systems.

Under the whistle-blowing policy, the Group allows
stakeholders to report suspicious negligence, corruption,
bribery and other misconduct to the Group anonymously. All
reported cases are investigated confidentially to ensure the
whistle-blower is protected.

The whistle-blowing policy is reviewed and updated
periodically to align with the applicable laws and regulations as
well as the industry best practice.

Board Committees

The Board has established a number of functional committees
in compliance with the relevant Listing Rules and to assist the
Board to discharge its duties. Currently, four committees have
been established:

1. The Audit Committee was established on 16 June 2016
with its terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.21
to 3.23 of the Listing Rules, and paragraphs D.3.3 and
D.3.7 of the CG Code;

2.  The Remuneration Committee was established on 16
June 2016 with its terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph E.1.2 of the CG Code;
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3.  The Nomination Committee was established on 16
June 2016 with terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph B.3.1 of the CG Code; and

4. The Legal Compliance Committee was established on
16 June 2016.

The functions and responsibilities of these committees have
been set out in the relevant terms of reference which are
of no less stringent than that stated in the CG Code. The
relevant terms of reference of each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee can be
found on the Group’s website (http://www.kafelaku.com) and
the website of the Stock Exchange in accordance with the
CG Code. All committees have been provided with sufficient
resources and support from the Group to discharge their
duties.

Audit Committee

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual
report, the Audit Committee comprised three members,
namely Mr. Liu Huaiyu (Chairman), Mr. So Ting Kong (resigned
on 21 June 2024), Mr. Wong Chun Peng Stewart (resigned
on 30 September 2024), Ms. Zhang Guangfang (appointed
on 21 June 2024) and Mr. Chan Yan Kin Philip (appointed
on 30 September 2024), all of whom are independent non-
executive Directors. Pursuant to the terms of reference of
the Audit Committee, the members of the Audit Committee
shall comprise three non-executive Directors and shall be
appointed or removed by the Board. If any member of the
Audit Committee ceases to be a Director, he/she will cease to
be a member of the Audit Committee automatically.

The Audit Committee must comprise a minimum of three
members, at least one of whom is an independent non-
executive Director with appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise as
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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With reference to the terms of reference, the primary
responsibilities of the Audit Committee are, among others (for
the complete terms of reference please refer to the Group’s
website (http://www.kafelaku.com) or the website of the
Stock Exchange):

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
Company’s external auditors, and approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the
Company'’s external auditors;

2. 1o review and monitor the Company’s external auditors’
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the
audit process in accordance with applicable standards;

3. to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts and half-
year report and review significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them;

4. to discuss with the Company’s external auditors
questions and doubts arising in the audit of annual
accounts;

5. to review the statement about the Company’s internal
control system (if any) as included in the Company’s
annual report prior to submission for the Board’s
approval;

6. to review the Company’s financial reporting, financial
controls, internal control and risk management systems;

7. to discuss the internal control system with the
Company’s management to ensure that management
has performed its duty to have an effective internal
control system;

8. to consider major investigation findings on internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own

initiative and management’s response to these findings;

9. to review the financial and accounting policies and
practices of the Group;
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10. to review the external auditor’s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to the management
in respect of accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of control and management’s response;

11. to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response
to the issues raised in the external auditor’s management
letter; and

12. to review the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications

and experience, training programmes and budget of the

Company'’s accounting and financial reporting function.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee had
reviewed the Group’s annual results and annual report for
the year ended 31 December 2023, and interim results
and interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2024,
discussed internal controls, risk management and financial
reporting matters and fulfilled its other duties under the CG
Code. The Audit Committee had also reviewed audited
annual results for the Year, this annual report, and confirmed
that this annual report complies with the applicable standard,
the Listing Rules, and other applicable legal requirements
and that adequate disclosures have been made. There
is no disagreement between the Directors and the Audit
Committee regarding the selection and appointment of the
external auditors. The Audit Committee has recommended to
the Board that CL Partners CPA Limited (“CL Partners”) be
nominated for re-appointment as the Company’s auditor at
the forthcoming AGM.

The Board is of the view that the Audit Committee has
properly discharged its duties and responsibilities during the
Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report.
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The Audit Committee meets at least four times a year. During
the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee had held five
meetings together with the management of the Group and/
or the Company’s auditors. The attendance records of the
members of the Audit Committee are summarised below:

BEZZEEE PERITOREFE - RR
THA %¢Z§§§ K’%lg@&/‘}z

ARBZBM—ELRBETTREREH - X
ZEERB ZhFEREBAIT

Attendance/Number
of meetings during
the Reporting Period

HREHBELEE

BB EERE

Mr. Liu Huaiyu (Chairman) EFEE (FE) 5/5
Ms. Zhang Guangfang REBZL

(appointed on 21 June 2024) (RZE2EZWFANAZ+—HEZMDT) 1/2
Mr. Chan Yan Kin Philip PR R fi S A

(appointed on 30 September 2024) (RZEZNELA=THEZT) 1/1
Mr. So Ting Kong e LEE

(resigned on 21 June 2024) (RZEZNFEARA=Z+—HET) 3/3
Mr. Wong Chun Peng Stewart wmEMELE

(resigned on 30 September 2024) (RZZEZNFNAA=THET) 4/4

Remuneration Committee

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report, the Remuneration Committee comprised
three members, namely Mr. Liu Huaiyu (Chairman), Mr. Liang
Naiming, Mr. So Ting Kong (resigned on 21 June 2024) and
Ms. Zhang Guangfang (appointed on 21 June 2024), Mr. Liu
Huaiyu, Mr. So Ting Kong and Ms. Zhang Guangfang are
independent non-executive Directors.

With reference to the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee, the primary responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include (for the complete terms of reference
please refer to the Group’s website (http://www.kafelaku.com)
or the website of the Stock Exchange):

1. to consult the chairman of the Board and/or chief
executive about their remuneration proposals for other
executive Directors;

2. to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’
and Senior Management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;
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10.

11.

12.

13.

to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives;

to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and Senior Management;

to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Company and its
subsidiaries;

to review and approve compensation payable to
executive Directors and Senior Management for any loss
or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it
is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair
and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate;

to review and/or approve matters relating to share
schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules;

to advise Shareholders on how to vote with respect
to any service contracts of Directors that require
Shareholders’ approval under Rule 13.68 of the Listing
Rules;

to ensure that no Directors or any of his close associates
is involved in deciding his own remuneration;

to do any such things to enable the Remuneration
Committee to discharge its power and functions
conferred on it by the Board; and

to conform any requirement, direction and regulation that
may from time to time be prescribed by the Board, or
contained in the articles of association of the Company
or imposed by applicable rules and regulations.
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The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year.
During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee
had held four meetings. The attendance records of the
members of the Remuneration Committee are summarised
below:

FNZEEeRELEBFRIT R - KR
SHIRN - FMEZESR1TTHREHE - H M
ZEERBZHFREHMBIAT -

Attendance/Number
of meetings during
the Reporting Period

REHBEHE

BB EERE

Mr. Liu Huaiyu (Chairman) EFEE (FE) 4/4

Mr. Liang Naiming BRIk EE 4/4
Ms. Zhang Guangfang REFLZL

(appointed on 21 June 2024) (RZZEZmERAZ+—HEZE) 2/2
Mr. So Ting Kong B LkE

(resigned on 21 June 2024) (RZE-_MFNAZ+—HEHT) 2/2

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee RBREHR  FHEESEREE L SR

reviewed and made recommendations on the remuneration
package of the Directors and Senior Management (including
the terms of their service contracts). The Remuneration
Committee has also reviewed the Share Scheme at its
meeting held on 31 March 2025. The Board is of the view
that the Remuneration Committee had properly discharged its
duties and responsibilities during the Reporting Period and up
to the date of this annual report.

Nomination Committee

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual
report, the Nomination Committee comprised three members,
namely Mr. Liang Naiming (Chairman), Mr. Wong Chun Peng
Stewart (resigned on 30 September 2024), Mr. Liu Huaiyu
and Mr. Chan Yan Kin Philip (appointed on 30 September
2024). Mr. Wong Chun Peng Stewart, Mr. Liu Huaiyu and Mr.
Chan Yan Kin Philip are independent non-executive Directors.
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According to the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee, the Nomination Committee shall convene
meeting at least once a year and the primary responsibilities
of the Nomination Committee include (for the complete
terms of reference, please refer to the Group’s website
(http://www.kafelaku.com) or the website of the Stock
Exchange):

1. to review the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board and make recommendations on proposed
changes, if any, to the Board to complement the
Company'’s corporate strategy;

2. to review the Company’s Board Diversity Policy and the
progress on achieving the objectives set for implementing
the said policy;

3. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

4. to assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and

5. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the
chairman and the chief executive.

Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted the nomination policy which sets out
the nomination criteria and procedures for the Company to
appoint or re-elect Directors. The nomination policy aims to:

e set out the criteria and process in the nomination and
appointment of Directors;

e ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
Company; and

e ensure the Board continuity and appropriate leadership
at Board level.

RERRZEENBERE RE2ZEQ

BELEFRT—ReZ ETEBER
E(ERTENBESRE F2HAEEN

#8 i (http://www.kafelaku.com) Bk B 32 F 48

k) :

1. BAEFENRE  ABCARRZT
b (BfEkee MBERERTHE) X
ARESARRNARREMEHEYE
ESFHNES (WA)IREER

2. MEUAXARAMNEFENEZ TIEHR
KL BERBIER B IR ITER

3. VeARGEERAREEESEOAL
WHERZEBALTHEEST S
ME=ESREER

4. FIRBILIFRTESIHBIULME R

5. REFEARENEEHUREE (LR
RERRTBEH) BEHBAEER
Rt -

RBBR

EZ2CRMERBE  BINARAERE
AEERESNRABAEANERF - RBBE
B

e HINEBLEZETEFTNHELREFT:

s MREFCABYUEGARANEBIE
I &R kLB &

s MREFSNREUEREREEEAG -

Kafelaku Coffee Holding Limited  Annual Report 2024 103



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
TEERRE @)

The nomination policy applies to the Directors and, where
applicable, Senior Management prepared for Board positions
under the succession planning of the Company.

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the
following criteria should be considered:

e  Character and integrity

e Qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience and diversity aspects
under the board diversity policy that are relevant to the
Company'’s business and corporate strategy

e Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving
diversity on the Board

e  Wilingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties
as a member of the Board and/or Board Committee(s)

e Requirement for the Board to have independent
Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and
whether the candidate would be considered independent
with reference to the independence guidelines set out in
the Listing Rules

e Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity

e  Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the
Board and/or the Nomination Committee from time to
time for nomination of directors and succession planning

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board
for the selection, appointment and re-appointment of a
Director, including an independent non-executive Director,
in accordance with the procedures and process as set out
in the nomination policy. Nomination Committee will shortlist
candidates for consideration by the Board based on the
selection criteria and such other factors that it considers
appropriate.
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The Nomination Committee is responsible for monitoring and
reviewing the nomination policy and recommend any changes
thereto to the Board for its adoption as and when necessary.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee
had held three meetings. The attendance of the members of
the Nomination Committee at the committee meetings is as
follows:

REZESREEENESRARE X
B MESSEHTMAEH - UHRA -

RSB BAERFCRTREH -
RAERERERERGEEZHAERK
M -

Attendance/Number
of meetings during
the Reporting Period

HEMBEHE

KRB EERE™

Mr. Liang Naiming (Chairman) Ry 5 E (/) 3/3

Mr. Liu Huaiyu AEFEE 3/3

Mr. Chan Yan Kin Philip PR TR R 58 A2 Not applicable

(appointed on 30 September 2024) (RZZE-_WFLA=+HEZT) TiE A
Mr. Wong Chun Peng Stewart =EBEE

(resigned on 30 September 2024) (RZEZMFENA=+HET) 3/3

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee
reviewed and assessed (i) the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board, (i) the performance of each of the Directors, (jii) the
independence of independent non-executive Directors, and
proposed the appointment or re-appointment or succession (if
applicable) of Directors.

Legal Compliance Committee

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual
report, the Legal Compliance Committee comprised three
members, namely, Mr. Wong Chun Peng Stewart (Chairman)
(resigned on 30 September 2024), Mr. Chan Yan Kin Philip
(Chairman) (appointed on 30 September 2024), Mr. Liu
Huaiyu, Mr. So Ting Kong (resigned on 21 June 2024) and Ms.
Zhang Guangfang (appointed 21 June 2024). All of them are
independent non-executive Directors.

According to the terms of reference of the Legal Compliance
Committee, the primary duties of the Legal Compliance
Committee are to assist in overseeing the Group’s compliance
with laws and regulations relevant to its business operations
and to review the effectiveness of its regulatory compliance
procedures and system, and the Legal Compliance
Committee shall hold meeting at least once a year.
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During the Reporting Period, the Legal Compliance
Committee had held one meeting. The attendance of
the members of the Legal Compliance Committee at the
committee meetings is as follows:

RBERA EZRAREEEE -
R LRAMREERKENRZESERE
ZHFEREIT

oG

7,

Attendance/Number
of meetings during
the Reporting Period

HREHBLEE
KRB BERE
Mr. Chan Yan Kin Philip (Chairman) BRIRGE L& (/) Not applicable

(appointed on 30 September 2024) (RZE_NFENLA=THEZT) i A
Mr. Wong Chun Peng Stewart (Chairman) =R L (FE)

(resigned on 30 September 2024) (RZEZMFENA=+HET) 11
Mr. Liu Huaiyu BEF L 11
Ms. Zhang Guangfang RES X+t Not applicable

(appointed 21 June 2024) (R—Z-_MEAA-+—BEZM) TE A
Mr. So Ting Kong #REILSEAE

(resigned on 21 June 2024) (RZE-_WMFNA=-+—HEET) 11

During the Reporting Period, the Legal Compliance
Committee reviewed (i) the compliance policies of the
Company against the applicable laws and regulations, and (i)
the training and continuing professional development of the
Directors and Senior Management.

Auditor’s Remuneration

On 18 January 2023, due to their reorganisation of client
base, Ting Ho Kwan & Chan CPA Limited (“THKC CPA”),
the former external auditor of the Group (the “Auditor”) had
resigned as the Auditor and, with the recommendation from
the Audit Committee, the Board had appointed Ting Ho
Kwan & Chan (“THKC”) as the Auditor, which the partners
and management were the same as the directors and
management of THKC CPA, to hold office until the conclusion
of the 2024 AGM.
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On 27 March 2024, THKC had informed the Board that,
having taken into account various factors including their
available internal resources and effective allocation and
utilisation of their resources, they would retire as the Auditor
upon the expiration of their term of office at the forthcoming
AGM and wished not to seek for re-appointment at the
forthcoming AGM. With the recommendation from the Audit
Committee, the Board had proposed and the Shareholders
have approved the appointment of CL Partners as the Auditor
at the AGM held on 24 May 2024 which took effect on the
same day.

The Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year
2023 had been audited by THKC, while those for the Year
have been audited by CL Partners. The remuneration paid or
payable to THKC and CL Partners is set out as follows:
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Services rendered FriR AR 75 Fees paid/payable
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for the year ended 31 December
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Company Secretary

Ms. Leung Ho Yee (“Ms. Leung”) was appointed as the

RAME

R-ZT_TF+HA—HB RAaskt (R

Company Secretary on 1 October 2020. Ms. Leung has
been nominated by Boardroom Corporate Services (HK)
Limited (“Boardroom”), an external service provider, under
an engagement letter made between the Company and
Boardroom to be the Company Secretary.
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During the Reporting Period, Ms. Leung undertook not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training in accordance
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The primary person at
the Company with whom Ms. Leung has been contacting in
respect of company secretarial matters is Mr. Chan Dick Ki
Dicky, the chief financial officer of the Group.

Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The Board is responsible for monitoring the adequacy and
reviewing the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems (including those relating to ESG
risk, performance and reporting) of the Group. The scope
of the review is determined and recommended by the Audit
Committee and approved by the Board annually. The review
covers:

1. all material controls, including but not limited to financial,
operational and compliance controls;

2. risks management functions; and

3. the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff in connection with the accounting and financial
reporting function, as well as those relating to the
Group’s ESG performance and reporting of the Group
and their training programmes and relevant budget.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee assessed
the risk management and internal control environment of
the Group and reviewed the internal control review report
and internal control procedural manual of the Group and
is satisfied with the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems (including those relating to ESG risk,
performance and reporting). The Board considered the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems
were effective during the Reporting Period. The systems are
designed in consideration of the nature of business and the
organisation structure. Further, the systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure in operational
system and to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss. The system
is designed further to safeguard the Group’s assets, maintain
appropriate accounting records and financial reporting,
achieve efficiency of operations and ensure compliance with
the Listing Rules and all other applicable laws and regulations.
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The Group has engaged external independent professionals
(the “Adviser”) to review its risk management and internal
control systems for the Year and further enhance its risk
management and internal control systems as appropriate.
Such review is conducted annually. During the Reporting
Period, no material deficiency was discovered. With regards
to the recommendation on internal control system provided
by the external independent professionals, the Group has
established action plans for improvement.

The Board and the Audit Committee are of the view that there
are no material internal control defects noted. The Board
considered that the risk management and internal control
systems are effective and adequate.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group.
The Board has reviewed the need for an internal audit
function and is of the view that in light of the size, nature and
complexity of the business of the Group, it would be more
cost effective to appoint external independent professionals
to perform internal audit functions for the Group as the need
arises. Nevertheless, the Board will continue to review the
need for an internal audit function annually.

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibility for
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge and understand their responsibility
for preparing the consolidated financial statements and to
ensure that the consolidated financial statements of the Group
are prepared in a manner which reflects the true and fair view
of the state of affairs, results and cash flows of the Group and
are in compliance with the relevant accounting standards and
principles, applicable laws and disclosure provisions required
of the Listing Rules. The Directors are of the view that the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for each
financial year have been prepared on this basis. The Directors
continue to adopt the going concern approach in preparing
the consolidated financial statements.

Statement of the Company’s external auditor’s responsibilities
in respect of the consolidated financial statements is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report of this annual report.
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Disclaimer of Opinion

The Company’s independent auditor, CL Partners, issued a
disclaimer of opinion on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024, details
of which are set out in the section headed “Independent
Auditor’s Report” in this annual report, and the relevant
extract is set out below:

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

Scope limitation relating to going concern basis in
preparation of the consolidation financial statements
As set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group incurred a net loss of HK$48,680,000 during
the year ended 31 December 2024 and, as of that date,
the Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities of
HK$74,601,000 and HK$64,418,000, respectively.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had total liabilities
of HK$152,042,000, in which, trade payables of
HK$9,170,000, amount due to a non-controlling shareholder
of HK$1,188,000, lease liabilities of HK$20,141,000 and
other payables of HK$59,119,000 (including amounts due to
directors, amount due to a former director and provision for
litigation of HK$252,000, HK$8,513,000 and HK$15,818,000,
respectively) are repayable within one year, while the
Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$10,571,000. As stated in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements, these conditions indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, and therefore,
it may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business.

The Company has been implementing various plans and
measures to improve the Group’s liquidity and financial
position, as set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements. Based on these plans and measures, the
directors of the Company have prepared a cash flow
forecast for the Group, covering a period of not less than
twelve months from 31 December 2024. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, assuming the successful
implementation of these plans and measures, the Group will
have sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations
as they fall due and continue operating as a going concern.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements had been
prepared by the directors of the Company on a going concern
basis.
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The validity of the going concern assumption, and
consequently the appropriateness of the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis,
depends on the successful implementation and favourable
outcomes of those plans and measures, which are subject
to significant uncertainties, including (i) the successful
implementation of cost control measures and business plans
to improve the Group’s operating results and cash flows;
(i) the availability of additional sources of financing from the
controlling shareholder and a related company of the Group
as and when needed; and (iii) the feasibility of the fund-raising
activities to obtain financial resources as and when needed.

However, we have not been able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves that the events
or conditions underpinning the cash flow forecast of the
Group for going concern assessment are reasonable and
supportable because of (i) the lack of sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to support that the controlling shareholder and
a related company of the Group be able to provide sufficient
funding to the Group in the timing and manner that can
match the settlement of the Group’s liabilities and/or future
commitments; and (i) the lack of detailed analysis in relation
to the uncertainty of outcome of those plans and measures
and how variability in outcomes would affect the future cash
flows of the Group.

As a result of the lack of sufficient appropriate audit evidence
and the significant uncertainties relating to ongoing availability
of financing to the Group, we were unable to satisfy ourselves
about the appropriateness of the adoption of going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. There were no other satisfactory audit
procedures that we could adopt to conclude whether it is
appropriate to use the going concern assumption to prepare
these consolidated financial statements.

Should the Group fail to achieve the plans and measures as
set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, it
might not be able to continue to operate as a going concern,
and adjustments would have to be made to write down the
carrying amounts of its assets to their recoverable amounts,
to provide for any further liabilities that might arise, and to
reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as
current assets and current liabilities respectively. The effects
of these adjustments have not been reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Response to Disclaimer of Opinion

The directors of the Company have been undertaking
measures to improve the Group’s liquidity and financial
position.

The directors of the Company have given careful consideration
to the future liquidity and performance of the Group and its
available sources of finance in assessing whether the Group
will have sufficient financial resources to continue as going
concern. The following plans and measures are formulated
to mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve the financial
position of the Group:

(i)  the controlling shareholder of the Company has agreed
to provide continuous financial support to the Group to
enable it to meets its obligations when due and carry
on its business without a significant curtailment of
operations of the Company so as to enable it to meet
its liabilities when they fall due and carry on its business
for at least the next twelve months from the date of this
annual report;

(i) the management has agreed with a related company
of the Group, of which is controlled by the controlling
shareholder of the Company, for loan facility amounting
to RMB96,000,000 to finance the Group’s working
capital and commitments in the foreseeable future;

(i) the Group will identify and negotiate with various financial
institutions and identify various options for financing
the Group’s working capital and commitments in the
foreseeable future;

(iv) the Group has developed a plan to raise new capital
by carrying out fund raising activities including but not
limited to rights issue and placing of new shares;

(v) the Group will consider the strategic expansion in civet
coffee franchising by increasing the number of franchised
coffee shop, which can reduce the set up costs and
resource demands associated with the expansion; and

(vi) the management has been endeavoring to improve
the Group’s operating results and cash flows through
various cost control measures, including streamlining of
operations to minimise unnecessary expenses, evaluating
the possibility of workforce reductions or reduction of
payroll costs and human resources optimisation.
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Based on the above, and in preparing the consolidated
financial statements, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s
financial and liquidity position, and planned to improve
the liquidity by the above measures and the likelihood of
executing the above measures as planned. As such, the
Board considered the Group will have sufficient liquidity
to finance its operations for the next twelve months and
therefore is of the view that the Group would be able to
continue as a going concern.

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) has reviewed the Disclaimer for the Current
Year and has well noted the basis thereof. The management
has reviewed the impact of the Disclaimer on the Group and
considers that it does not have significant impact on the
Group’s daily operation subject to successful outcome of the
measures as set out in note 3 to the Financial Statements of
this annual report.

There was no disagreement between the views of the
Audit committee and the management in respect of (i) the
Disclaimer and (ii) the Company’s response to address the
Disclaimer.

Disclosure of Inside Information

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong and the Listing Rules and the overriding principle
that inside information should be announced promptly
when it is the subject of a decision. The procedures and
internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information are as follows:

e the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the
disclosure requirement under the Listing Rules as well
as the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
published by the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong;

e the Group has implemented and disclosed its policy
on fair disclosure by pursuing broad, non-exclusive
distribution of information to the public through channels
such as financial reporting, public announcements and
the Company'’s website;

ER iR RREGEMBERERK &
ZERNAEBZUHBERBE MR
WrrElFEB s ﬁ&ﬂ&m/}lb@@l«(&?ﬁu’f
ZlgrT b eI aEE - At EFEER
REAEEBERERBERMEARKI2MHE

AEBFE MRREAEEHERFELE -

ARmEGZZE S ((BRZEEE)) E%F‘ﬁ
REFZEEFBZRBERBAALBRMNER
@W‘%o*éfiE%Bﬂﬁ/ﬁ%%@iﬁﬂﬂﬂ
$%IZE/§: WRAHAKREZBEE
(?ﬁ?$¢¥&ﬂ?ﬁr%$&%%Mﬁ%sﬁﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ’\]
AR A BERTE -

EZLZECHEREMR()EBELIREEZR
%&mﬁAﬁﬁfﬁﬂﬁﬁiiﬁé%z
CEFETESRE DR -

REARFH

AEBNMBEREEELPESNMEELK
HEKRA R EmBRAMEBITHER &
BRARANEEEVEALEGIATHRANE
N REREHRAEEEMNREF XA
EEIREEMERN T ¢

/I_,\

s AEHEREEBKRERNEELMR
AIETHRBEREARELEF B
EEBERZEERMNIABEER
E3EIE

o AEEFBUBHRE RAERAR
ﬂﬂﬁﬁ#LWﬁA%Ez&#ﬁ%
WEER  UWEHEMATHEERE

Kafelaku Coffee Holding Limited  Annual Report 2024 1713



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

ﬂé% éiﬁ#& = (&)

e the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of
confidential or inside information; and

e the Group has established and implemented procedures
for responding to external enquiries about the Group’s
affairs, so that only the Executive Directors, the Company
Secretary and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company
are authorised to communicate with parties outside the
Group.

General Meetings with Shareholders

The AGM is a forum in which the Board and the Shareholders
communicate directly and exchange views concerning the
affairs and overall performance of the Group, and its future
developments, etc. At the AGM, the Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) are available to attend
to questions raised by the Shareholders. The external auditors
of the Company is also invited to be present at the AGM to
address to queries of the shareholders concerning the audit
procedures and the auditors’ report.

The forthcoming AGM will be held on Wednesday, 11 June
2025, the notice of which shall be sent to the Shareholders at
least 21 days prior to the meeting.

Shareholders’ Rights

Convening of Extraordinary General Meeting on
Requisition by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles, the Board may,
whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general
meeting (“EGM”). EGMs shall also be convened on the
requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date
of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing
to the Board or the Company Secretary for the purpose of
requiring an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition. If, within 21 days
of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisition(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
the requisition(s) by the Company.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings
and Procedures for Shareholders’ Nomination of
Directors

To put forward proposals at a general meeting, Shareholders
should submit a written notice of those proposals with
detailed contact information to the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at 26/F,
Chinachem Century Tower, 178 Gloucester Road, Wai Chai,
Hong Kong. The request will be verified by the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong and
upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to include
the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles, no person, other than
a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Board
for election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at
any general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention
to propose that person for election as a Director and notice
in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected shall
have been lodged at the head office or at the registration
office of the Company. The period for lodgment of the notices
required under the Article will commence no earlier than
the day after the dissemination of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
7 days prior to the date of such general meeting and the
minimum length of the period during which such notices to
the Company may be given will be at least 7 days.

Communication with the Shareholders

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’ Communication
Policy with the objective of providing the Shareholders with
equal and timely access to information about the Company in
order to enable the Shareholders to exercise their rights in an
informed manner and allow them to engage actively with the
Company.
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Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries
to the Board

Shareholders may direct their enquiries concerning
their shareholdings to the Company’s share registrars.
Shareholders may also make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent that such information has been
made publicly available by the Company. All written enquiries
or requests may be forwarded to the Company’s head office
or by fax to (852) 2366 6983, or by email to ir@kafelaku.com.

The addresses of the Company’s head office and the
Company’s share registrars can be found in the section
“Corporate Information” of this annual report.

Investor Relations

To ensure transparent and comprehensive disclosures to
investors, the Group delivers information of the Group to the
public through various channels, including general meeting,
public announcement and financial reports. The investors are
also able to access the latest news and information of the
Group via our website (http://www.kafelaku.com).

In order to maintain good and effective communication, the
Company together with the Board extend their invitation to all
Shareholders and encourage them to attend the AGM and all
future general meetings.

The Shareholders may also forward their enquiries and
suggestions in writing to the Company to the followings:

Address: 26/F, Chinachem Century Tower
178 Gloucester Road
Wai Chai,
Hong Kong

Email: ir@kafelaku.com

The Board has reviewed the Group’s shareholders and
communication activities conducted during the Year and is
satisfied with the implementation and effectiveness of the
Shareholders’ Communication Policy.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted a dividend policy. Subject to
the approval of the Shareholders and requirement of the
relevant law, the Company shall pay annual dividends to
the Shareholders if the Group is profitable, operations
environment is stable and there is no significant investment or
commitment made by the Group.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take
into account, inter alia: (a) the Group’s actual and expected
financial performance; (b) the Group’s expected working
capital requirements and future expansion plans; (c) the
Group’s debt to equity ratios and the debt level; (d) any
restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed
by the Group’s lenders; (e) general economic conditions,
business cycle of the Group’s business and other internal and
external factors that may have an impact on the business
or financial performance and position of the Company; (f)
dividends received from the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates; (g) the Shareholders’ and investors’ expectation
and industry’s norm; and (h) any other conditions or factors
that the Board deems relevant.

The Board may update, amend, modify and/or cancel the
dividend policy upon review from time to time.

Significant Changes in Constitutional
Documents

During the Year, in order to (i) reflect the change of Company
name and (i) comply with Rule 2.07A of the Listing Rules, the
Company’s third amended and restated memorandum and
articles of association was adopted by a Shareholder’ special
resolution at an extraordinary general meeting held on 19
February 2024.

Save for the above, there had been no significant changes in
the constitutional documents of the Company during the Year
and up to the date of the annual report.

IR B BUR

EX2CRMBEHBR - FRRHLER R
RIBABER AT  WAKERSRF
LEREREAASEYESNRE FK
7 ARARARRIKRNFERS

EEehEERIRMEMBRER - TFEEE (&
FEE) (@ ARENERMFERFT BRI
OAEENAHEEESERERKER
FHEl O AKEBES R R REBKFE
(o)A E B RE ALK AR SR8 5 AN E0 £
AR @ ERBEENRN AEBEBH
BERAHY ARAEZERRBEBIY
BRBELMANEMASINEE : () B RNAF
B DA KB E D REE AR S - (IR R
REEATWEHRITERS : ROES
SR SHEBNEMNEMBERSIREE -

ERSRRAIBER A 5] Bk,
KBV BB ©

ERMHAZERER

RAFE - 73() RRZA R F) 5 78 0 2 F K (i)
By EMRRAE2.07AGRKRE - AARR
“EONE AT ABETHRRERX
G LEUABRRFERIRBRTARRKAR QA E
=D RIERT RESI WA ERKH LR -

B EmES RRAHNERXHERAFE
MBEFHRARYESAEHL -

Kafelaku Coffee Holding Limited ~ Annual Report 2024 117



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHE

The Board is pleased to present the annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements (the
“Financial Statements”) of the Company for the Reporting
Period.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out
in Note 37 to the Financial Statements of this annual report.
During the Reporting Period, the Group is principally engaged
in the provision of food and beverage services in Hong Kong
and the PRC.

An analysis of the Group’s results for the Reporting Period by
segments is set out in Note 7 to the Financial Statements of
this annual report.

Business Review

The business review of the Group for the Reporting Period,
including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future
developments in the business of the Group, is set out in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 8 to 21 of this annual report. These discussions form
part of this Directors’ report.

Results and Appropriations

The Group’s results for the Reporting Period are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 141 to 142 of this annual
report.

Dividend

The Directors has resolved not to recommend the payment of
a final dividend for the Reporting Period (2023: Nil).

Summary of Financial Information

The summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 252 of this
annual report.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 15 to the Financial
Statements of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
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Share Capital

The Company’s issued share capital as at 31 December 2024
was 1,410,250,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

Details of movements of the share capital of the Company
during the Reporting Period are set out in Note 24 to the
Financial Statements of this annual report.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing Shareholders.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the Year are set out in Note 37 to the
Financial Statements and the consolidated statement of
changes in equity of this annual report, respectively.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2024, the Company has no reserves
available for distribution to the Shareholders.

Major Customers and Suppliers
For the year ended 31 December 2024:

(i)  due to the nature of the Group’s business, its customers
mainly represented walk-in customers from the general
public. As such, the Directors consider that it is not
practicable to identify the five largest customers of
the Group, and the Group did not rely on any single
customer; and

(i) the aggregate amount of purchases attributable
to the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 39.1% (2023: approximately 49.9%)
of the Group’s total purchases, and the largest
supplier accounted for approximately 20.0% (2023:
approximately 25%) of the Group’s total purchases. To
the best of the knowledge of the Directors, none of the
Directors, their close associates or any Shareholder
which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital had an interest in
these major suppliers.
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Directors

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date
of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Liang Naiming

(Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ma Xiaoping

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Cui Zifeng

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Liu Huaiyu
Ms. Zhang Guangfang
(appointed on 21 June 2024)
Mr. Chan Yan Kin Philip
(appointed on 30 September 2024)
Mr. So Ting Kong
(resigned on 21 June 2024)
Mr. Wong Chun Peng Stewart
(resigned on 30 September 2024)

Pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles, any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only
until the first annual general meeting of the Company after
his appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election.
Accordingly, Ms. Zhang Guangfang and Mr. Chan Yan Kin
Philip will retire from office as Directors at the forthcoming
AGM, and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 108(a) of the Articles, at each AGM, one
third of the Directors for the time being (not including those
Directors who are subject to re-election pursuant to Article
112 as described above) shall retire from office by rotation,
whereby Mr. Liang Naiming and Mr. Liu Huaiyu will retire from
office as Directors at the forthcoming AGM, and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.
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Biographical Details of Directors

The biographical details of the Directors are disclosed in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors” on pages
73 to 81 in this annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has entered into a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save for the related party transactions disclosed in Note 36 to
the Financial Statements of this annual report, no contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
holding company or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interests directly or indirectly
subsisted at the end of the Reporting Period or at any time
during the Reporting Period.

Management Contracts

No management contracts concerning the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered
into or existed during the Reporting Period.

Contract of Significance

Saved as disclosed in this annual report, there was no
contract of significance between the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, and a Controlling Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries for the Year.
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Remuneration of the Directors, Senior
Management and the Five Highest Paid
Individuals

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five
highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in Note 9 to
the Financial Statements of this annual report.

The emoluments paid or payable to the Senior Management
of the Group who are not Directors were within the following
bands:
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Year ended 31 December

BE+t=-A=+—-HLHFE

2024 2023

—EDNFE ZT=F

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A" A#

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = % 1,000,000 % 7T 3 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7 7T & 2,000,000 78 7T 1 —

Permitted Indemnity Provision EAES ARG

Pursuant to the Articles, the Directors, managing Directors,
alternate Directors, auditors, secretary and other officers
for the time being of the Company shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them shall or may incur or sustain by or
about the execution of their duty in their offices or in relation
thereto.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance which provides appropriate cover for the directors
of the Company and directors of the subsidiaries of the
Group.

Emolument Policy

The Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the
Group’s emolument policy and structure for all remuneration
of the Directors and the Senior Management, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market practices. The remuneration of
the Directors is determined with reference to the economic
situation, the market conditions, the responsibilities and
duties assumed by each Director as well as their individual
performance.
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The Company has adopted a share scheme for the purpose
of, among others, attracting and retaining outstanding talents
and to fully mobilise the senior management team and core
employees, details of which are set out in the section headed
“Share Scheme” below.

Pension Schemes

Details of the Group’s pension schemes for the Reporting
Period are set out in Note 4.13 to the Financial Statements of
this annual report.

Directors’ Interests in Competing
Businesses

As of the date of this report, none of the Directors or
Controlling Shareholders or their respective close associates
had any interests in a business which competes or is likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group, nor any other conflict of interest which any such
person has or may have with the Group.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities
(including sale of treasury shares, if any) of the Company
during the Year. The Company did not redeem any of its
listed securities during the Year.

The Company did not have any treasury shares as at 31
December 2024.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Apart from the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures”, “Substantial Shareholders’ and
Other Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures” and “Share Option
Scheme” below, at no time during the Reporting Period
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of Shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Director or their respective associates nor was the Company
and any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors, or their respective associates to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.
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Equity-Linked Agreement

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Scheme”
below, no equity-linked agreements were entered into during
Reporting Period or subsisted at the end of the Year.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is devoted to promoting and maintaining the
environmental and social sustainable development of the
regions where it operates. As a responsible enterprise,
the Group strives to comply with all the relevant laws and
regulations in terms of the environmentally friendliness, health
and safety, adopts effective measures, conserves energy and
reduces waste.

A report on environmental, social and governance matters
is set out in the section headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 22 to 72 of this annual report.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and
Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements and the risk of non-
compliance with such requirements. The Group conducts on-
going reviews of newly enacted/revised laws and regulations
affecting its operations. The Company is not aware of any
non-compliance in any material respect with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the business
and operation of the Group during the Reporting Period.

Relationship with Employees, Suppliers,
Customers and other Stakeholders

The Group understands that the success of the Group’s
business depends on the support from its key stakeholders,
including employees, customers, suppliers, banks, regulators
and Shareholders. The Group will continue to ensure effective
communication and maintain good relationship with each of
its key stakeholders.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee together with the management have
reviewed the accounting standards and practices adopted
by the Group and discussed auditing, internal controls and
financial reporting matters in connection with the preparation
of the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the Year.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Directors confirmed that, the Company has maintained the
amount of public float as required under the Listing Rules as
at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report.

Auditor

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement (the
“Change of Auditor Announcement”) dated 18 January
2023. THKC CPA had resigned as the Auditor with effect
from the 18 January 2023 as THKC CPA was commencing
a reorganisation of their client base. The Board, with the
recommendation from the Audit Committee, had resolved to
appoint THKC, which the partners and management are the
same as the directors and management of THKC CPA, as the
Auditor with effect from 18 January 2023. Please refer to the
Change of Auditor Announcement for details.

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement dated
27 March 2024, THKC had informed the Board on the same
date that, having taken into account various factors including
their currently available internal resources and effective
allocation and utilisation of their resources, they would retire as
the Independent Auditor upon the expiration of their current
term of office at the forthcoming AGM and wished not to seek
for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM. The Board, with
the recommendation of the Audit Committee, had proposed
the appointment of CL Partners as the new Auditor to fill
the vacancy following the retirement of THKC, which was
approved by the Shareholders at the AGM held on 24 May
2024 (the “2024 AGM”) and to hold office until the conclusion
of the forthcoming AGM. Please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 27 March 2024 and 24 May 2024 for
details. The Financial Statements have been audited by CL
Partners.
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Share Option Scheme

The Company has conditionally adopted a share option
scheme on 16 June 2016 (the “Share Option Scheme”).
Pursuant to an ordinary resolution approved by the
Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting 2024 (the
“AGM”), the Share Option Scheme has been terminated with
effect from the same day. Please refer to the Company’s
circular and announcement dated 29 April 2024 and 24 May
2024, respectively, for details.

Share Scheme

The share scheme of the Company (the “Share Scheme”)
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed by the
Shareholders on 24 May 2024 (the “Adoption Date”) for the
purposes of (a) binding the interests of the Shareholders,
the Company and its employees to focus on the realisation
of the Company’s strategic development objectives and to
drive the performance growth; (b) improving the Group’s long-
term incentive mechanism to attract and retain outstanding
talents and to fully mobilise the senior management team and
core employees; and (c) retaining or otherwise maintaining
on-going relationships with eligible participants. Eligible
participants of the Share Scheme include any employees
(the “Employee Participants”), related entities and service
providers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries. The total
number of new Shares which might be issued in respect of
the award Share to be granted under the Share Scheme was
110,510,000 Shares, representing 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company (excluding treasury shares, if any) on
the Adoption Date.

The Share Scheme became effective on the Adoption Date
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years commencing on the Adoption Date, the
principal terms of which were summarised in Appendix Il of
the circular of the Company dated 29 April 2024.

On 29 August 2024 (the “Date of Grant”), an aggregate of
110,500,000 Awarded Shares, representing approximately
8.5% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
Date of Grant, were awarded to 55 Employee Participants
who were full-time employees of the Group. The previous
closing price and the closing price of the Shares on the
Date of Grant were HK$0.175 per Share and HK$0.17 per
Share, respectively. For detail, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 29 August 2024. As at 31 December
2024, the Awarded Shares were held by the trustee of the
Share Scheme pending vesting.
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Details of the movements of the awarded shares during the R EEEIR D EFHFHBWOT ¢
year are as follows:
Balance as at Lapsed/ Balance as at
Performance 1 January Granted cancelled Vested 31 December
Date of grant ~ Vestingperiod  targets 2024 during the Year  during the Year  during the Year 2024
RZB-QmE
mt S t:3 tZA=t-H
RiEAS FEH RABE -A-RzER EREL  EREN/EH EnER &R
5ofulltime 29 August2024 29 August 2024 - Qbtain grade good - 110,500,000 - - 110,500,000
employees 31 January 2025 orabove in annual
appraisal
55%2%EE -“TME  ZBomE REEEZRAW - 110500000 - - 110500000
MNAZTAB  NRZthB  GREFFUL
E232Rf {4
-B=1-H

As at 31 December 2024, there were 10,000 Shares available
to be granted under the Share Scheme. The maximum
number of Shares which may be awarded to a selected
participant under the Share Scheme shall not exceed 1% of
the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

The Remuneration Committee, at its meeting held on 31
March 2025, has reviewed the Share Scheme.

Disclosure of Interests

A. Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures
As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short
positions of the Directors and chief executives of
the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meanings of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFQ”)) which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which any such director or
chief executive is taken or deemed to have under such
provision of the SFO) or which were required pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
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of members of the Company, or which were required,
pursuant to standard of dealings by Directors as referred
to the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and

the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(1) Interests in Shares

HERI RN E 7R N B R B B P B A 2R BOK
BT

(1) PR DHy R

Long/Short Number of Approximate
Position in Shares held/ percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature the Shares interested in shareholding
RRBH BE/BH RERK
EEfE 5/ 1HE HE/ KR BEzRHOEA Bk
Mr. Liang Interest in a controlled Long Position 564,993,860 40.06%
corporation (Note)

REAE REHEE R (M) e

Interest in a controlled Short Position 55,144,490 3.91%

corporation (Note)
R =B ER () %

o)

Note: Mr. Liang owns 100% of Kafelaku Industrial, which in turn owns
564,993,860 Shares (long position) and 55,144,490 Shares
(short position). As such, Mr. Liang is deemed, or taken to
be, interested in all the Shares held by Kafelaku Industrial for
the purposes of the SFO. Mr. Liang is a director of Kafelaku
Industrial.

(2) Interests in the shares of associated

MI5E : 22 % 4 % A Kafelaku Industrial 8 100%
# 25 M Kafelaku Industrial B # &
564,993,860 A& 5 (4F &) K 55,144,490
BRERH CkE) Bt EFEHFRHPE
BEIME  REEERBRR  HWEER
Kafelaku Industrial % 7 #) 2 B i% (7 &
B o 2% & B Kafelaku Industrial &)
EE-

(2) PAEECEBR D WS

corporation
Name of associated Capacity/ Percentage of
Name of Director corporation Nature shareholding
EEpR HEEE SR B & REBDE
Mr. Liang Kafelaku Industrial Beneficial owner 100%
REE Kafelaku Industrial ExEAA
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, B EXFTEEN RZE_NFE+ =

none of the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company had any interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO), which were: (a) notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO to (including interests and
short positions in which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); (b) pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, entered in the register as
referred to therein; or (c) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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B. Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ B. FEREREM A T ARG - 18

Interests and Short Positions in Shares, AROREEENEEZRAS
Underlying Shares and Debentures
As at 31 December 2024, based on the best knowledge RZFEZMFE+=—A=+—H - TF %
and information of the Directors, the interest and short Eoi ﬁ%ﬂ&ﬁ% HEAL EE(
positions of the persons/entities (other than the Directors ERARNAEEITHRABRRIN B"ZIK
or chief executive of the Company) in the shares and EE3E 121‘5 f'ﬁ RO EBRBEES R
underlying shares of the Company which were notified HE 1%% EXVEZE 2 K% 37 B E ﬁz
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to MARQ B LB Z A uE)\ffETffl =
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or required to &EﬁiéfflmfﬁlJ%SSG BARABAFRENE
be recorded in the register required to be kept by the MR AR ERIOREIT ¢
Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
Interest in Shares IR D B #E
Long/Short Number of Approximate
Position in Shares held/ percentage of
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature the Shares interested in shareholding
R 58/ k% RERLN
RREE KA Bt/ ME BE/ %R BRzBRAYA Bak
Kafelaku Industrial Beneficial owner (Note 1) Long Position 564,993,860 40.06%
Kafelaku Industrial EnmAA ) §9-)
Short Position 55,144,490 3.91%
)
JL INVESTMENTS CAPITAL Person having a security Long Position 564,993,860 40.06%
LIMITED (“JL Investments”) interest in Shares (Note 2)

JL INVESTMENTS CAPITAL EEROEREZ AL B
LIMTED (TJL Investments])  (Ff3E2)

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen Joseph Interest in a controlled Long Position 564,993,860 40.06%
(“Mr. Lau”) corporation (Note 2)
EEEE(T8%E)) R R ER (ME2) A
Mr. Cui Zhigiang Beneficial owner (Note 3) Long Position 84,760,000 6.01%
piti b et INCIER)) e
Interest of spouse (Note 3)  Long Position 55,800,000 3.96%
[ GER)) e
Ms. Tan Qingxuan (‘Mrs. Cui”’)  Beneficial owner (Note 3) Long Position 55,800,000 3.96%
BEMRLLT ([EXAL EnlA A (H:E3) e
Interest of spouse (Note 3)  Long Position 84,760,000 6.01%
BB e (fEE3) e
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Long/Short Number of Approximate
Position in Shares held/ percentage of
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature the Shares interested in shareholding
RRAH BE/ BB RESN
BRRE® 4 5/ %8 HE/ %R BEzzROHA BOl
Lu Huaying (“Ms. Lu”) Interest in a controlled Long Position 110,500,000 7.84%
corporation (Note 4)
EZx((Ezt]) R R ER (Mtd) A
Wonder Peak Holding Limited ~ Trustee of a trust (Note 4) Long Position 110,500,000 7.84%
(“Wonder Peak”)
Wonder Peak Holding Limited 5352 25T A (Fii7E4) e
([Wonder Peak |)
DT Cloud Investment Company  Beneficial owner (Note 5) Long Position 76,480,000 5.42%
Limited (‘DT Cloud”)
DT Cloud Investment Company Bz A (Fif:5) e
Limited ([ DT Cloud )
REZENEHREEESEY  Interestinacontrolled Long Position 76,480,000 5.42%
TEEREE)(RAERM)  corporation (Note 5)
AEMEREFESSY  XEHiEREm(MEs) e
rE(EREE) (REEM])
ATEREIERER A Interest in a controlled Long Position 76,480,000 5.42%
(‘RAEEH corporation (Note 5)
AmBERZERERAT Rt B ER (Es) FAE
(IREEH])
ATBEREEERFR L Interest in a controlled Long Position 76,480,000 5.42%
(RREE" corporation (Note 5)
AamEBEEERH L Rt B ER (M:Xs) A
(IREEE])
AEMEMERREERERE Interest in a controlled Long Position 76,480,000 5.42%
BRAFI(RABE corporation (Note 5)
AMETERREEREE XEHiEER (ME5) H8
BRAR(RAHRZ])
BEMSEEEEBRAR  Interestin acontrolled Long Position 76,480,000 5.42%

rEBRS)

BEMEEERERARAF

(IEBRE))

corporation (Note 5)
Rt =B R (HEE5)
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Long/Short Number of Approximate
Position in Shares held/ percentage of
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature the Shares interested in shareholding
i g ] B8/ B RERLA
RREH HE Bt/ MHE BE/ %R BHRzBRAHA Bok
ARERREERLA Interest in a controlled Long Position 76,480,000 5.42%
(‘BEER) corporation (Note 5)
ERERRERRAA XEHEEER (fEs)  He
([BERER])
Zhao Xu (“Mr. Zhao”) Interest in a controlled Long Position 76,480,000 5.42%
corporation (Note 5)
Zhao Xu ([ Zhao % % ]) St EEER (s HA
IRPRERESER Interest in a controlled Long Position 76,480,000 5.42%
BRARCIARN) corporation (Note 5)
IHPRERESERE R;slEEER (M5  Fe
BARAR(GIARR])
FETHREEERLEERE Interest in a controlled Long Position 76,480,000 5.42%
BERAR(LEHE) corporation (Note 5)
TEBETEEEELEEE sl EEER (ME5)  Fe
BRAR(TLEEE])
FERERREEAR AT Interestin a controlled Long Position 76,480,000 5.42%
“‘LEBRE" corporation (Note 5)
TEREAZFREEERAR  XEHEEER (HEs) He
([LBRE]
REPREHERAR Interest in a controlled Long Position 76,480,000 5.42%
(‘REFR) corporation (Note 5)
REPREFER TR XEHEEER (fEs)  He
([REHH])
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Notes:

$ﬁ I|/\

Mr. Liang owns 100% of Kafelaku Industrial, which in turn owns
564,993,860 Shares (long position) and 55,144,490 Shares (short
position). As such, Mr. Liang is deemed, or taken to be, interested in
all the Shares held by Kafelaku Industrial for the purposes of the SFO.
Mr. Liang is a director of Kafelaku Industrial.

Mr. Lau owns 100% of JL Investments, which in turn has a security
interest in 564,993,860 Shares. As such, Mr. Lau is deemed, or taken
to be, interested in all interest in the Shares held by JL Investments for
the purposes of the SFO.

Mrs. Cui is the spouse of Mr. Cui Zhigiang. Each of them is deemed or
taken to be interested in all the Shares in which the another has, or is
deemed to have, an interest for the purpose of the SFO.

Ms. Lu owns 100% of Wonder Peak, which is the trustee of a trust
holding 110,500,000 Shares. As such, Ms. Lu is deemed, or taken to
be, interested in all interest in the Shares held by Wonder Peak for the
purposes of the SFO.

DT Cloud is wholly owned by 8 & Z &, which in turn is 70.00%
indirectly owned by % & Bl , 0.01% directly owned by & S/ and
0.01% directly owned by JTFE# . 3 & Bl Et is 60.00% and 40.00%
owned by A B & and AW, respectively. & SRI& is wholly
owned by FaiE {8J&, which in turn is 55.00% owned by Mr. Zhao. /T
PRl is 45.00% and 55.00% owned by t#EEE and ERFPRE

BAIEREARAR (BERPE), respectively. FEEBIE is 90.94%
indirectly owned by F##% % . ER+ £} is wholly owned by R 5+
B Assuch, RAER, RAEK, SE/ME, IATE, RARE,
WAME, AEER, Mr. Zhao, FEBRE, FEIRE, BRFT R and
e L are all deemed, or taken to be, interested in all interest in the
Shares held by DT Cloud for the purposes of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, to the best knowledge and
information of the Directors, as of 31 December 2024,
no other persons/entities (other than the Directors or
chief executives of the Company) had any interest or a
short position in the Shares and underlying Shares which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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Connected Transactions and Related Party
Transactions

On 5 July 2024, Jiangsu Kafelaku, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, has entered into a loan agreement with
Guangzhou Kafelaku, which is owned as to approximately
77.76% equity interest by Mr. Liang, an executive Director
and the controlling Shareholder, for the Loan. The
Loan constituted as connected transactions of financial
assistance provided by the Group, and was subject to the
reporting, announcement and independent Shareholders’
approval under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the
Company has made the request for repayment of the Loan
and accrued interests, the Board would not submit the
transaction for approval by the independent Shareholders.
As at 31 December 2024, the balance of the Loan was
HK$10,239,000. For details, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 31 March 2025 and Note 36 to the
Financial Statements.

Save for the above, the Company had not entered into any
connected transaction during the Reporting Period which
is required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules. Related
party transactions entered into by the Group during the
Reporting Period are disclosed in Note 36 to the Financial
Statements.

As at 31 December 2024, there were balances of borrowing
by the Company from (i) Mr. Ma Xiaoping, an executive
Director, for the amount of HK$126,000; and (i) Mr.
Cui Zifeng, a non-executive Director, for the amount of
HK$126,000. Such amounts due to Directors/former Director
would be constituted as connected transactions of financial
assistance received by the Group under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Since the said borrowings were on normal
commercial terms or better and were not secured by the
assets of the Group, the borrowings were fully exempted from
any reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Please refer to Note 36 to the Financial Statements for
further details.

REXZREBLXS

%:;:mitﬂﬁa KRR BEEBH B

NAIEABEE MR (AT ES R
Hxﬂxﬁiz@ﬁ'ﬁii‘éﬁﬁ%’]??m%ﬂx%)E‘ﬁf%‘i
RINERME ZEREKAEEIREN
BEHsHRERS WBBTLETHRAUSE
TAAE R R - NE LB RBERLERTE -
AR AARBREEZEERREFFBEZ

TR - HEBEFETEBEEZR %hiﬁiﬂx
BHLAE o EA_ZE_EEJr_H_Jr A -
FEREE £ 10,239,0008 7T - HRAFEIE - ?%43

MARBBHA-_ST-_AF=A=+—H
BN E MBI HRERMIFES6 ©

Br ESCRTatE SN - AR E R RE SRR E
AIVAMBERSmMARE EMRANET
WE - ANEERFEHANTLNEE TR
SHWERYVERKRIFES6 -

RZZE-_WF+=—A=+—H AR7XA ()
MITEFH /NN TR EMEREHR R 126,000
/%-575 MiFERITESETEBLENER
ﬁ%%126000/9§75 B A& _E TR RIS 14A

CHERNEE AIAEENRIEBEK
$'¥lﬁﬁuﬁzﬁﬂkéﬂﬁﬂ’ﬁ'ﬂk 25 BN E
LS T IE — AR TS AR RS R TT -

HYWFAREEEEERA - it - BT
2R RET LT RIE 14AZE R ER B R

MRIE - E—THFBHELHM B RRMFESG -

Kafelaku Coffee Holding Limited  Annual Report 2024 133



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEERE @)

Saved as disclosed in this annual report and the related party
transaction disclosed in Note 36 to the Financial Statements,
no transactions, arrangements, contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or
his connected entity had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, were entered into or subsisted at the end of the
Reporting Period or at any time during the Reporting Period.

Professional Tax Advice Recommended

If the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications
of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the
exercise of any rights in relation to the Shares, they are
advised to consult an expert.

Annual General Meeting and Closure of
Register of Members

The forthcoming AGM is scheduled to be held at 26/F,
Chinachem Century Tower, 178 Gloucester Road, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong on Wednesday, 11 June 2025 at 11:00 a.m. For
determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 6 June 2025 to Wednesday, 11 June 2025, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of the Shares
will be registered. In order to attend and vote at the AGM,
all share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Share Registrar,
Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited, at 2103B, 21st
Floor, 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 5 June
2025.

Change in Information of Directors

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change of
information of the Directors is set out below:

Since 5 August 2024, Mr. Liu has been appointed as an
independent director and chairman of audit committee of
BitFuFu Inc. (NASDAQ: FuFu), a company listed on NASDAQ.
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Events after the Reporting Date of 31
December 2024

Details of the events after the reporting date of 31 December
2024 has been disclosed in Management Discussion and
Analysis section of this annual report. Save as disclosed
therein and elsewhere in this annual report, the Board is not
aware of any significant event requiring disclosure that has
taken place subsequent to 31 December 2024 and up to the
date of this report.

On behalf of the Board
Liang Naiming
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 31 March 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB R &

@L Partners

To the Shareholders of Kafelaku Coffee Holding Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Disclaimer of Opinion

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial
statements of Kafelaku Coffee Holding Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 141 to 251, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the
matter described in the “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion”
section of our report, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for
an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.
In all other respects, in our opinion the consolidated financial
statements have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

Scope limitation relating to going concern basis in preparation
of the consolidation financial staterments

As set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group incurred a net loss of HK$48,680,000 during
the year ended 31 December 2024 and, as of that date,
the Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities of
HK$74,601,000 and HK$64,418,000, respectively.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
B 2B ENERE (@)

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion (Continued)

Scope limitation relating to going concern basis in preparation
of the consolidation financial statements (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had total liabilities
of HK$152,042,000, in which trade payables of
HK$9,170,000, amount due to a non-controlling shareholder
of HK$1,188,000, lease liabilities of HK$20,141,000 and
other payables of HK$59,119,000 (including amounts due to
directors amount due to a former director and provision for
litigation of HK$252,000, HK$8,513,000 and HK$15,818,000,
respectively) are repayable within one year, while the
Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$10,571,000. As stated in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements, these conditions indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, and therefore,
it may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business.

The Company has been implementing various plans and
measures to improve the Group’s liquidity and financial
position, as set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements. Based on these plans and measures, the
directors of the Company have prepared a cash flow
forecast for the Group, covering a period of not less than
twelve months from 31 December 2024. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, assuming the successful
implementation of these plans and measures, the Group will
have sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations
as they fall due and continue operating as a going concern.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements had been
prepared by the directors of the Company on a going concern
basis.

The validity of the going concern assumption, and
consequently the appropriateness of the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis,
depends on the successful implementation and favourable
outcomes of those plans and measures, which are subject
to significant uncertainties, including (i) the successful
implementation of cost control measures and business plans
to improve the Group’s operating results and cash flows;
(i) the availability of additional sources of financing from the
controlling shareholder and a related company of the Group
as and when needed; and (iii) the feasibility of the fund-raising
activities to obtain financial resources as and when needed.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
B 2B ENERE (&)

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion (Continued)

Scope limitation relating to going concern basis in preparation
of the consolidation financial statements (Continued)
However, we have not been able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves that the events
or conditions underpinning the cash flow forecast of the
Group for going concern assessment are reasonable and
supportable because of (i) the lack of sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to support that the controlling shareholder and
a related company of the Group be able to provide sufficient
funding to the Group in the timing and manner that can
match the settlement of the Group’s liabilities and/or future
commitments; and (i) the lack of detailed analysis in relation
to the uncertainty of outcome of those plans and measures
and how variability in outcomes would affect the future cash
flows of the Group.

As a result of the lack of sufficient appropriate audit evidence
and the significant uncertainties relating to ongoing availability
of financing to the Group, we were unable to satisfy ourselves
about the appropriateness of the adoption of going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. There were no other satisfactory audit
procedures that we could adopt to conclude whether it is
appropriate to use the going concern assumption to prepare
these consolidated financial statements.

Should the Group fail to achieve the plans and measures, as
set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, it
might not be able to continue to operate as a going concern,
and adjustments would have to be made to write down the
carrying amounts of its assets to their recoverable amounts,
to provide for any further liabilities that might arise, and to
reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as
current assets and current liabilities respectively. The effects
of these adjustments have not been reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
B EERE @)

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2023 were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmaodified opinion on those statements with
material uncertainty related to the going concern on 27 March
2024.

Responsibilities of Directors and those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRS
Accounting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are also responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process. Those
charged with governance assists the directors of the
Company in discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
B 2B ENERE (&)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to
issue an auditor’s report. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with as agreed terms of engagement
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of the report.

However, because of the matter described in the “Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion” section of our report, we were not
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide
a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial
statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

CL Partners CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Fong Ho Keung

Practising Certificate number: PO8079
Hong Kong

31 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meBRanREMEEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #{ %2 —ZF — U+ - A =+—HIFF/ZF

2024 2023
—E-E —E-=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHERT FET
Revenue U 25 8 139,620 178,523
Other income RN 8 2,983 2,918
Cost of materials consumed FT FEM RLRC AR (56,006) (63,878)
Employee benefits expense BEERBAFAX 9 (62,354) (51,946)
Depreciation e 10 (22,909) (24,479)
Other operating expenses HEtEERX 10 (33,751) (39,518)
Gain on early termination of RERIEHEWRF5E
leases, net 11 5
Gain on deconsolidation of BUB&RE AR —EM B
a subsidiary NAEZ WS 23(c) - 17,821
Impairment loss on financial TEHEEBEEAT
assets under expected credit TREEREBEESE
loss model, net R (1,086) (36)
Impairment loss on property, W BEREREREEE
plant and equipment (865) (563)
Impairment loss on right-of-use 1§ 3 # & &R (E & 18
assets (5,588) (3,536)
Finance costs B 75 A AR 11 (5,404) (7,766)
(Loss) profit before taxation BRELAT (B518) &R (45,349) 7,545
Income tax (expense) credit e (AX)#e 12 (3,331) 427
(Loss) profit for the year FR(ER) &R (48,680) 7,972
Other comprehensive (expense) Hth &M@ (FIs2) A
income
ltem that may be reclassified ARERNE B EFI A BT
subsequently to profit or loss: IR -
Exchange difference arising BMEBINEE I IR
from translation of financial HIFE H Z 58
statements of foreign operations (136) 1,044
Total comprehensive (expense) R (B ) A5
income for the year (48,816) 9,016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

meBEakEMEZERER @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 = F —JF+=-H=+—HIFF&E

2024 2023
—EZNF —E=F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B & FET FAET
(Loss) profit attributable to: AT ARG (BE) &
Owners of the Company ViNNEIEF N (48,680) 7,987
Non-controlling interests FEIERR = - (15)
(48,680) 7,972
Total comprehensive (expense) AT ATEEZ®E (FAX)
income attributable to: WA 4BEE -
Owners of the Company ARalER A (48,976) 8,896
Non-controlling interests R 160 120
(48,816) 9,016
Basic (loss) earnings per share &R EA (E18) &7 14  HK cents (3.94) HK cents 0.72
(3.94) % 1l 0.72 AL
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e IR R

As at 31 December 2024 R’ —ZE—p#E+=-H=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=B=+-8
2024 2023
—B-NE —T=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
By &E TExT FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ER & 15 14,745 15,450
Right-of-use assets CREEE 16 24,055 43,771
Intangible assets B AE 17 - -
Deposits and prepayments ®e KRB FE 21 9,121 6,922
Deferred tax assets EREFMIEEE 31 - 3,582
47,921 69,725
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 19 7,862 9,785
Trade receivables B ZRWGIA 20 1,438 1,713
Deposits, prepayments and e BENFEREM
other receivables J& W SR IE 21 19,832 9,802
Tax recoverable AU B H R - 108
Cash and cash equivalents e kReEEY 23(a) 10,571 16,880
39,703 38,283
Total assets EEHRE 87,624 108,008
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
e ER @)

As at 31 December 2024 R=—ZE—pE+—=—H=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=B=+-8
2024 2023
—E-NME —T=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
By &E TExT FET
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to owners of &N A A B R
the Company
Share capital B 24 14,103 11,051
Reserves i (73,739) (63,837)
(59,636) (52,786)
Non-controlling interests FEE MR AR (4,782) (4,942)
Total deficits B uhm s (64,418) (57,728)
LIABILITIES &
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 29 32,963 52,024
Provision for reinstatement costs BIEN AN 30 2,448 3,081
Contract liabilities AHBE 27 327 =
Debenture BREE 28 2,000 -
37,738 55,105
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables B5ENNIE 25 9,170 10,439
Accruals and other payables JEETE R M E MR A 26 59,119 56,663
Amount due to a non-controlling e — 2 FE I IR AR 3R FUR
shareholder 22 1,188 1,228
Contract liabilities GHBE 27 22,186 18,389
Lease liabilities HEAE 29 20,141 21,962
Provision for reinstatement costs BIER AR 30 2,500 1,950
114,304 110,631
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
GEEARRER @)

As at 31 December 2024 R=—ZE—pE+—H=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=B=+-8
2024 2023
—E-NME —T=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
TET FET
Total liabilities BEAE 152,042 165,736
Total deficits and liabilities BEMREE 87,624 108,008
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (74,601) (72,348)

These consolidated financial statements were approved and R-ZZ_AF=A=+—HEZ e K
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 March  REZEITHEL AT KRR THNLATA

2025 and are signed by: T%HE:
LIANG Naiming MA Xiaoping
RT3 8 Bh¥E
Director Director
EFE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GAEERDE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —F —PJF+—-H=+—HIF&F

Attrigutable to owners of the Company

ARAREAES
Shares held
forshare ~ Share-based Exchange Non-
Share Share award compensation Other  translation  Accumulated controling Total
captal ~~ premium scheme reseve - reseres Teserve losses Total  interests deficit
BE
£Bitd R
Rx  REEE HENRE  EMEE  HEBE  EXEE  EHEE B FERER  BHAE
HKS00  HKSO00  HKSO000 HK$ 000 HKS000  HKSO000  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSO00D  HKSO000
TRt  TEn  TEr  TEr TR TR TEr  TEn T TEn
(note 33
(%)
Blarceasat flanuay2023  W-R=ZE-A-ABER 15 18 . S R% (3 [RMy B0 G0 (66
Proft foss) or te year EmEn (58) = = - - - - 797 797 (t9 7972
Echengediferences aising fom ~ REANERHEL2E
{ranslation of foreign operations - - - - - 909 - 909 13 1,044
Totelcompehensiencomefor ~—~ FRAARALE
the year - - - - - 909 797 8,606 120 9,016
Deconsoldation ofasubsidary R A AB-FHELA
frie 236) (i) . s : - @) - - &) - &)
Balance as at 31 December 2023 WZEZZE+ZA=1-AH
4 11,051 118902 - 2314 (222 (224831) (52,786) (494 (57,728)
Bdnceasalfamay 24 R-E-BE-B-REEH 10 180 - - oM I Y R
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - (8680 (48680) - (486%0)
Bchenge dffeences aisng fom ~ BEFIEHNELZE
{ranslation of foreign operations - - - - - (296) (296) 160 (136)
Toid comprehensive pipense)— ERAA (FR)MALE
income for the year - - - - (296) (48,680) (48,976) 160 (48,816)
Issue of shares, netof ransacton 734+ ABRSHA
costs rote 24) liE#2) 191 %515 - - 27,098 27,098
Issue of hares forsharsaverd AR KB EEIR
schemes and recognifon of share- LR BERA
based compensation expense AR ()
(note 24) 1,105 - (1,105) 15,028 - 15,028 15,028
Balanceasat 31 December 2024 W-E-METZA=1-Rf
£ IS M0 (105 1508 43 R R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EE%/)ILE%E

n‘lj_\

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #{ %2 —ZF — U+ - A =+—HIFF/ZF

2024 2023
—BomE  —F_=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
(Loss) profit before taxation bR AT (B18) & 5 (45,349) 7,545
Adjustments for: KRR -
Depreciation e 22,909 24,479
Finance costs B ISR AR 5,404 7,766
Interest income FMEYA (245) (401)
Impairment loss on property, Y% - BB K& E
plant and equipment BEEE 865 563
Impairment loss on right-of-use  {&f FA # & & il &
assets B8 5,588 3,536
Impairment loss on financial EHEEBBEXT
assets under expected credit TREERMEBESE
loss model, net R 1,086 36
Reversal of impairment loss on & @l fE I & TR (E
loan receivable &8 - (1,883)
Gain on early termination of RERIEHEE 2 W= 558
leases, net (11) (%)
Gain on deconsolidation of BUBE#RE ABKR—E
a subsidiary M A E < Was - (17,821)
Rent concessions HERE (533) -
Bad debts written-off 1 8 =2 AR - 237
Share-based compensation AR BEREMHERX
expense 15,028 =
Penalty and related interest in HFABERNIIE AR
relation to the litigation BRI S (B EI 34)
(note 34) 2,446 4,101
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

MERERER @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —F+ = H =+ —HIFFZ

2024 2023
—E-E —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Operating cash flows before & EZEEEEAN
changes in working capital REBFESRE 7,188 28,153
Changes in working capital: g é ‘f} £
Decrease (increase) in inventories 17 &3 4> (38 51) 1,684 (571)
Decrease (increase) in trade =) 1451 SIBR A (38 h0)
receivables 278 (1,161)
(Increase) decrease in deposits, &% * A FKIE )32
prepayments and other H A & KT
receivables (12 0) & 9‘ (3,140) 808
Decrease in loan receivable FEWE SRR - 3,324
Decrease in trade payables B 5 RN FIE R (969) (531)
Increase in contract liabilities A RBE &L 4,818 1,954
Increase in accruals and other ~ JEFT &R &
payables H Ath & 1~ IR
0 (300) 12,122
Increase in amount due to a FET — I FE B R B I 38 10
related company - 1,056
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

mERERER @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —JF + = H =+ —HIFFZ

2024 2023
—E-E —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Cash generated from operations £ & 1153 & 9,559 45,154
Income tax refunded (paid), net =R (2 11) FT15 5 %58 235 97)
Net cash generated from RETHMBZRE
operating activities HER 9,794 45,057
Investing activities REEE
Advance to a related company T {5 — [ B B A B) B9 B (11,557) =
Additions of property, NEWE  BEMEKE
plant and equipment (8,727) (5,451)
Interest received BB 35 401
Proceeds from disposal of HERAAEFABTH
financial asset at fair value EREEMNFTEHRIA
through profit or loss - 776
Cash outflow arising from BUB#RE AR—BNBARIEA 2R
deconsolidation of R
a subsidiary - 67)
Net cash used in investing REZTEBFAZRS
activities =HE (20,249) (4,341)
Financing activities RMEEE
Proceeds from placing of e & 3% 10 By BT 15 3k 18
new shares 28,030 -
Proceeds from issuance of BITERBRERIE
debenture 2,000 -
Repayment of principal portion  EEHEBEBEAREIH
of lease liabilities (19,138) (19,195)
Interest paid AN (5,396) (7,150)
Transaction costs attributable to 377 A% {5 V B SR
issue of shares (932) =
Borrowing costs paid B fERK A - (509)
Repayment of bank borrowings & & $R17 &7 - (20,776)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

II‘/T IE/ ﬁ/)“)% % »%

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 —FE —NF+ - A =+—HIFFZF

2024 2023
—BomE  —F_=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Net cash generated from (used EEEEFTE (FTH) 2
in) financing activities REFE 4,564 (47,630)
Net decrease in cash and ReRESEEY
cash equivalents WD R (5,891) (6,914)
Cash and cash equivalents FURERESEEY
at beginning of the year 16,880 23,503
Effect of foreign exchange [EXEFBH T
rate changes (418) 291
Cash and cash equivalents FRESRESEEY
at end of the year 10,571 16,880
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 — & —9F+ = =+—HIFFE

1

General Information

Kafelaku Coffee Holding Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 1 September
2015 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands. The address of the Company’s registered offices
is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong is 26/F,
Chinachem Century Tower, 178 Gloucester Road, Wan
Chai, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares (the “Shares”)
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Kafelaku
Coffee Industrial Limited, an entity incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, is the ultimate holding company
of the Company. It is ultimately controlled by Mr. Liang
Naiming (“Mr. Liang”).

The Company is an investment holding company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the provision of food catering and beverage
services in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC” or “China”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) which is the same as
the functional currency of the Company and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except where
otherwise indicated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —F+ = H =+ —HIFFZ

2 Application of Amendments to HKFRS

Accounting Standards

Application of amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) which are effective
for the Group’s financial year beginning on 1 January
2024:

Amendments to Lease Liability in a Sale and

HKFRS 16 Leaseback
Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as
HKAS 1 Current or Non-current and

related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

Amendments to Non-current Liabilities with

HKAS 1 Covenants

Amendments to Supplier Finance Arrangements
HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

The application of the amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —JF + = H =+ —HIFFZ

2

Application of Amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards issued but not yet effective

Amendments to the
Classification and
Measurement of Financial
Instruments?

Contracts Referencing Nature —
Dependent Electricity?

Amendments to
HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7

Amendments to
HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRS

HKFRS Accounting Accounting Standards —
Standards Volume 112

Amendments to Lack of Exchangeability’
HKAS 21

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in

Financial Statements?®
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards mentioned below, the directors of
the Company anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards
will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # = — &

—WESfZA=1—HIFFE

2 Application of Amendments to HKFRS 2

Accounting Standards (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 18 — Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements

HKFRS 18 sets out requirements on presentation and
disclosures in financial statements and will replace
HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements. HKFRS
18 introduces new requirements to present specified
categories and defined subtotals in the statement of
profit or loss; provide disclosures on management-
defined performance measures in the notes to the
financial statements and improve aggregation and
disaggregation of information to be disclosed in the
financial statements. Minor amendments to HKAS 7
Statement of Cash Flows and HKAS 33 Earnings per
Share are also made.

HKFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will
be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2027, with early application permitted.

The application of the HKFRS 18 is not expected to have
material impact on the financial position of the Group.
The directors are in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of HKFRS 18, but is not yet in a position to
state whether the adoption would have a material impact
on the presentation and disclosures of consolidated
financial statements of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 —F —NF+ - A =+—HIFFZF

3

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2024 have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable HKFRS Accounting Standards, which
collective term includes all applicable individual HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the HKICPA, and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap.622) (the “Companies Ordinance”). These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

For the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements, information is considered material
if such information is reasonably expected to influence
decisions made by primary users.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. Details of
fair value measurement are explained in the accounting
policies set out in note 4.

Going concern assumption

The Group incurred a net loss of HK$48,680,000 during
the year ended 31 December 2024, and, as of that date,
the Group had a net current liabilities and net liabilities of
HK$74,601,000 and HK$64,418,000, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 —FE —NF+ - A =+—HIFFZF

3 Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3

Financial Statements (Continued)

Going concern assumption (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had total liabilities
of HK$152,042,000, in which, trade payables of
HK$9,170,000, amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder of HK$1,188,000, lease liabilities of
HK$20,141,000 and other payables of HK$59,119,000
(including amounts due to directors, amount due
to a former director and provision for litigation of
HK$252,000, HK$8,513,000 and HK$15,818,000,
respectively) are repayable within one year, while the
Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$10,571,000. These conditions indicate that a
material uncertainly exists that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
and therefore, it may be unable to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

In view of the above, the directors of the Company had
carefully considered the liquidity of the Group, taking into
consideration of the following plans and measures:

(i)  the controlling shareholder of the Company has
agreed to provide continuous financial support to
the Group to enable it to meets its obligations when
due and carry on its business without a significant
curtailment of operations of the Company so as
to enable it to meet its liabilities when they fall due
and carry on its business for at least the next twelve
months from the date of this report;

(i) the management has agreed with a related
company of the Group, of which is controlled by the
controlling shareholder of the Company, for loan
facility amounting to Renminbi (“RMB”)96,000,000
to finance the Group’s working capital and
commitments in the foreseeable future;

(i the Group will identify and negotiate with various
financial institutions and identify various options
for financing the Group’s working capital and
commitments in the foreseeable future;

(iv) the Group has developed a plan to raise new capital
by carrying out fund-raising activities including
but not limited to rights issue and placing of new
shares;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 —F —NF+ - A =+—HIFFZF

3

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3

Financial Statements (Continued)

Going concern assumption (Continued)

(v) the Group will consider the strategic expansion in
civet coffee franchising by increasing the number of
franchised coffee shops, which can reduce the set
up costs and resource demands associated with
the expansion; and

(vi) the management has been endeavoring to improve
the Group’s operating results and cash flows
through various cost control measures including
streamlining of operations to minimise unnecessary
expenses, evaluating the possibility of workforce
reductions or reduction of payroll costs and human
resources optimisation.

The directors of the Company believe that, after taking
into account the above plans and measures, the Group
will have sufficient working capital to satisfy its present
requirements for the year ending 31 December 2025.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties
exist as to whether the Group will be able to continue
as a going concern which would depend upon, (i) the
successful implementation of cost control measures and
business plans to improve the Group’s operating results
and cash flows; (i) the receipt of additional sources of
financing from the controlling shareholder and a related
company of the Group as and when needed; and (jii) the
successful of carrying out fund raising activities to obtain
financial resources as and when needed.

Should the Group fail to achieve the abovementioned
measures, it might not be able to continue to operate
as a going concern, and adjustments would have to be
made to write down the carrying values of the Group’s
assets to their recoverable amounts to provide for any
further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets
and current liabilities. The effects of these adjustments
have been reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ARE MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —F+ = H =+ —HIFFZ

4 ERETHEREHR

4 Material Accounting Policy Information

4.1 Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. The
financial statements of subsidiaries are included
in the consolidated financial statements from the
date on which control commences until the date on
which control ceases.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any
unrealised income and expenses (except for foreign
currency transaction gains or losses) arising from
intra-group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains,
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary, and any related non-controlling interests
and other components of equity. Any resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary is measured at fair
value when control is lost.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses.
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4.2 Goodwill 4.2 HE
Goodwill arising on acquisition of businesses is EBRBEEANIERARRR
measured at cost less accumulated impairment PREEEE EESFET
losses and is tested annually for impairment. BRI, ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —JF + = H =+ —HIFFZ

4 Material Accounting Policy Information 4 E A EEER @)

(Continued)

4.3 Intangible assets (other than goodwill) 4.3 B EE (BEBRIM)

Intangible assets acquired in a business EBEMMNE BT EE
combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business XBalEzBmEEET R
combination are recognised separately from B 5 F RN V) P R U B A
goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value ZANEFHERABEKAR) BER -
at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).
Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets R ZHERE  REBE TR
acquired in a business combination with finite useful BeERTERAIERAFHZETLE
lives are recognised at costs less accumulated ERKAR R 88 R R 5T
amortisation and any accumulated impairment MEEERER  EEEBEHWE
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that ZEEEMR -

are acquired separately.

4.4 Foreign currency transactions 4.4 HER S

(@) Functional and presentation currency @ MeERZIEE
ltems included in the consolidated financial AEESERBNGEEMBER
statements of each of the Group’s entities KFBREMIEE NiREHW
are measured using the currency of the ERCEMTEIELEIRE
primary economic environment in which the MEEIE SKAEUBERE
entity operates. The consolidated financial IWARRRMINEEE R Z7]
statements are presented in HK$, which is also BEBILES
the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

(b) Transactions and balances b) X5 Ktk
Foreign currency transactions are translated HNEERZ B TR 5 B IE B
into the functional currency using the exchange EFEHEHHMNRITE
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions ERERNEEE - ZEXR
or valuation where items are re-measured. SEEANRAINESFTENE
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting BEERBERFREX®K
from the settlement of such transactions and BEEEANERLER  NEE
from the translation at year-end exchange rates BakHEMEERERER -
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated EHERRNGEEE=EM
in foreign currencies are recognised in the 2HEWER KN [E MU R E
consolidated statement of profit or loss BIZ2% -

and other comprehensive income. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income within ‘other
gains and losses’.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —F+ = H =+ —HIFFZ

4 Material Accounting Policy Information
(Continued)

4.4 Foreign currency transactions (Continued)

160

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date
of this consolidated statement of financial
position;

(i) income and expenses for each profit and
loss account are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —JF + = H =+ —HIFFZ

4 Material Accounting Policy Information 4 E A EEER @)
(Continued)

4.5 Property, plant and equipment 45 Y% - MERRE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost,
which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Buildings in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss. Costs included any costs directly attributable
to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management, including costs
of testing whether the related assets is functioning
property and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment less their estimated
residual values, if any, using the straight line method
over their estimated useful lives, and is generally
recognised in profit or loss.

The estimated useful lives for the current and
comparative periods are as follows:

Leasehold Shorter of 5 to 8 years and
improvements the unexpired lease term
Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 5 years
equipment
Motor vehicles 4 to 5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ARE MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 —FE —NF+ - A =+—HIFFZF

4 Material Accounting Policy Information 4 E A EEER @)
(Continued)

46 EAEEE

4.6 Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets arising from leases over
leasehold properties where the Group is not the
registered owner of the property interest are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of right-of-use assets are
determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
right-of-use assets, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method as
follows:

— The Group’s interests in buildings situated
on leasehold land are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and the
buildings’ estimated useful lives, being no more
than 50 years after the date of completion.

— Items of plant and equipment arising from
leases of underlying plant and equipment are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of the leases and their estimated useful
lives.

Where parts of an item of right-of-use assets have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of
an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 —F —NF+ - A =+—HIFFZF

4 Material Accounting Policy Information 4 EAEFBERER @)
(Continued)

4.7 ke EERE

#) & E DA RIEE R IR

BEN AEEREREBHE

4.7 Impairment of non-financial assets
At each reporting date, the Group reviews the BREERE

carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other
than inventories and contract assets and deferred
tax assets) to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. Goodwill is tested annually for
impairment.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together
into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
cash-generating units (“CGUs”). Goodwill arising
from a business combination is allocated to CGUs
or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the
greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal. Value in use based on the estimated
future cash flows, discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
They are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and
then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other
assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.
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4 Material Accounting Policy Information 4 E A EEER @)
(Continued)

4.7 ke EERE (®)

4.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

(Continued)

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the resulting carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation
or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

4.8 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS
15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently
measured in their entirety at amortised cost.

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s business model for managing them.
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(Continued)

4.8 Financial instruments (Continued) 4.8 €@t T A (&)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

The Group measures financial assets subsequently
at amortised cost if both of the following conditions
are met:

— the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows; and

—  the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment.

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period.

For financial assets, the effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) excluding expected credit losses
(“ECL"), through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument
on initial recognition.
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4.8 Financial instruments (Continued) 4.8 €@t T A (&)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments) (Continued)

Amortised cost and effective interest method
(Continued)

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the
amount at which the financial asset is measured at
initial recognition minus the principal repayments,
plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that
initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for
any loss allowance. The gross carrying amount of
a financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial
asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for debt instruments measured
subsequently at amortised cost.

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
investments in debt instruments that are measured
at amortised cost or contract assets. The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the
respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on trade receivables are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date, including time value
of money where appropriate.
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4 BEARETHEER @

4 Material Accounting Policy Information

(Continued)

4.8 Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group
measures the loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECL (“12m ECL”), unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increase in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition. The Group always
recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as
at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit
assessment, that includes forward-looking
information.
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4 Material Accounting Policy Information
(Continued)

4.8 Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

()

(i)

Significant increase in credlt risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as
constituting an event of default for internal
credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable:

— the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or

— the financial asset is 90 days past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —JF + = H =+ —HIFFZ

4 Material Accounting Policy Information
(Continued)

4.8 Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(i)

()

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or
being more than 90 days past due;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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4 Material Accounting Policy Information 4 E A EEER @)

(Continued)

4.8 Financial instruments (Continued) 4.8 €@t T A (&)
Impairment of financial assets subject to ARBEBMBHREEATO
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 FELRENENE/MEE
(Continued) B (%)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL () TERIEEERA G ERIER

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. As for the exposure at
default, for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the
reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as
the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance
for a financial instrument at an amount equal
to lifetime ECL in the previous reporting period,
but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no
longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12m ECL at
the current reporting date, except for assets for
which simplified approach was used.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured
at amortised cost, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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4 Material Accounting Policy Information 4 E A EEER @)
(Continued)

4.8 Financial instruments (Continued) 4.8 €@t T A (&)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by a group entity are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the
amortised cost of a financial liability.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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4 Material Accounting Policy Information
(Continued)

4.9

4.10

411

4.12

172 pRyHERERAT —T-NEFERS

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. A contract liability would also
be recognised if the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand and other short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax expense comprises the current and
deferred income tax expense.

Current tax comprises the estimated tax payable
or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustments to the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years. The amount
of current tax payable or receivable is the best
estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid
or received that reflects any uncertainty related
to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date. Current tax also includes any tax arising from
dividends.

4 BEARETHEER @

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

BRAEE
BHARBREFPEAKSERRM
FAM s A S T K ERER - A
58 B 70 7 5% (8 e o0 AR A Wk 25 B R
BEGEZRERENERN Al
BRANAE BB RT - T8
FEE AR AR B B R MR BR 3K ©

RERBATEEY
RekBReEEMEERITER
MFBEHRE AREMABERL
BMREMNBERESHERASTRY
MERE ZEREMEHNEE
PR FTEN IREBAR
AA=EAREIE -

f& R AR
FrEBRKAREEEHRER
B e

B
P15 W 5 S B 4R B B RO FE PR 15
MR

BDEA TR TR B 18 F BB R B A
Ko 5 18 A 3K B W o il BT AR IR
i [F) B 3B 1 F 2 R A Sk R W AR IR
B A ] 38 B o JE T 3 B W B R AR
THE R AR RRER TS ADE
B B TE [ 3 69 TR H S A 3 M AR
MR & B EMGET - NI IA TS
ERREEHERBMIARBRE R
MR ERFTE - ABBIATERE
REELMTIA
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4 Material Accounting Policy Information
(Continued)

4.12 Taxation (Continued) 412 FiIE ()

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax is not recognised for:

—  temporary differences on the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not
a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss and does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences;

— temporary differences related to investment
in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture
to the extent that the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will not
reverse in the foreseeable future;

— taxable temporary differences arising on the
initial recognition of goodwill; and

— those related to the income taxes arising from
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted to
implement the Pillar Two model rules published
by the Organisation for Economic Co-operation
and Development.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against
which they can be used. Future taxable profits
are determined based on the reversal of relevant
taxable temporary differences. If the amount of
taxable temporary differences is insufficient to
recognise a deferred tax asset in full, then future
taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of existing
temporary differences, are considered, based on
the business plans for individual subsidiaries in the
Group. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will
be realised; such reductions are reversed when the
probability of future taxable profits improves.
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4 Material Accounting Policy Information
(Continued)

4.12 Taxation (Continued)

174 3

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the
lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to the
lease liabilities and the related assets separately.
The Group recognises a deferred tax asset related
to lease liabilities to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary difference can be utilised
and a deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary
differences.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 —F —NF+ - A =+—HIFFZF

4 Material Accounting Policy Information
(Continued)

413 Employee benefits

@)

Pension obligation

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong
Kong under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The full-time employees of the Group in the
PRC are covered by various government-
sponsored basic pension insurance under
which the employees are entitled to a monthly
pension based on certain formulas. The relevant
government agencies are responsible for the
pension liability to these retired employees. The
Group contributes on a monthly basis to these
pension plans. Under these plans, the Group
has no obligation for post-retirement benefits
beyond the contributions made. Contributions
to these plans are expenses as incurred and
contributions paid to the defined-contribution
pension plans for a staff are not available to
reduce the Group’s future obligations to such
defined-contribution pension plans even if the
staff leaves the Group.

The Group’s contributions are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in the period they
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ARE MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —F+ = H =+ —HIFFZ

4 Material Accounting Policy Information
(Continued)

414 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

Housing funds, medical insurances and
other social insurances

The PRC employees of the Group are entitled
to participate in various government-supervised
housing funds, medical insurance and other
employee social insurance plan. The Group
contributes on a monthly basis to these funds
based on certain percentages of the salaries
of the employees, subject to certain ceiling.
The Group’s liability in respect of these funds
is limited to the contributions payable in each
period, and recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are expensed at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises costs for a restructuring.

Long service payments

The Group’s statutory obligation to pay long
service payment in Hong Kong is a defined
benefit plan. The cost of providing benefits
relating to long service payment is determined
using the projected unit credit actuarial
valuation method. The liability recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position
in respect of long service payment is the net
obligation, representing the present value of the
future long service payment benefits reduced
by entitlements from accrued benefits arising
from mandatory provident fund contributions
made by the Group. Net interest is calculated
by applying the discount rate to the net defined
benefit liability or asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —JF + = H =+ —HIFFZ

4 BEARETHEER @

4 Material Accounting Policy Information
(Continued)

414 Employee benefits (Continued)

(e) Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share awards granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined
by reference to the fair value of share awards
granted at the date of grant is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share-
based compensation reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of awards
that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to share-based
compensation reserve.

When share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share-based
compensation reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share awards
are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share-based
compensation reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.
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4 Material Accounting Policy Information
(Continued)

4.15

4.16

417

178

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-
in-first out method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary
to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle that obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (when the effect
of the time value of money is material).

Provision for reinstatement costs
Provision for reinstatement costs represents
the present value of the estimated cost for the
restoration work of the Group’s leased retail shops
agreed to be carried out upon the expiry of the
relevant leases using a risk-free pre-tax interest
rate. The provision has been determined by the
Directors based on their best estimates. The
related reinstatement costs have been included
as leasehold improvements in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

ROBHERER AR T _NFFERE

4 BEXRE

4.15

4.16

417

SR ER (#®)

ﬁ—f&

FE T AR o A] B3R % 2 &
EE SRR - AR TSR 58 A St
ABERTE-FMERFEEFENMG
AAEEREMBMT T IAAR
HETTIHE T BIRCAS ©

B
MAKBERBEEHMEAERSE
AERMEET BHAEEA

ﬁ%”ﬂ“ﬁﬁ?ﬁf& i A6 B8 & £
TRARER] AT - AR A -

ERARBENSBEIDNBEHAR
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ;&%ﬁﬁhxﬁﬁ
O EPEERESNECHNAR
RAHEEREZE - MBHERMATX
1—J'Iﬁﬁf{frcmfﬁ.ﬂi//lb£n+i E\lj
HEEENRZERERERE
(FEMKRHEBEYEEAX) °

EERARE
EERABEEGESNERME
KEmE RAKSEHETES
WETEBEIEMRAERRY
AIM R EEO BT RARNERE-
BRECREFREASEMRATERE
BREEXAEHERBEERE
AR BEAREK ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —JF + = H =+ —HIFFZ

4 Material Accounting Policy Information 4 E A EEER @)
(Continued)

4.18 Revenue from contracts with customers 418 BEEEHWH

The Group recognises revenue when a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service that is distinct or a series of distinct goods
or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ARE MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —F+ = H =+ —HIFFZ

4 Material Accounting Policy Information
(Continued)

418 Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)
The Group principally generates its revenue from the
following major sources: 1) restaurant operations; 2)
sales of goods and equipment, and 3) royalty and
franchising income. Further details of the Group’s
revenue recognition policies are as follows:

(1)

Revenue from restaurant operations
Revenue is recognised at a particular point
in time when customers have control over
the goods, which is generally the time when
the related catering services are rendered to
customers.

Sale of goods and equipment

The Group enters into a series of agreements
with each franchisee, which mainly include
a license agreement and a sales agreement
(collectively “Franchise Agreements”), whereby
the franchisees are licensed to operate the
franchised stores and are authorised to sell, in
their own stores, the freshly-made tea drinks
made by certain equipment and raw materials
purchased from the Group. Revenue from sale
of equipment and raw materials to franchisees
is recognised at the point in time when the
franchisees accept the products and the
control over those products is transferred to
the franchisees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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4 Material Accounting Policy Information
(Continued)

4.18 Revenue from contracts with customers

(Continued)

(2) Sale of goods and equipment (Continued)
For sales of goods and equipment to
franchisees, the Group has determined that the
franchisees are the customers of the Group.
The franchisees operate retail stores at their
own chosen locations under the framework
set out under the Franchise Agreements.
At inception of the Franchise Agreements,
franchisees are required to place a deposit to
the Group throughout the franchise period. The
deposits are refundable upon the termination
of the Franchise Agreements, provided that the
franchisees settled all outstanding balances
with the Group.

The franchisees employ and manage their own
staffs to operate the stores and serve their
customers (i.e. end consumers), and undertake
the costs associated with the operations. The
franchisees sell the freshly-made tea drinks
based on the menu and recipe provided by the
Group.

The franchisees are responsible for the
placement, physical custody and condition
of the equipment and raw materials after the
deliveries are accepted in stores. In general,
the Group does not have any obligation or
historical practices to accept any return of
unsold products, except for rare cases such as
a latent defect subject to product recall.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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4 Material Accounting Policy Information
(Continued)

4.18 Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(8) Royalty and franchising income

As part of the Franchise Agreements, the
franchise rights are granted to franchisees
upon payment of a non-refundable upfront
initial payments including the pre-opening
training services fee upon entering into
Franchise Agreements and monthly royalty fee.

The non-refundable upfront initial fee is charged
for pre-opening support services provided to
the franchisees, including market and location
analysis, certain advisory services like license
application and pre-opening marketing, etc. As
these services are highly interrelated with the
franchise right, they are not individually distinct
from the ongoing franchising arrangement with
the franchisees. As a result, initial franchise
fees, which are considered as consideration
for the Group to provide right to access the
Group’s intellectual property, are recognised
on a straight-line basis over the expected
franchise period, typically of five years.
Unrecognised non-refundable upfront initial
fee is recognised as contract liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Franchisees are also required to pay a monthly
royalty fee, which is determined based on a
predetermined fixed amount. Fixed amount
royalty fees are recognised monthly.

The pre-opening training services provided to
the franchises are considered to be distinct as
the training contents are largely unrelated to
the Group’s brand name and trademarks.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —JF + = H =+ —HIFFZ

4 Material Accounting Policy Information
(Continued)

4.18 Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(8) Royalty and franchising income (Continued)

The non-refundable upfront initial fee and fixed
royalty fee are recognised as a performance
obligation satisfied over time by reference
to time passage of service provided, when
the customers simultaneously receive and
consume the benefits from the Group’s
performance.

Contracts with multiple performance
obligations (including allocation of transaction
price)

For Franchise Agreements that contain more
than one performance obligations (including non-
refundable upfront initial fee and pre-opening
training services), the Group allocates the
transaction price to each performance obligation on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good
or service underlying each performance obligation
is determined at contract inception. It represents
the price at which the Group would sell a promised
good or service separately to a customer. If a
stand-alone selling price is not directly observable,
the Group estimates it using appropriate techniques
such that the transaction price ultimately allocated
to any performance obligation reflects the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the promised
goods or services to the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —F+ = H =+ —HIFFZ

4 Material Accounting Policy Information
(Continued)

4,18 Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)
Existence of significant financing component
In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration
for the effects of the time value of money if the
timing of payments agreed (either explicitly or
implicitly) provides the customer or the Group with a
significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods
or services to the customer. In those circumstances,
the contract contains a significant financing
component. A significant financing component may
exist regardless of whether the promise of financing
is explicitly stated in the contract or implied by
the payment terms agreed to by the parties to the
contract.

For contracts where the period between payment
and transfer of the associated goods or services is
less than one year, the Group applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the transaction price for
any significant financing component.

Except the non-refundable upfront initial fee exceeds
one year, the Group does not expect to have any
contracts where the period between the transfer
of the promised goods or services to the customer
and payment by the customer exceeds one year.
The Group determines that the payment terms for
non-refundable upfront initial fee were structured
primarily for reasons other than the provision
of finance to the Group. As a consequence, no
significant element of financing is present and the
Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices
for the time value of money.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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4 Material Accounting Policy Information 4 EAEFBERER @)
(Continued)

419 Leases 419 HE

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate.

After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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4 Material Accounting Policy Information 4 EAEFBERER @)
(Continued)

419 Leases (Continued) 419 B E (#)

As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is
a change arising from the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option. When
the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration
for a lease that is not originally provided for in the
lease contract (“lease modification”) that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In this case
the lease liability is remeasured based on the
revised lease payments and lease term using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Group presents right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —JF + = H =+ —HIFFZ

4 Material Accounting Policy Information
(Continued)

420 Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —F+ = H =+ —HIFFZ

4 Material Accounting Policy Information
(Continued)

4.20 Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

188

(iv)

(V)

(vii)

(viil)

One entity is a joint venture of a third party
and the other entity is an associate of third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e T ERRMEE (4

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 — & —

5 Financial Risk Management
5.1 Financial risk factors

HEF—A=1+—HIFE

5 BXEKRER

5.1

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk and cash flow interest rate risk
and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge its risk exposures
to changes in foreign exchange rates and interest
rates.

(@) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that
the fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates.
Foreign exchange risk arises when
recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not
the Group entities’ functional currency.
Most of the income and expenditures
of the Group are denominated in HK$
and RMB, which are the functional
currencies of the respective group entities.
Even HK$ is not pegged to RMB, the
historical exchange rate fluctuation on
RMB is insignificant. Thus there is no
significant exposure expected on RMB
transactions and balances. Hence, the
Group does not have any material foreign
exchange exposure. The Group has not
implemented or entered into any type of
instruments or arrangements to hedge
against currency exchange fluctuations for
the years under review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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5 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

5.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

190

@)

(i)

Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that
future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. Fair value interest
rate risk is the risk that the value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in market interest rates.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to fixed-rate debenture
and lease liabilities. The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to bank balances. The Group’s
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of interest
rates on bank balances.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023,
the Group did not hold any assets or
liabilities which would expose the Group
to significant interest rate risks.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —JF + = H =+ —HIFFZ

MHEREE @
5.1 B 5 B8 B 3 ()
(b) EEER
ERARAEH T 5 TR A

5 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 5

5.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty

will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in a financial loss to the Group. The
Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade and other receivables. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from bank
deposits is limited because the Group places
their deposits to certain reputable banks with a
minimum rating of “investment grade” ranked
by an independent party.

Trade receivables

The Group applied simplified approach to
measuring ECL which uses a lifetime ECL
allowance for all trade receivables. The ECL
are estimated using a provision matrix based
on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date, including time value of money where
appropriate.

BREBMEFAEERT
W%%E%HW°$EEW
FEERARTIERBEFHRK
mﬁﬁﬁmﬁw RIH © K&
BRETEREENEER
SHER ARAKEKESF
RERRETEBRIFHR
T EREFRHBIAL
APERRERR] -

BN
AEBRBBETAFTER
HEEBE ZKEARME
B RERWFIARER = HEH
EEERERE -HHEEB
BORBASEERBEEES
BREBEABERERETH
i URBEEHBAFEREE
— MR E AR R R E & AT R R
&= B H R R4 TR ORI 5 M &Y R
i BREENEREEE (W
BEA) MELFE -

Kafelaku Coffee Holding Limited  Annual Report 2024 191



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI IERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 = F —JF+=-H=+—HIFF&E

5 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 5 MEREKEERE @
5.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 51 BIEKBEZE (,%E)
(o) Credit risk (Continued) ) EERR (4
Trade receivables (Continued) B Z W 15 &)
The following table provides information about TEREHBEEREBRR_-Z
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs ZHFERZFTZ=F+=A
for trade receivables as at 31 December 2024 =t+t—HFEBENEERR
and 2023: RBSRERKRIENEHEE
BENEH
2024 2023
13 ZEICE
2024 2028 Gross Gross
Expected  Expected Loss  carrying Loss carmying
Status #HR lossrate  lossrate allowance ~ amount  allowance amount
ZECME CECCF
REFE: BUERZX FERE FEEE FERE  REEE
% %  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
% % TEr  TEr  FTEr  TEx
Current 0 6%-9% 6%-9% 87 1,333 101 1,589
010 30 days past due fakERI] 22%-23% 23% 15 66 20 87
311060 days past due AH3IE60H 24%-25% 24% 6 2 5 2
Over 60 days past due BEE0AN L 2%%  25%-100% 4 163 78 214

150 1,588 199 1,912

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss TEHEBEXRNDRBAIFHE
experience over the past 3 years. These rates BREELRAE ZFHE
are adjusted to reflect differences between AR URBRKERES
economic conditions during the period over AR LEERR - B H
which the historic data has been collected, AR S A Jo 7 £ [ 4 JE W 5K T
current conditions and the Group’s view of /T8 5T F HA 48 AR L 9 %
economic conditions over the expected lives of FERER -

the receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —JF + = H =+ —HIFFZ

B 7 B B (a0

5 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 5

5.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Other receivables

The Group applied lifetime approach to
measuring ECL for other receivables. The
Directors of the Company believe that there
are no significant increase in credit risk of other
receivables since initial recognition and the
Group provided impairment based on 12m
ECL.

In determining the 12m ECL for other
receivables the management of the Group
has taken into account the historical default
experience and forward-looking information,
as appropriate. The Group has considered
the consistently low historical default rate in
connection with payments, and concluded
that credit risk inherent in these Group’s
outstanding balances is insignificant. The gross
carrying amount of other receivables amounted
to approximately HK$27,214,000 (2023:
HK$15,578,000) as at 31 December 2024.

An impairment loss amounted to approximately
HK$1,135,000 (2023: nil) was recognised for
amount due from a related company during the
year ended 31 December 2024.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ARE MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —F+ = H =+ —HIFFZ

5 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 5 MEREKEERE @
5.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 51 B EKREZ @)
(c) Liquidity risk ) mENER B2
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor AEENBERTEHES R
current and expected liquidity requirements HERBRRSHESTE  H
and its compliance with debt covenants, to BTEBERZE BREER
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of TEREHBEBRERITRA
cash and adequate committed lines of funding fft & AR 1R 1t B 49 Bl
from banks and other financial institutions to EEE URRREHOR
meet their liquidity requirements in the short TR - EEERRLE
and longer term. Management believes that EREXNRBMHRRE AR
there is no significant liquidity risk as the AEBEREMNERKEEBETY
Group is able to generate net cash inflow RELEFHeRA UHEAE
from operating activities and has sufficient FREEAFERERFEERREKM
committed facilities to fund its operations and MK EEBREBRTRKED
debt servicing requirements and to satisfy BN BN EKLZER SR
its future working capital and other financing ERAHERERITRHE BT
requirements from its operation cash flows and ERREEESRHEMAE
available bank financing. FERK o
The following table details the Group’s TRAFIIASEEITE R
remaining contractual maturity for its non- BEMNSBRTEOEHA-T
derivative financial liabilities. The table has been RIOBRBAEEAEESR
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash EERFHENEAeRE
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest BERARTRNREREMAR
date on which the Group can be required to
pay.
Total
Lessthan ~ Between1  Between2 Over undiscounted Carrying
1year and2years and5years Syears  cash flows amount
AFEY
-ER  -FFE  WERE  RENL BEHEAE REfE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
Téx Téx ThT Téx T T
At31 December2024 ~ W=Z-RE
tzB=t-A
Trade payables BAEMTE 9,170 - - - 9,170 9,170
Other payables HibENFIR 42,434 - - - 42,434 42,434
Amountdietoanon-  FER—ZIHERBRE
controling shareholder #9578 1,188 - - - 1,188 1,188
Debenture g 60 60 60 2,240 2420 2,000
Lease liabiltes BEak 23,636 12,908 21,402 4,019 61,965 53,104
76,488 12,968 21,462 6,259 1117 107,896
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —JF + = H =+ —HIFFZ

5 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 5 HMEREKEERE @
5.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 51 B EKREZ @)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) BN R R (8)
Total
Lessthan ~ Between!  Between? Over  undiscounted Camjing
Tyear  and2years  and5years Syeas  cashflows amount
AR
R —EME WERE TENE ReR2EE HE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Thn iR TERL TiEn TEn TéEn
At31 December2023 ~ M-E==f
tZB=t-H
Trade payables ECLAE 10439 - - - 10439 10439
Other payables HAb R 40,010 - - - 40,010 40,010
Amountdietoanon-  FER—ZIHERRR
controling shareholder ~ #730R 1208 - - - 1228 128
Lease liabiltes HERE 27437 21265 33,688 6,714 89,104 73,986
79,114 21,265 33,088 6,714 140,781 125,663

52 EXREEE

5.2 Capital risk management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital AEBEAEREERBRASE

are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue BaeiFELE  ARRRFHRER -
as a going concern in order to provide returns for (A B % B B 35 0 & O M &% - I
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders BRREETIEBURSESHR -
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to

reduce the cost of capital.

RERIFHBEARE L5 HE
AHBEXNTRENKRSSHE

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid

to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

5.3 Fair value measurement

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The directors of the Company consider that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated statement of financial position
approximate their fair values as at 31 December
2024 and 2023.

5.3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ARE MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 —FE —NF+ - A =+—HIFFZF

6

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key 6

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 4, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenue and expenses reported and disclosures made
in the consolidated financial statements. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Determining the lease term

The lease liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over the lease term.
In determining the lease term at the commencement
date for leases that include renewal options exercisable
by the Group, the Group evaluates the likelihood of
exercising the renewal options taking into account
all relevant facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive for the Group to exercise the option,
including favourable terms, leasehold improvements
undertaken and the importance of that underlying asset
to the Group’s operation. The lease term is reassessed
when there is a significant event or significant change
in circumstance that is within the Group’s control. Any
increase or decrease in the lease term would affect
the amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets
recognised in future years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —JF + = H =+ —HIFFZ

6

Critical Accounting Judgments And
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgement and
make estimation, particularly in assessing: (i) whether an
event has occurred or any indicators that may affect the
asset value; (i) whether the carrying value of an asset can
be supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of
value in use, the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of
the asset; and (jii) the appropriate key assumptions to be
applied in estimating the recoverable amounts including
cash flow projections and an appropriate discount rate.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which the assets
belongs, including allocation of corporate assets
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be established, otherwise recoverable amount is
determined at the smallest group of CGU, for which the
relevant corporate assets have been allocated. Changing
assumptions and estimates, including the discount rates
or the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the recoverable amounts. Details of
impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets are disclosed in note 15.
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198

Critical Accounting Judgments And
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated impairment loss of financial assets
under ECL model

The management of the Group estimates the amount
of loss allowance for financial assets under ECL
model based on the credit risk of financial assets.
The loss allowance amount is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows with
the consideration of expected future credit losses.
The assessment of the credit risk of financial assets
involves high degree of estimation and uncertainty as the
management of the Group estimates the loss rates for
debtors by using forward-looking information. When the
actual future cash flows are less than expected or more
than expected, a material impairment loss or a material
reversal of impairment loss may arise accordingly.

Contingent liabilities

The Group is exposed to the risk of litigation in the
course of its normal operation. The Group will make
provision and/or disclose information as appropriate.
Changes in the assumptions around the likelihood of
an outflow of economic resources or the estimation of
any obligation would change the amount of provision
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 —F —NF+ - A =+—HIFFZF

7

Segment Information

Information reported to the chief executive officer of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM?”), for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance focuses on
types of goods or services delivered or provided. The
directors of the Company have chosen to organise the
Group around differences in products and services. No
operating segments identified by the CODM have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the
Group.

In current year, the Group reorganised its internal
reporting structure which resulted in changes to the
composition of its reportable segments. The CODM
reviews the financial performance of its food catering
and beverage separately for the purpose of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

Accordingly, the Group’s operating and reportable
segments are as follows:

— Food catering — Restaurant operations — delivering
Cantonese cuisine, Chinese banquet and dinning
services

—  Beverage - Coffee operations

Prior year segment disclosures have been represented
to conform with the current year's presentation.

7

7 EE R
AARRRTTHRAER (A ERELRRE
[EEREBRRE])) ERMAMEERD
FERDRHRBEFHEZERBEERAR
NHRRE2ERIMEER - AR A
EECERECERIRBZERA
BAKE -RNERAEEZAZHS
M CITBRERREBEIRLE
DEBIL EAR A 2R ©

RAFE  AEEEREL A2 HMARE -
BREAUSHROBOAXNELEELS -
TERLERREEFRIEERIR
BB TSR IR LAE B IR 70 B S RIRFFA

Rt - REBEE S M Al 2D ERAT

— ER-BREB-RUBEEE
5t S SR S
— RB-MBEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI IERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 = F —JF+=-H=+—HIFF&E

7 Segment Information (Continued) 7 HEER @
Segment revenues and results PEHW R EE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and UWTAEREERITZFRLEHILE
results by reportable and operating segments. DEWEE REE DI °
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE-_ZT_NOMF+-_HA=+—H
IEFE
Food
Catering Beverage Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FExT FET FExT
Revenue I 2
External sales HNERSH S 138,601 1,019 139,620
Segment results D EELE (20,528) (14,517) (35,045)
Unallocated income RO BLHA 51
Unallocated expenses RO (10,355)
Loss before taxation BR T AT B 1B (45,349)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BHE_T-_-—"F+-H=+—H
IEFE
Food
Catering Total
R FOE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHBT
Revenue Wz
External sales SNEBEHE 178,523 178,523
Segment results DEEE (2,826) (2,826)
Unallocated income RO BLHA 18,070
Unallocated expenses RO (7,699)
Profit before taxation B 351 A g A 7,545
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —JF + = H =+ —HIFFZ

7

Segment Information (Continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 4. Segment results represents the profit/loss from
each segment without allocation of certain other income,
gain on deconsolidation of a subsidiary, certain employee
benefits expense, certain other operating expense and
certain finance costs. This is the measure reported to
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by reportable and operating segment:

7

o EE R @
DU R EE(
KED EBMQHE&%E@W‘IMELE’JZK

SESFHRER - DEHEERSD
HEA,EE R AR RE T HM

WA - HXEZ*/\)\EE—FWT% Az
Wa HETEERNMAX - BT HME
ERXNE TR L mEE
%«%/%%%/E#&LAVEQ/J? @E&%IE
FHEZETEBAE -

THEERERE
LAT%$E.$R—J£$&&,Z§ & El
PHEERBE 2D :

2024 2023
—E-NF —T=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTExT FHET
Segment assets PWEE
Food catering 2R 63,864 107,582
Beverage R o 23,090 -
Unallocated assets ROBEE 670 426
87,624 108,008
Segment liabilities DEEE
Food catering BN (138,577) (159,479)
Beverage £ on (5,531) -
Unallocated liabilities AOBEEBE (7,934) (6,257)
(152,042) (165,736)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance BRERSHRBEADBZEPEER
and allocating resources between segments:
- all assets are allocated to operating segments other - BRETHE BELERE BT
than certain property, plant and equipment, certain i T8 1~ 3R 18 K H g WK IE &
deposits, prepayments and other receivables and ETRITRSIN MBEEEHD

certain bank and cash; and

— all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than certain accruals and other payables and
debenture.

ETrELen#: &

- BRETEFERREMENKIEA
&%ﬁéﬁ’%l\ PMBEREHDET
REDED

Kafelaku Coffee Holding Limited  Annual Report 2024 201



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI IERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 = F —JF+=-H=+—HIFF&E

7 Segment Information (Continued) 7 DEEFR @
Other segment information P—Uﬂl o ERE R
For the year ended 31 December 2024 —E-OMFE+-_HA=+—H
1F E 53
Food
Catering Beverage Total
28 &% HE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHET FHET
Depreciation e 22,909 - 22,909
Impairment loss on M - WE R
property, plant and BB EE
equipment 865 - 865
Impairment loss on FREEERBERE
right-of-use assets 5,588 - 5,588

(Reversal of impairment ~ FEHA{EEEEERT
loss) impairment losson & &E ZE O EE B
financial assets under B REEEEE

ECL model, net (49) 1,135 1,086
Capital expenditures BEAMAX
— Property, plant and W% BERK
equipment - 9,677 9,677
- Right-of-use assets —ERAEEE 837 - 837
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_T_-_="F+-_H=+—H
IEFE
Food
Catering Total
A 1B
HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FAT FAT
Depreciation e 24,479 24,479
Impairment loss on S E N
property, plant and equipment BB E R 563 563
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets {5 FA 1 & = il (8 /&5 18 3,536 3,536
Impairment loss on financial assets ~ BEIE EEBE N T £ 5
under ECL. model, net BEEREBEFE 36 36
Capital expenditures BEAMAE
— Property, plant and equipment —ME BERZE 5,451 5,451
— Right-of-use assets —EREEE 2,783 2,783
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
REMBERARME @

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 —F —PJF+ - H=+—HIF/F

7 Segment Information (Continued) 7 7EHER @
Geographical information hEE R
The following table presents revenue from external T%:z RwEENEE_T_OFRZ
customers for the years ended 31 December 2024 and T+ A=1+—HIEFEXAH
2023 by geographical area. INERR PRI ES ©
2024 2023
—E-MEF —E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Revenue from external customers 3 B SME8%& 5 #y K &5
Hong Kong A 19,792 19,124
The PRC o] 119,828 159,399
139,620 178,523
The revenue information above is based on the locations N EWEER TIIREPHEZS

of the customers.

2024 2023
—EME ZEZ=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Hong Kong BB 1,684 1,819
The PRC H 37,116 57,402
38,800 59,221
The non-current assets information above is based on TR EEER YA BEER A
the locations of the assets and excludes financial assets HE -TOEEMEENBEEHIBEE -
and deferred tax assets.
For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, there HE-_ST_WHEN-_ZE-_=F+2AH4
are no single external customers contributed more than =t+—BILFE ITEE-IHILEPF
10% revenue of the Group. HAEFBWSIHEEBBE10% °

Kafelaku Coffee Holding Limited ~ Annual Report 2024 2 03



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI IERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 = F —JF+=-H=+—HIFF&E

8

Revenue and Other Income 8 WHEKHEMUYA

(i) An analysis of revenue during the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

() BE-_FT_MOFER =
TZA=+—BLEFENKRSES

— = — =

— == —,

Yl

FranT
2024 2023
—EIlEF —T—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FET
Revenue from restaurant operations JE 1€ 2 75 U 55 138,601 178,523
Revenue from sales of goods and ~ $5& & & & & &k &
equipment 928 -
Revenue from royalty and HHREEAEBRMES
franchising income Wz o1 -
139,620 178,523
(i) Timing of revenue recognition (i) TR U &R HY B
2024 2023
—F-ME ZT=fF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FiET FET
Timing: e -
— At a point in time —RE R 139,529 178,523
— Over time — R —EREME 91 =
139,620 178,523
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 —F —PJF+ - H=+—HIF/F

8 Revenue and Other Income (Continued)

(iii) Transaction price allocated to the

remaining performance obligation for
contracts with franchisees

The transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations for non-refundable upfront
initial fee and royalty income (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 and
the expected timing of recognising revenue are as
follows:

8 WHEKRkHEMEA @)

(i) PHEEMBEFEANRRED
BEENRXSER

PRE_ZFE_NFR-_ZE_=F
+ - A=+—HOTARENA
HYBRERNRSBTEERE
HREABRA (KRBT DK
B1T) X 5 B A R ER KA
TEERRE R AN -

2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FER FHET

Within one year —F UK 3,090 =
More than one year but not more ~ —F A BT BRI F

than two years 91 =

Two to five years MEERF 236 =

3,417 -

Except for non-refundable upfront initial fee, sales
of goods and equipment, royalty income and pre-
opening training services are for periods of one
year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed.

Bk AT R R &Y AT B 01 46 B A O)

HEEmARE BHAEERE
LAEMBENIREENHR S —

FHRER REFEVBRELE
AIFE15RMRE " EEZEFR
BITAHNRSERTTHRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 = F —JF+=-H=+—HIFF&E

8 Revenue and Other Income (Continued)

8 WaHKRkHEMEA @)

2024 2023
—E-NF —EB-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Other income Hapg A
Interest income on short-term Z HIRTT IR M A B U A

bank deposits 35 306
Interest income from amount due FEUR — R R B R B F A

from a related company B U A 210 -
Interest income on loan receivable  E Y E Z & F B U A - 95
Reversal of impairment loss on BorKEFREEE

loan receivable - 1,883
Government subsidies and incentive BT 85 K 22 Eh (it 3)

(note) 1,621 181
Rent concessions HERE 533 —
Miscellaneous income FEBA 584 453

2,983 2,918

Note: The government incentive represented the amounts granted by the BieE -
Economic Development Bureau of different districts in the PRC to
support the Group’s contribution to local economy with no unfulfilled
conditions or contingencies and are recognised as other income upon

receipts for both years.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by geographic markets is disclosed in note 7.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —JF + = H =+ —HIFFZ

9 Employee Benefits Expense

9 EERAFAX

2024 2023

—E-NF —T=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FET

Wages, salaries and bonuses T #HakiEe 43,073 47,834

Directors’ fees EEH0E 663 726
Pension costs — defined contribution 3R k& AN — R E k&2

plans (note a) (ffzxa) 3,590 3,386

Share-based compensation expense AR A& EL 5 89 1 (B 57 %
(note 38) (Ff7¥38) 15,028 —
62,354 51,946
(a) Pensions - defined contribution plans (a) BiRkE—-RAEMKEE

The Group’s net contributions to pension plans are
mainly for employees in Hong Kong and the PRC.
Summary of the pension plans are as follows:

()  The Group contributes to an MPF Scheme
for its employees in Hong Kong, under which
the Group and each employee each makes
monthly contribution to the scheme at 5% of
the qualifying earmnings of the employee, subject
to a maximum of HK$1,500 (2023: HK$1,500)
per month.

(i)  The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also
contribute to retirement plans for its employees
in the PRC at a percentage of their salaries
in compliance with the requirements of the
respective municipal governments in the PRC.
The municipal governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligation of all
existing and future retired employees of the
Group in the PRC.

RNEE 2 RNEEE /\?"“%EI
ERBBRTEEEMR - RIK
EERTEIBALT

0) $El%ﬁ%§5’§1§§i?&j€§
HHEAEEE  BULAKHE
&Xﬁﬁi’hﬁzﬁ,\z/\é
RULA R 5% 1E R A [T 8

R MEE A HEEE ER A 1,500
BL(ZEZ=ZF :1,500%
JT) °

iy ANEBRFEAHELQRI
EETHBPRETHRFNH
ERERFTEMNEBSHELA
EHe—THDLLARIKRET
SR T RIAEMN
BHRBRARAEENF
EEMNRKEIETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 = F —JF+=-H=+—HIFF&E

9 Employee Benefits Expense (Continued)

(b) Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments of directors for the year ended 31
December 2024 are set out below:

9 EERTABEXZ @
(b) E = H N

BE_FT_MmMF+-_A=t—H
HEE EENMESHINWT

Basic  Employer’s
salaries, contributions
allowances to pension
Fees  and benefits scheme Total
BREe.  BHEHE
we  ERREA EXHR g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Tian Tan TER
Executive directors: HTES:
LIANG Naiming 2Th8h
(appointed on 23 June 2023) (R=Z==FRA-T=HEZf) - 2,43 - 2,043
MA Xiaoping S
(appointed on 2 November 2028)  (R=F==F+—-FZREZf) 108 - - 108
Non-Executive director: *BTES:
CUI Zifeng ET#
(appointed on 2 November 2028)  (RZF==F+—-AFZREZf) 108 - - 108
Independent non-executive BUkYFES:
directors:
WONG Chun Peng Stewart YA
(appointed on 2 November 2023and  (R=E==F+—-AZREZH{
resigned on 30 September 2024) YR -E-MENA=TEEL) 112 - - 112
S0 Ting Kong BiEL
(appointed on 2 November 2023and  (W=F-=F+—-A-REZF
resigned on 21 June 2024) IRZB-MERAZT—HEE) 70 - - 70
LIU Hualyu AEF
(appointed on 2 November 2028  (R=E==F+—-AZREZf) 149 - - 149
CHAN Yan Kin Philip B
(appointed on 30 September 2024)  (RZZ-MENA=THEZ) 3 - - 38
ZHANG Guangfang REH
(appointed on 21 June 2024) (R=Z-mESAZT-EZA) 78 - - 78
663 2,243 - 2,906
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 —F —JF+ - H=+—

9 Employee Benefits Expense (Continued)

(b) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The emoluments of directors for the year ended 31
December 2023 is set out below:

HIFFE

9 EEEMNEXZ @
(b) EEHM @
BzE-—T-—=—4#+-A=+—8
HEE - EEMMLEMT :

Basic Employer’s
salaries,  contributions
allowances to pension
Fees  andbenefits scheme Total
ERES.  RI2HE
Be  EERET EEHH %
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TATL TART
Executive directors: HiTES:
LIANG Naiming PAYLE
(appointed on 23 June 2023) (W=F-=F/ A-t=H
EZf) 29 368 - 397
MA Xiaoping SVE
(appointed on 2 November 2023)  (RZZ2==Ff+—-A-HEZ) 18 - - 18
CHAN Chun Kit Bk
(resigned on 2 November 2023) (R=BZ=%+-A-B#Eff) - 1362 - 1,362
CHAN Josephine Wai Sze REG
(resigned on 2 November 2023) (f&:;ﬁ:zﬁ— AZB&) 72 300 16 388
ZHU Xuegin xEE
(resigned on 2 Novernber 2023) (R=Z==F+-AZA#§{) 72 286 70 428
Non-Executive director: FuTES:
CUI Zifeng ETH#
(appointed on 2 November 2028 (RZF==F+—-AFZREZf) 18 - - 18
CHOW Yiu Pong David AR
(resigned on 2 Noverber 2023) (R=Z-=F+-B_A#Ef) 72 - 4 76
Independent non-executive BUEHTES.
directors:
WONG Chun Peng Stewart YA
(appointed on 2 November 2023 (R-B-=£+-F-DREZfA
and resigned on 30 September 2024) KR -E-NENAZTHET) 2% - - 24
S0 Ting Kong BiEL
(appointed on 2 November 2023 (RZZ-=F+-A-REZF
and resigned on 21 June 2024) RRZZ-MEXAZT-HEL) Pzl - - 24
LIU Hualyu &
(appointed on 2 November 2028)  (W=Z-=F+—-F-REZA) 2% - - 24
LEE Cheung Yuet Horace 26
(resigned on 2 November 2023) (R=Z-=F+-B-AEf) 124 - - 124
CHAN Ming Kei RiEE
(resigned on 2 November 2023) (R=F==F+-B-A§{) 124 - - 124
KAN Sze King Kenneth i)
(resigned on 2 November 2023) (RZB-=F+-F-HEH) 125 - - 125
726 2,316 0 3,132
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 —FE —NF+ - A =+—HIFFZF

9 Employee Benefits Expense (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(f)

210

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Mr. Liang is also the chief executive officer of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as the
chief executive officer.

No director waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year (2023: Nil). No incentive
payment for joining the Group or compensation for
loss of office was paid or payable to any directors
during the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023:
Nil).

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to the directors of
the Company during the year ended 31 December
2024 by a defined contribution plan operated by the
Group in respect of their services as directors of the
Company (2023: Nil). No other retirement benefits
were paid to the directors in respect of their other
services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company or its subsidiary undertakings
(2023: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any

termination benefits during the year ended 31
December 2024 (2023: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Company did not pay any considerations to any
third parties for making available the services of
themselves as directors of the Company (2023: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors
Except as disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements, no other loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings were entered into by the
Company or its subsidiary undertakings in favour
of the directors of the Company, a controlled body
corporate or a connected entity of such directors at
any time during both years.
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(d)

EEHM @)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 —F —NF+ - A =+—HIFFZF

9 Employee Benefits Expense (Continued)
(g9) Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

Save for transactions disclosed elsewhere in the
notes to these consolidated financial statements,
no other significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of

9 EERMNFEX @

BEZ2Z 5

RAEERHEF (B
BEERER

RHREH -

the year or at any time during both years.

(h) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the year ended 31
December 2024 include one director (2023: two
directors) whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments payable
to the remaining four (2023: three) individuals during

the years are as follows:

AfusEHFAL

5%)

()%%F&% ZHHIEHNZ
BEAER
RiIEEHEeMBHREREE

B 5 AT

I & B B A & B
%i‘%ﬁK AERER - AR
i B Bk R )
(RAEFFEEHINM
EFEREREE) NBEARS

HEe—_Z-_WF+-_A=+—H
EFE AEERAUK

mHAL

BRE-EZEF(CT_=F W%
BHENFHFHEEHN L5
e RAFE  BABHTHESR(Z
T ZR) ATREMOT

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FHET

Basic salaries, allowances BEXRFe EZREF
and benefits 3,039 1,610
Discretionary bonuses BB IEAT 140 60

Employer’s contribution to RN ETEME FHZK
pension scheme 136 54
3,315 1,724
The emoluments of the above four (2023: three) B (ZTEZ=F:=%) A

individuals were within the following bands:

THEFMNFATEE :

Number of employees

EE A
2024 2023
—E-mEF —E-=F
Nil — HK$ 1,000,000 = —1,000,000 & T 3 3
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7T —
2,000,000 7% 7T 1 =

No incentive payment for joining the Group or
compensation for loss of office was paid or payable
to any of the five highest paid individuals during the
year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

REZE—

FE) -

TME+A=1—
ALEEE TEMAXEEBNE
PR EEC N ENTRM
B ALTHREN U (ZE==
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SARBREME @

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 —F —PJF+ - H=+—HIF/F

10 Depreciation and Other Operating 10 IFIER HM&EER X

Expenses
2024 2023
—EINEF —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TER FHET
Depreciation weE
— Property, plant and equipment —ME  WERZE 8,610 7,767
- Right-of-use assets —RAEEE 14,299 16,712
22,909 24,479
Other operating expenses include the EM&LRALBENATSE
following items:
Auditor’s remuneration 1% S5 A i B 1,000 1,222
Operating lease payments of premises ¥ ¥ 4& & fH S M
— Contingent rent for premises (note) ~ — ¥ AREE (M) 346 504
Expenses relating to short-term leases E252 HAFE &8 BRIFI 2 147 563
Bad debt written-off 5 22 BR - 237
Advertising and promotion expenses EENMEEE A 2,067 1,290
Building management fee and air AEERERZERE
conditioning charges 6,901 7,232
Laundry and sanitary expenses HEREEEER 2,825 3,119
Legal and professional fee ERREEER 1,714 1,717
Repair and maintenance s L& 973 907
Utility expenses NAZBERX 4,063 4,139
Penalty and related interest in relation €2 nﬁ*"ﬁ =il
to litigation (note 34) FEEEF B ( WE 34) 2,446 4,101
Note: The contingent rent refers to the operating rentals based on pre- M kA RREERREEAS LREHED
determined percentage to the restaurant revenue less minimum rentals HEHSFENEEHRS -

of the respective leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

'.\1
e

For the year ended 31 December 2024 {2 = F —JF+=-H=+—HIFFE

11

12

SRR @

Finance Costs 11 B A
2024 2023
—E-NF —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FHET
Interest expenses on lease liabilites ~ FAE & &EF 25X 5,396 7,257
Interest expenses on debenture BEHHNERAX 8 =
Interest expenses on bank borrowings R 1718 7 F.8 F X - 509
5,404 7,766
Income Tax 12 FRB8%t
2024 2023
—E-MEF —T=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FHET
Current tax B HA B 18
Current year KEFEE 40 -
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBERE (175) =
Deferred tax (note 31) EEHIE (FzE31) 3,466 (427)
Income tax expense (credit) Frisfimsz (%) 3,331 (427)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group has no
assessable profits derived in Hong Kong for the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

BE_T_NWNERN_T-_=F1+_A
STt BLEFE BERGE MR
Rt RBANGHERS BRAKH
WEREBISERBEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ARE MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —F+ = H =+ —HIFFZ

12 Income Tax (Continued) 12 FTEH (@)

According to the law of PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the PRC’s statutory income tax rate is 25%
from 1 January 2008. Except for certain preferential
tax treatment available to one of its subsidiaries of the
Group, the other PRC subsidiaries are subject to income
tax at the rate of 25% for the years ended 31 December
2024 and 2023.

The income tax expense (credit) for the year can be
reconciled to the (loss) profit before taxation per the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

BERPBECEMSHE((DEMEHR
E) RGERMGREEREN B8 =
TZENF—A—BE PEBETEAH
SHERB% REBEE_ZT-_MFR
2=+ A=+—BIEFE"
TEEBR—ZRXWNBRARAIZAEETER
MEFEEIN - Bt BB AR AR
T2 25% BN FTISHL

REGABSEREBSAKEE
PSRRI (IE4%) TSR BiAT (B51R)
FISEMT -

2024 2023
—F-mEFE  ZT=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET

(Loss) profit before taxation BrEAT (E18) = A (45,349) 7,545
Tax calculated at applicable BHEAEERETED

statutory tax rates A (9,524) 982
Tax effect of income not taxable for /B R 2 Ug A B TR 75 57 22

tax purpose (413) (4,359)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible 7~ A] 1% 2 51 % 89 75 75 57 2

for tax purposes 4,825 2,746
Overprovision in prior years BEFERBREEE (175) =
Tax effect of temporary differences 7K HE R & B 2= X8 09 F1 7%

not recognised o 3,806 (1,947)
Tax effect of tax losses not RIERTIEE BTG

recognised T 4,820 1,732
Tax effect of utilised tax losses not ~ KERE B AR ASIEN

recognised M E - (7)
Others Hity (8) 426
Income tax expense (credit) FIefiAx (Ex) 3,331 (427)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7=

SEBBH/EMT @

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 —F —NF+ - A =+—HIFFZF

13

14

Dividend

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment
of any final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2024 (2023: Nil).

(Loss) Earnings Per Share

The calculation of basic (loss) earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on
the following data:

13 K2

EEeERarATERERNEBEEZE-ZF
“WEFE+-_A=+—HIEFENIH
RKEBRBE(ZZE_=F : &) -

14 8K (&8 B
ARATEE ARG FRER (BR) &
R RIBIA TR E

2024 2023
—E-NF —T=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
(Loss) profit (B 18) &= F
(Loss) profit for the year attributable A Q B#EA A E(EF R
to the owners of the Company (E18) = A (48,680) 7,987
2024 2023
—EE -
’000 000
T Fix
Number of Shares i&vig:4=|
Weighted average number of shares ~ FLETE ZARE A (E518)
for the purpose of calculating basic B & htE 3 R
(loss) earnings per share L= 1,236,683 1,105,100

Diluted (loss) earnings per share was the same as basic
(loss) earnings per share as there were no potential
dilutive ordinary shares outstanding for the years ended
31 December 2024 and 20283.

HRBEE-_T _MER_FT_=F
T A=t—"BLFEIEIMFEH
THEEEITARRD  WEkE
B (BR)ANESRERN (BR) &7
R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MR RMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 = F —JF+=-H=+—HIFF&E

15 Property, Plant and Equipment

15 W%  BERRE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor Construction
improvements  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
SRR |
HELE SET AE ERIRE “m
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FHT FAT FET
Cost B
At 1 January 2023 R-Z-=%—A—H 70,228 28,570 278 - 99,076
Additions AE 5,398 53 - - 5,451
Written-off k= (2,819 (5,570) - - (8,389)
Exchange alignment B X R (1,842) (729) ) < (2,578)
At31December2023and  RZZT-=F
1 January 2024 +ZA=+-Bk
“Z-QNFE-A—H 70,965 22,324 M - 93,560
Additions wE - 17 - 9,660 9,677
Exchange alignment RS (2,336) (731) 8) (187) (3,262)
At 31 December 2024 R-B-ME
+-A=1+-8 68,629 21,610 263 9,473 99,975
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI IEIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 {2 = F —JF+=-H=+—HIFFE

15 Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 15 Y% - M E kR E @)

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor  Construction
improvements  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
XA RE
BEXE &S nE EEIR aE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THEL TAL THEL THAL

Accumulated depreciation Z3t 478 KR {E
and impairment

At 1 January 2023 RZE-_=F—HA—H 52,642 27,381 259 - 80,282
Charge for the year FREHR 6,835 913 19 - 7,767
Impairment loss BEBE 563 - - - 563
Written back on written-off 4 #55% # 1 (2,819) (5,570) - = (8,389)
Exchange alignment B 530 (1,402) (704) U - (2,113

At 31 December 2023and  RZ-ZE-=F

1 January 2024 +ZA=+-HBk

—EZNE-A—H 55,819 22,020 271 - 78,110
Charge for the year FRFR 8,362 248 - - 8,610
Impairment loss BEERE 796 69 - - 865
Exchange alignment R (1,620) (727) 8) - (2,355)
At 31 December 2024 i

+-A=1t-H 63,357 21,610 263 - 85,230
Net book value BHFE
At 31 December 2024 R-BE-_NF

+-A=1t-H 5,272 - - 9,473 14,745

At 31 December 2023 W-E-=F+-R
S—1[ 15,146 304 = = 15,450
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

g =

e MBwRNE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —F+ = H =+ —HIFFZ

15 Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

218

Impairment assessment on property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, as
restaurants in Hong Kong and the PRC underperformed
the management of the Group concluded there was an
indication for impairment and conducted impairment
assessment on recoverable amounts of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets of relevant
restaurants. The Group estimated the recoverable
amount of these restaurants, each represents an
individual CGU, to which the asset belongs when it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually.

The recoverable amount of each CGU is determined
based on value-in-use calculations by preparing cash
flow projections of the relevant CGU derived from
the most recent financial forecast approved by the
management covering the remaining lease term. The
cash flows are discounted using pre-tax discount rates
in the range of 11.21% to 12.85% (2023: 12.03% to
13.71%).

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of a
CGU exceeded its recoverable amount, therefore, an
impairment loss of HK$5,588,000 (2023: HK$3,536,000)
and HK$865,000 (2023: HK$563,000) which was
allocated to the assets including right-of-use assets
and property, plant and equipment within the CGU
on a pro rata basis, was recognised in profit or loss in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

ROBHERER AR T _NFFERE

156 Y5 - BERRE @)

W% BERREUAREAEE
B H R E R
BE-T-MER-T-SF+-7
ST HALEFE BRBBERTEE
BRARE AEBEEEESHNG
wAABRENSR - WERREENYE -
BERSBEMEREEENT KD S
TR N o E LB
WEEENERAT  AKEHERE
BRI E S BET T /A BRE
BEEMBRERREELENM -

EReEABEMMATKE 2B IIRE
AEEFE  FEAREEBHREE
E%UMﬁém;%M'%ﬂm%@
%Lt/ﬁ/@%flﬁéﬁﬁfﬁﬁE’J%ﬁé&ﬁﬂ‘“
BRASH - BERERHAIME RN
T11.21%E12.85% (=T - =4
12.08% £ 13.71%) WS E NI TRLIR -

RZE-_WF+=—_A=+—8 ' —1{#
ReEALEMNZEMEBLETKE
©% - Ht - 5,588,000 T (ZE=-=
i 3,536,000 1) M 865,000/%& 7T (=

T — = 4 : 563,00078 7T) Z R EE B
E?@zttfﬁﬂ TEREERESELAEMNANZE
é(@%@ﬁﬁﬁéé?&%% R 5= K 7%
#) TR ABaREMEEKE
qﬂﬁ?ﬁ@\ﬁaﬁo



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 —F —NF+ - A =+—HIFFZF

156 Y% - BERRE @)

15 Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Significant management judgement is required in
determining the appropriate key assumptions, including
revenue growth rate, gross profit margin and discount
rate, to be applied in the value-in-use calculation. The
change in any of these key assumptions would affect
the recoverable amount of the CGUs and could result in
additional impairment loss.

If the projected revenue applied to the cash flow
projections for the CGUs had been 6% (2023: 6%)
lower than the management’s estimates, the Group
would have had to recognise further impairment loss of
approximately HK$4,186,000 (2023: HK$1,105,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2024.

If the gross profit margin applied to the cash flow
projections for the CGUs had been 2% (2023: 2%)
lower than the management’s estimates, the Group
would have had to recognise further impairment loss of
approximately HK$4,458,000 (2023: HK$894,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2024.

If the pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections for the CGUs had been 1.5% higher than the
management’s estimates, the Group would have had
to recognise further impairment loss of approximately
HK$815,000 (2023: HK$332,000) for the year ended 31
December 2024.

REEEREEFERB 2 EERMEE
BR(BEEFEERE ENXLER
K BEREFIELERAE - EM
ZEERBRZEBLLBETERSEL
By 2 A W m & R RT BE B BRR SR
BE1E -

WRSELENRERERANERL
FEHREREEEMMETT R 6% (=
T=F 1 6%)  AEBEBEREBEEC
E_WNE+_A=+—BILEE#E—
2 HERORL 1B B 18 494,186,000 7T (=
T =4 :1,105,000/87T) °

HWERARBESEAEMNRES RETEA
MEMERERENHAR 2% (=
T_=F 1 2%) AEEEREBEE_FT
M+ -_A=+—HALFEE—F
tE 52 R 1B B5 48 49 4,458,000/ 7T (— &
— =4 : 894,000/ 7T) °

HWERANRBESEAEMNRES RETEA
BB AT ARG 3R R &R E 1B [E A 1 5138 A0
15%  AEEBRBE_ZT_HF
T A=+ BLFEE—SERIR
BEEI8 48150008 L (T - =4
332,000/ 7C) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # =

FomE+ = A+ — AL EE

2=
— =

16 Right-of-use Assets 16 FHAEEE
Premises
LES
HK$’000
FET
Cost 5%
At 1 January 2023 R-—E-—=#—H—Q 134,217
Exchange alignment ME H, 58 B (3,401)
Additions NE 2,783
Written-off 88 (6,893)
At 31 December 2023 and RZE-_=F+_-_A=+—H8xK
1 January 2024 —E-pF—H7—H 126,706
Exchange alignment ME W, B (3,906)
Additions NE 826
Early termination of leases REXRIEHEE (1,656)
Modification [E 10
At 31 December 2024 RZZEZWME+-_A=+—H 121,980
Accumulated depreciation HEFIFERFBE
and impairment
At 1 January 2023 RZE-_=9—H—H 71,370
Charge for the year FNER 16,712
Impairment loss A E 1R 3,536
Written-off gt (6,800)
Exchange alignment bE W, B (1,883)
At 31 December 2023 and RZBZ=F+"A=+—8HK
1 January 2024 —E-mE—A—A 82,035
Charge for the year FRETIE 14,299
Impairment loss EEE 5,588
Early termination of leases REHKILAE (1,516)
Exchange alignment bE H 2 (3,381)
At 31 December 2024 RZZE_WNFE+_A=+—8 97,925
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2024 RZZE-_HWNFE+_A=+—8 24,055
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+=-A=+—8 43,771
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7=

e EERRE @

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —JF + = H =+ —HIFFZ

16 Right-of-use Assets (Continued)

The Group has obtained the right to use properties as
its office and restaurants through lease agreements. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing
pUrposes.

The leases typically run for an initial period of 2 to 10
years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning
and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.
Total cash outflow for the leases was HK$25,027,000
(2023: HK$27,412,000) for the year ended 31 December
2024.

The amounts recognised in profit or loss for the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 in relation to leases

16 FAEEE @)

AEEEERAHERZESKYER
EERAEREENED HEWHZ
WEREEMRY -HEEETFIE
REREFELR

HEBRENVSHEBRE2E10F - —
gmE ZK%@%&BE%IJEZK%@%L
ErEAAEEE - HERES
—WME+-_A=+— Eutﬁr;émﬁéﬁ
W %8 525,027,000 T (ZE ==
F 1 27,412,000787T) °

B Z-_NMER T -_=ZF+_A
_+ ALtFE REZARBEER

are as follows: RS EEMT -

2024 2023
—EZNF —T_=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FET
Expenses relating to short-term leases £242 HAF0 & B B #9552 147 563

Operating lease payments of premises ) 3 4% & 0 & {1 7k
— Contingent rent for premises —MEIAES 346 504
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MBwRNE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 —F —PJF+ - H=+—HIF/F

17 Intangible Assets

7 BEEE

Cooperation

Goodwill Trademarks Contracts Total
kS [} BEEN #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FATT FAET FHET FHET
Cost AR
At 1 January 2023 RZEZ=%
—HA—H 15,332 10,905 3,153 29,390
Written-off 5 - - (3,089) (3,089)
Exchange alignment i AR 412) (293) (64) (769)
At 31 December 2023and R-ZT-=%F
1 January 2024 +=-—A=+—H
kZT-F
—HA—H 14,920 10,612 - 25,5632
Exchange alignment i 5 A (490) (348) = (838)
At 31 December 2024 MR-
+-—A=+—H 14,430 10,264 - 24,694
Accumulated amortisation Rt # §5 & R &
and impairment
At 1 January 2023 RZEZ=%
—HA—H 15,332 10,905 3,158 29,390
Written back on written-off  Jif $ 5 it 2] — - (3,089) (3,089)
Exchange alignment i 5 (412) (293) (64) (769)
At 31 December 2023and R-ZT-=4F
1 January 2024 +=—R=+—H
RZFEZNF
—H—H 14,920 10,612 - 25,532
Exchange alignment i i (490) (348) - (838)
At 31 December 2024 R F
+=-A=+—H 14,430 10,264 - 24,694
Carrying amount FESE
At 31 December 2024 i It S
+=-—A=+—H - - - -
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=%
+-A=+—H = = = =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MR RMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 {2 = F —JF+=-H=+—HIFFE
18 Financial Instruments by Category 8 WERETHERMTE
2024 2023
—E-E ZE=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Financial assets at amortised cost REHERAFIERNESREE
Trade receivables 2 5 WA 1,438 1,713
Deposits and other receivables e hkE T‘@JEHQ A 26,100 15,578
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 10,571 16,880
38,109 34,171
Financial liabilities at amortised RBERTIENEREE
cost
Trade payables =) ANE 9,170 10,439
Other payables H b B 5RIR 42,434 40,010
Amount due to a non-controlling R — R IEIE HXHQ%E’J RIE
shareholder 1,188 1,228
Debenture BEREE 2,000 -
Lease liabilities HEAaR 53,104 73,986
107,896 125,663
19 Inventories 19 78
2024 2023
—ENE —ET=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
Food and beverages B m &8 7,862 9,785
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MR RMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 = F —JF+=-H=+—HIFF&E

20 Trade Receivables

20 EZEWRRIEA

2024 2023

—ENF —E-=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHT FAET

Trade receivables B 5 R’ SRIR 1,588 1,912
Less: Allowance for ECL B TRHEEEERE (150) (199)
1,438 1,713

Trade receivables are mainly receivables from financial
institutions in relation to the payment by credit cards and
mobile payment by customers. The credit period granted
by the Group to its customers is within 30 days.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on
invoice date (net of allowance for ECL) is as follows:

BIRBERREIBZLREREFLIAER
R RB B & B B WROR -
AEERMEEFPEROMNEEHNI0A
A o

REZBHZIINE S RIER (kR
BHEEEERER) REIHTOT

2024 2023

—E-mE —E=-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
0 to 30 days 0&30H 1,246 1,488
31 to 60 days 31260H 51 67
61 to 90 days 61E90H 20 17
Over 90 days Q0B E 121 141
1,438 1,713
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —JF + = H =+ —HIFFZ

20 Trade Receivables (Continued)

The Group applies simplified approach to measuring
ECLs which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for
all trade receivables.

Movements in allowance for ECL recognised in respect
of trade receivables are as follows:

20 E 5 EWRFIE @)

AEBRABLET ATERREERS
B RZAEAMAE S ERFIRER
EHIFR AR -

REZERUKBCEINAREES
BEEEINT

2024 2023
—E-NF ZT=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET

As at 1 January n—HA—H 199 269
Loss allowance (reversed) recognised 4 [ F 57, 1Y J&5 18 B (B¢ @)

for the year (49) 36
Loss allowance written-off S Y B B R - (101)
Exchange alignment P 5 & - (5)
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H 150 199

Due to the short-term nature of the trade receivables,
their carrying amounts approximate to their fair values
and are denominated in HK$ or RMB, which are the
functional currencies of the respective group entities. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
the carrying value of trade receivables mentioned above.
The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

RE SR ENEREEFER H
REHEREQAAREMRE  ABTHA
RE (REEEERNEER)E-
RBEBHEENEAGEERR S
PP EEFENREE A& E
WERFEAERBIERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A MRS ERARMEE (3

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 —F —PJF+ - H=+—HIF/F

21 Deposits, Prepayments and Other 21 & - EARAREREMERR
Receivables I

2024 2023
—E-MEF —T=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Rental deposits %ﬂ eEE 13,660 13,925
Utility deposits INZE & 444 291
Amount due from a related company & Ug — & B B A =) 218
(note 36) (P 7E36) 11,539 -
Other deposits, prepayments and Hiixe - BIREREM
other receivables FEWRIA 4,424 2,508
Less: Allowance for ECL B B EEEERE (1,114) -
28,953 16,724
Less: Non-current portion — B FERNVHAER 5 —
rental deposits Heke (6,669) (6,922)
Non-current portion — SEENERZ o — W B 2 -
prepayment for acquisition = K 5 2 TR
of property, plant and A
equipment (2,452) -
Current portion BN ER &6 19,832 9,802
The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments and & BANREREMERKENER
other receivables approximate their fair values and are HEEEQAAERSE UBTHAR
denominated in HK$ or RMB, which are the functional B EEERNNEER)ZTE -
currencies of the respective group entities.
Movements in allowance for ECL recognised in respect REMERAEEERNBHEES
of other receivables are as follows: BREZSHOT :
2024 2023
—E-MEF —E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
As at 1 January Rn—H—H - =
Loss allowance recognised TR EERE 1,135 o
Exchange alignment BE 5, 38 B (21) -
As at 31 December B+—A=+—H 1,114 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MR RMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 {2 = F —JF+=-H=+—HIFFE

22 Amounts Due from/(to) Non-Controlling

22 B (FEf) FFEER R R

Shareholders
2024 2023
—E-mE  —T-=fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FAET
Amount due from a non-controlling &Y — 42 FE 2 PR A% B8 7K 18
shareholder
Interest-free (note i) % 8 (HF5ED) 2,143 2,215
Fixed rate of 3% per annum (note i) [ FFI = 3E (K zEii) 6,555 6,778
8,698 8,993
Less: Allowance for impairment AR EEERE (i)
loss (note iv) (8,698) (8,993)
Amount due to a non-controlling JE 5t — 2 FEE R AR 3R 3R IE
shareholder (note iii) (B #iii) 1,188 1,228

Notes:

(0] Secured by a non-controlling shareholder’s entire equity interest in a
subsidiary, Yaoliang (Shanghai) Food Co., Ltd.*, (“Yaoliang”) and has
no fixed repayment term.

(i) Secured by a non-controlling shareholder’s entire equity interest in
Yaoliang and repayable in December 2021. No interest income was
recognised for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

(iii) Unsecured, interest free and has no fixed repayment term.

(iv)  The Directors of the Company are of the opinion that the credit risk of
the amount due from a non-controlling shareholder was considered
to be high due to default events occurred. Having considered the
recoverable amount of security and the liquidity condition of the non-
controlling shareholder, the Group recognised full impairment loss.

* For identification purpose only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI IERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 = F —JF+=-H=+—HIFF&E

23 Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other 23 B REREESZEYRHMRE

Cash Flow Information nEER
(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: () RERREEEYEES -
2024 2023
—E-NF —T=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Cash at banks RITIRE 10,560 16,864
Cash on hand FHERE 11 16
Cash and cash equivalents in RERE MBI ER KR
the consolidated statement FEREeMERD
of financial position and in the RERREEED
consolidated statement of
cash flows 10,571 16,880
Maximum exposure to credit risk  fx = 15 B AR 10,560 16,864
Majority of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents AEBKREFEH»RE &iﬂé ZEM
are denominated in HK$ or RMB, which are the LL%TE?ZAE% (s EEEREY
functional currencies of the respective group ﬁ%%’iﬁé}) BRER ‘fETTEEiJ«/{l H
entities. Cash at banks earns interest at floating MITFERF R B EERFEF
rates based on daily bank deposit rates. ,ﬁvﬁHX FE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SAMBREME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 —F —NF+ - A =+—HIFFZF

23 Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other 23 W& RBEEEZEBYREMERE S

Cash Flow Information (Continued) nEER @

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) METEFELEEBENLHER:
financing activities:
The table below details changes in the Group’s TREBVWNAEBEREFHE
liabilities from financing activities, including both EE BEsE8 (BERE LIRS
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from B - ERMBEERDIEARN
financing activities are liabilities for which cash flow % BERAEENRGEREMNER
was, or future cash flow will be, classified in the DERRMEETHAEHESREDN
Group’s consolidated cash flow statement as cash Iﬁﬁumgjﬂixfﬁﬁmg °

flows from financing activities.

Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
RITIER HE&BE RS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FEL FEL
At 1 January 2023 R-ZBE-_=%—-HF—H 20,776 100,825 121,601
Changes from financing cash RERSHREEH !
flows:
Repayment of bank borrowings & B R 1T 5k (20,776) - (20,776)
Capital element of lease ENHEERESHNER
rentals paid Ho - (19,195) (19,195)
Interest element of lease rentals 2T ER L KT 2
paid 5 - (7,150) (7,150)
Borrowing costs paid EANEEENEZN (509) - (509)
Total changes from financing F‘ﬁﬁfﬁi/ 22 EY
cash flows ks (21,285) (26,345) (47,630)
Other changes: Hih# s .
Increase in leases liabilities FRTLFHEEM
from entering into new EEMNEERRE
leases during the year 2N - 2,783 2,783
Deconsolidation of BUBiRE ABR— RIS
a subsidiary yNC] - (8,202 (8,202)
Adjustment on early RELIIHAENRAR
termination of leases - (98) (98)
Interest expenses FERE 509 7,257 7,766
Exchange alignment BEE 5, o B - (2,234) (2,234)
Total other changes HiZehBa 509 (494) 15
At 31 December 2023 R=-B==
+=ZA=+-—H - 73,986 73,986
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MR RMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 = F —JF+=-H=+—HIFF&E

23 Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other
Cash Flow Information (Continued)

(o) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities: (Continued)

23 RERFASEFYRHEHMEAS
REE R @)
m)%gﬁﬁméiﬁ%mﬂﬁr

Lease
Debenture liabilities Total
EREH HEaE e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FEx TR

At 1 January 2024 R-ZE-_MF—-HA—H - 73,986 73,986
Changes from financing MERSREZEH !

cash flows:
Proceeds from issuance of BITEREBMENRE

debenture 2,000 - 2,000
Capital element of lease ENEEHEHNER

rentals paid B - (19,138) (19,138)
Interest element of lease ERNHEERSHNTE

rentals paid B - (5,396) (5,396)
Total changes from financing REREREZLEH

cash flows B 2,000 (24,534) (22,534)
Other changes: Hitt 28 :
Increase in leases liabilities FRFIZFHEM

from entering into new EENHEARE

leases during the year Yl - 826 826
Adjustment on early termination 2R R IFFAE R

of leases - (151) (151)
Rent concessions HERE - (533) (533)
Adjustment on modification BETHENRAE

of lease - 10 10
Interest expenses FERY - 5,396 5,396
Exchange alignment BE 5 AR - (1,896) (1,896)
Total other changes Hin S 8B 5 - 3,652 3,652
At 31 December 2024 R-ZZE-NF

+=-A=+-AH 2,000 53,104 55,104
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

AN
I%T\l:l

ISR MR (@)

= — i —

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 —F —NF+ - A =+—HIFFZF

23 Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other
Cash Flow Information (Continued)

(c) Gain on deconsolidation of a subsidiary

Orient Century Limited (“OC”), an indirectly wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, operated a
Thai cuisine restaurant in Mongkok, Hong Kong
and a Chinese restaurant in Olympian City, Hong
Kong which ceased operation on 25 August 2022
and 26 September 2022, respectively. For further
information on the closure of the operation of these
two restaurants, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 21 September 2022 and 26
September 2022.

OC received a winding-up petition dated 24
July 2023 filed by a creditor, Fung Sau Kuen, as
petitioner against OC in the Court of First Instance
of Hong Kong in the sum of approximately
HK$178,000.

OC received a sealed order dated 27 September
2023 for winding-up (the “Winding-up Order”)
made by the Court of First Instance of Hong Kong,
pursuant to which OC was ordered to be wound
up on the basis of its failure to settle the judgement
debt in the sum of approximately HK$178,000.
Messrs Wong Sun Keung and Tsui Mei Yuk Janice
were appointed as joint and several liquidators of
OC on 27 September 2023 by the Court of First
Instance of Hong Kong.

By virtue of the Winding-up Order, OC ceased to
be controlled by the Company with effect from
27 September 2023. Accordingly, the Directors
believed that OC did not meet the control
assessment under HKFRS 10, hence, the Group
had deconsolidated OC on 27 September 2023
and a gain on deconsolidation of a subsidiary of
approximately HK$17,821,000 was credited to
profit or loss during the year ended 31 December
20283.

23 BERBESEB/BYRHEMRS
REE R @)

© MBHE AR — R ELD

2Z K=
ARr—FHEEEZENB R AR
ER AR ([RE]) RE B
ARE —RHRAREEERR
EBEBRBHLLE M NEE
ZEBEERAES R ==
NA-Z+RBEBEZ-ZZE-_—-FhA
“tHAEELEZE - BREBEEZW
HEEMNE—TER  BFLEAEAL
ABRA_ZS-_—_FNALA=-1+—
AR E-_—_FALA=-+/"BH

D -

BB ¥ (B B A Fung Sau Kuen
(EREZEFA)RZZT_=F+
AZTHBMBEBRDEESTH
BRI ZERER BN A
178,000/ ¢ °

BHMEREEERDEERBEEE
HHEHEAE-_ET_=FhNA_++
BREmaS ([FRS]) @&
It BEEAREBEHREEREY
178,000 8 LMW ML /BB - =
BAEERBEELLTR - _=
FRA-T+HRESTBRDEE
ZAEEBBHHERRERFHEA -

BEBES BEBEA_T=-_=F
NAZ+ LB RBTBRZARQRIE
Hl - At - BEERBRBAFE(E
B TSRS RSB 1058 21 EHIFF
W AEBER-_ZE_=ZFAN
AZ+tBEEHKRE AREE -
MEUEG A AR —HEBRAAZ
W25 4917,821,0008 Tt 2 RE 2
=+ A=+—8ILHF
Eat AB% -

Kafelaku Coffee Holding Limited ~ Annual Report 2024 231



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI IERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 = F —JF+=-H=+—HIFF&E

23 Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other 23 R KRB ESEEBYRHMERE S
Cash Flow Information (Continued) REER @
(c) Gain on deconsolidation of a subsidiary (c) BUEHZEAR—BEHEB LR
(Continued) Z W E (@)
Details of gain on deconsolidation of OC for the year TXDHEE_ZT_=F+=_H
ended 31 December 2023 were as follows: =+ —BLEFEZEHEES AR

B 2 W as FEIE
HK$’000
FET

Deposits, prepayment and e BAFEREM

other receivables FE W RIR 3,105
Cash and cash equivalents HekHask {E ) 67
Amounts due to related companies JE 1 A A B R IE 617)
Trade payables 2 5 RT3 (400)
Accruals and other payables EETERA R ﬁ & 5 IR (11,368)
Provision for reinstatement costs BEX AR E (324)
Lease liabilities HEBE (8,202)
Amounts due to group companies ADE JENGIE/ S (15,541)
Net liabilities disposed of ERE8EFE (33,280)
Release of other reserve Hh FEH 7 E (82)
Current accounts with OC EABRES 7 1T RER P 15,541
Gain on deconsolidation of a subsidiary BB A ABR—MEMB AR Z W (17,821)
Net cash outflow arising from BUBGRE ARRBELE 2R S

deconsolidation of OC R %E 67
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; 2

= —
=

WE+ —H=+—HirFE

24 Share Capital 24 BRI
Number of Nominal value
Ordinary of Ordinary
shares share
ZREREE EBEREE
HK$’'000
FET
Authorised: EIE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 73‘/\ T _—F—H—QH1"
as at 1 January 2023, —ETZ=F+=HA
31 December 2023, 1 January 2024 =+—H - —Z -4
and 31 December 2024 —A—HBER-ZZT-mF
+-_A=1+—H&®
EEO0.01 BTz E®AX  2,000,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHE:
As at 1 January 2023, RZE-_=F—H—H-
31 December 2023 and —E-=F
1 January 2024 +—A=+—HK
—“E-WmFE—AF—H 1,105,100,000 11,051
Issue of shares upon placing (note (i) P BC & B 21T R (D
(B EEG) 194,650,000 1,947
Issue of shares upon employee share 1R 1E1E & K7 2 E) 51 2|
award scheme (note (ii)) BT (B &E (i) 110,500,000 1,105
As at 31 December 2024 R-ZZE_PUF
+-A=1+— 1,410,250,000 14,103

Notes:

(i)

On 14 May 2024, the Company and the placing agent entered into the
placing agreement, pursuant to which the Company had conditionally
agreed to place through the placing agent of up to 221,020,000
placing Shares (the “Placing” and the “Placing Shares”, respectively)
to not less than six placees at the HK$0.144 per Placing Shares. The
Placing was completed on 7 June 2024. An aggregate of 194,650,000
Placing Shares had been placed to not less than six placees at
HK$0.144 per Placing Shares pursuant to the terms and conditions
of the placing agreement. The gross proceeds and the net proceeds
(after deduction of the relevant expenses and fees) from the Placing
amounted to approximately HK$28,030,000 and HK$27,098,000,
respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company allotted
110,500,000 ordinary shares to the share scheme trust for the
purpose of granting awarded shares to the participants under the
share award schemes (note 38).

(i)

RZZE-_MFRA+TNA  AAFHEER
BIVEEHE Bt NARBAKHER
EEBEEREUSRESRMN0.1448 T
M DR X & & B A BL & £ % 221,020,000
REERD (DR A BRESEI N IRER
#) REFHEER - -_MENALART
X o & £194,650,000 i Bl & Ak 0 B AR IB B &
W& 2 R RAR A B REE IR 15 0.144 75
TEEFRADRANBEBA - BBEEFHRIE

BRI HIEFE (KNBRERFAI RER)
2 BI#) A 28,030,000 7T &% 27,098,000 7 7T

BE-_Z-_NE+=-A=+—HLEFE K
A 7] g % 110,500,000 A% & 38 A% F A% 10 &t I
25t EEBRBRGOREHTEM2HERT
SREIRR 1D (FT5E38) °

Kafelaku Coffee Holding Limited ~Annual Report 2024 233



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IERRMEE @)

25 Trade Payables

==

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 — & —

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice

date is as follows:

—WEFZA=1—HIFFE

25 BEZENRIE
BREZHHENNE S EMNFEERER
DU -

2024 2023

—F-NME  ZT=F

HK$°000 HK$’000

T FTAT

0 to 30 days 0Z30H 4,879 4,956
31 to 60 days 31Z60H 248 1,841
61 to 90 days 61290 H 113 1,181
Over 90 days 9B MK E 3,930 2,461
9,170 10,439

The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate
their fair values and are denominated in HK$ or RMB,
which are the functional currencies of the respective

group entities.

26 Accruals and Other payables

7N
H O XYAETIARB (REEEER
ML E™) FHE

26 BiFBAREMENKE

2024 2023

—ENE T =F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHExT FHET

Accrued expenses EFtER 16,218 15,839

Amount due to a former director B —BATEEFHIE 8,513 8,488

Amounts due to directors (note 36)  FE{FE = 218 (K 5£36) 252 2,052

Interest payable JE AT H) & 520 512

Other payables H b B 5RI8 17,331 15,586

Temporary receipts e 467 814

Provision for litigation (note 34) A (MHFE34) 15,818 13,372
Total accruals and other payables JEFtER R EM

JE 5 R IR 4R 5 59,119 56,663

All of the accruals and other payables are expected to be
settled or recognised as income within one year or are

repayable on demand.

The carrying amounts of accruals and other payables
approximate their fair values and are denominated in
HK$ or RMB, which are the functional currencies of the

respective group entities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SAMBREME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 —F —NF+ - A =+—HIFFZF

27 Contract Liabilities 27 6 EE

The Group has recognised the following revenue-related AEECHABUTRSEESHNEE -
contract liabilities.

2024 2023
—E-MEF —E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Current JLE)
Restaurant operations M= 19,096 18,389
Sale of goods and equipment HEBEmR&RE 2,893 =
Royalty and franchising income FiEEAERNBEE KA 197 —
22,186 18,389
Non-current FERE)
Royalty and franchising income HHEEAERNBEE K 327 —
22,513 18,389
As at 1 January 2023, the Group had contract of RZEZ=F—HA—H X&BEEFH
liabilities of HK$16,903,000 for restaurant operations. R EBHE N B ESER 16,903,000
BT °
Contract liabilities represent the advance payments AEHABEREEFPEMNRIE - MiAEBAR
from customers, while the underlying services are not ﬂ‘kﬁf‘_ =y E&_ Z_=F+=-A
yet provided as at 31 December 2024 and 2023. The —t—BrRARE# -2HNBEEHS
contract liabilities are expected to be recognised as R—FERNER F%HSUK&EQ?\?/\ B %R
income within one year and are classified as current MNERNDERREBE -
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SARBREME @

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 —FE —NF+ - A =+—HIFFZF

é??ﬁﬁaf

RBEE-_ZF_NFEFR-_FT_=F+=
A=ZT-—RLEFENAHNBEGERD

27 Contract Liabilities (Continued)

Movement in the contract liabilities balances during the
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 is as follows:

ZEIT -
2024 2023
—E_MEF SRS
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Restaurant operations JBIEETE
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HMEREE 18,389 16,903
Exchange alignment PEE 5 5 B (626) (468)
Revenue recognised during the year F R B fERUR S (17,063) (7,323)
Consideration received from BEREFRE  TBEFNAN
customers, excluding amounts B R AR =M FRIE
recognised as revenue during
the year 18,396 9,277
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—HHEREHEE 19,096 18,389
Sale of goods and equipment HEEmRRE
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—H®WEEE - -
Exchange alignment b 5 & (57) -
Consideration received from BEREFRE -
customers, excluding amounts TEEFANEHERA
recognised as revenue during e 25 B9 30 IE
the year 2,950 -
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—HKHEAEE 2,893 -
Royalty and franchising income KR E RN E N
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HBMEREE - -
Exchange alignment (EREIEEES (10) =
Consideration received from BEREFRE -
customers, excluding amounts TEEFNEHRRA
recognised as revenue during W 25 #9518
the year 534 =
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—BHKHEE 524 -
22,513 18,389
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI IEIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 {2 = F —JF+=-H=+—HIFFE

28 Debenture 28 ERER
2024 2023
—EMEF —E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Carrying amount under non-current  JERBIBEAE TH
liabilities REeRE 2,000 -
On 12 November 2024, the Company has issued RZFEZMFE+—HA+=ZH ARQ
a secured debenture with principal amount of BT $$§§Z%2,000,000%7EE’]§TK
HK$2,000,000, with interest rate at 3% per annum HES  BRFENEI%EE - /,\tifi
payable annually in arrear and maturity period of 7 years - WYEETAREFEBIZE=
from the date of issuance (i.e. 12 November 2031), F+—A+=R)3H - Fﬁ?ﬂmiﬁi“i@ °
unless early redeemed.
29 Lease Liabilities 20 HESE
As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the lease liabilities RZE_NERZZTE-=F+=ZH
were repayable as follows: =+—H HEaFEEENT:
2024 2023
—E-ME —T=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAT
Within 1 year —F QX 20,141 21,962
After 1 year but within 2 years iR —FERFA 10,458 17,567
After 2 years but within 5 years HBMEERFA 18,799 28,619
After 5 years HiBAF 3,706 5,838
32,963 52,024
53,104 73,986
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MR RMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 = F —JF+=-H=+—HIFF&E

30 Provision for Reinstatement Costs

30 IEEMAREE

2024 2023

—E-NF —EC=F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET FHET

At 1 January n—HA—H 5,031 5,425

Deconsolidation of a subsidiary BUBGRA ABR—REB AR

(note 23(c)) (Fff5E 23(c)) - (324)
Exchange alignment ME H, A (83) (70)

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 4,948 5,031
Less: Non-current portion R, - FERNERER (2,448) (3,081)
Current portion BNHREE 2 2,500 1,950

Provision for reinstatement costs is

the costs to be incurred for the reinstatement of the
properties used by the Group for its operations upon
expiration of the relevant leases. The Group expected

recognised for

that the present value of the costs approximates their

undiscounted costs.

31 Deferred Tax Assets

(a) The analysis of deferred tax assets is as

31 EEBREEE

BEERARBIRASBEREEEE
IMREEEREMAYEMELDN
BT R - REB R ZEFRAD
RERERRIRAAEE

() EEBBEEESHTAT

follows:
2024 2023
—E-QmE T =F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
Deferred tax assets R IBEE - 3,582
- 3,582

The movements in deferred tax

the current and prior years, without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the

same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI IEIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 {2 = F —JF+=-H=+—HIFFE

31 Deferred Tax Assets (Continued) 31 Eﬁﬁlﬁﬁé &)
(@) The analysis of deferred tax assets is as () EXEHEBEEESMWMD © (8)
follows: (Continued)
Deferred tax RAETR IR
(Accelerated)
Decelerated
tax
depreciation Tax losses Others Total
(M3R) W&
BERE BEER Hitr R

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TATL TR

At 1 January 2023 R-E-=%-A—H (46) 3,250 40 3,244
Exchange alignment 5 AR (6) (84) 1 (89)
Credited (charged) to profitor loss 3t A (B &) BER
and other comprehensive income  Eft 2 AN 867 (413) (27) 427
At 31 December 2023 and RZEZ=%+=A
1 January 2024 =+-Bk
“E-MF-A-H 815 2,753 14 3,582
Exchange alignment BN R (24) (92) - (116)
Charged to profitor lossand other BB BREREMZE
comprehensive income W (791) (2,661) (14) (3,466)
At 31 December 2024 RZZ-ME+=ZA
=+-A - - - -
(b) Deferred tax assets have not been (b) ARFIATIEE BRIEL
recognised in respect of the following MEBEE
items:
2024 2023
—E-ME —EF-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHET
Tax losses MIBERE 188,314 157,739
Tax losses of approximately HK$58,841,000 BERTHEZ AEEBRNP H
(2023: HK$53,979,000) arising from the Group’s CBEERELENE IR )gg 18 4
restaurant business in the PRC will expire in the 58,841,000/ T (ZZE - =4 :
fifth year commencing from the year the loss 53,979,000/ 7T) B B EL B F
incurred whereas tax losses of approximately ERIFFREDNH mMAEER
HK$129,473,000 (2023: HK$103,760,000) arising EHRCMBEATIEANHIESR
from the Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong do not #9129,473,000/8 0 (ZE =% :
expire under the current tax legislation. 108,760,000 7T ) I T~ & F| &f -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 —FE —NF+ - A =+—HIFFZF

32

33

34

Major Non-Cash Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
entered into new arrangements in respect of office
premises and restaurants. Right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities of approximately HK$826,000 (2023:
HK$2,783,000) and HK$826,000 (2023: HK$2,783,000),
respectively were recognised at the commencement of
the leases.

Reserves

Other reserves

Other reserves of the Group represent (i) the amount
arising from a reorganisation of the Company in
connection with the listing; (i) wavier of amounts due to
a non-controlling shareholder, related party, and ultimate
controlling shareholders; (iii) the difference between the
acquisition of additional equity interests from the then
non-controlling shareholders and the nominal value of the
shares of an existing subsidiary of the Group issued in
exchange therefore prior to the listing of the Company’s
shares; and (iv) the difference between the consideration
received on disposal of the entire equity interests of the
subsidiaries and the carrying amounts of the net liabilities
of the subsidiaries.

Litigation and Contingent Liabilities

Except for the case set out below, the Group did not
have other significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2024 and up to the date of this report.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 6 January 2020, Excel Linker (Hong Kong)
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company received a Writ of Summons together with
an indorsement of claim (the “Indorsement”) dated
31 December 2019 by Foxhill Investments Limited as
plaintiff (the “Plaintiff’) against Excel Linker (Hong Kong)
Limited as defendant (the “Defendant”).
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32

33

34

FEHFRERS

BE-_ZE_-_NMF+_-_A=+—HILHF
B AEBRBAMERBEEITLH
T - FRAEEEREEBES AL
826,000 7T (— T — = 4 : 2,783,000
B IT) & 826,000 L (Z T == :
2,783,000 7T) ERNHEER IR TER ©

(R

Hitb &
AEBEBEMFEHERONKERNARE LT
M ERAELNEE - (i) REEMIE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7=

e EERRE @

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —JF + = H =+ —HIFFZ

34 Litigation and Contingent Liabilities 34 7

(Continued)

It was stated in the Indorsement that the Plaintiff’s claim
against the Defendant is in relation to the breach of the
Tenancy Agreement dated 18 April 2018 (the “Tenancy
Agreement”) for failing and/or refusing to pay the rent
and/or management fees and/or government rates in
respect of the Premises located at Units 201-202 on
the Second Floor of Infinitus Plaza, No.199 Des Voeux
Road, Central, Hong Kong since 1 October 2019. For
further details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 6 January 2020. The Company further
received a statement of claim dated 17 January 2020
from the Plaintiff.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had made a
provision on the rent, management fee, penalty and
related interest in relation to the aforesaid litigation of
approximately HK$15,818,000 (2023: HK$13,372,000)
in the consolidated financial statements.

Up to the date of this report, the case is still in
proceedings. On the basis of currently available
information, the director of the Company considered that
the legal proceedings are unlikely to result in any other
material outflow of economic benefits from the Group.

&&I\\\/\F (i*

BEEFEL BEAHHEE ARE
ZHRNDEBERBHEA-_T—NF
MA+NBzHEH=Z ((HEHE]) -
IﬁiAa:% hWE+A—BREX
R/ RERRUINB AN B EEHE
EM%%%@EF —IB201E202F
ZUEIANEE R/ REEEB RS
Efm-E—FHBEFHLBEARFA
%%_?_EE ARBZRE K
NEIE— S BREREABHA-T=
TE—A++HNBZREH-

RZBE-_WMF+—_A=+—H &%
EERGAEVBHRERMEER LMFA
2He  EEE IR LABER SR
BB #915,818,0008 L (ZE =4 :
13,372,000 7T) °

BHEAREBH  FAMKRESR - BE
WMEAERMNER  ARFESRA
FREFATEEHIAEELREME
E R ERN M ©

35 Commitments 35 H&iE
2024 2023
—E_E —T=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Capital expenditure in respect of the &t 145( ﬁﬁ%% WEREED
acquisition of property, plant and TR B RNEGRE VB W
equipment contracted for but not RAGTIRBENERFAX
provided in the consolidated financial
statements 298 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 —ZF —/NF+ = =+—HiF

FE

36 Related Party Transactions 36 BHLERS
(@) Eﬁi%ﬂ?‘ﬁ W3

(a) Transactions with related parties
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following

REFEPBHREAEREEIN

AEBRERFERBAYRIATE

significant transactions with its related parties during UNTERRS
the years:
2024 2023
—EZNF —T_=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FAET
Rental expenses paid to Richfield A= # ¥ E AR A & 32+
Develop Limited (Note i) MeRZ (FaED) - 336
Management fee paid to MIEE AR AR
Bright Creator Limited (Note i) EEE (i) - 720
Management fee paid to Kafelaku F’ﬁﬂ? FR 90 W [ B 422 AR A PR
Coffee International Holding &) (138 BR o Bk B PR 1)
Limited (“Kafelaku Coffee XNEBRE (M)
International”) (Note ii) 360 -
Purchase of material and m) & N 5 FR O BF & fh
equipment from Guangzhou BRAR (TEMIEER])
Kafelaku Coffee Food Company B & ## & % &
Limited* (“Guangzhou Kafelaku”) (Fff#Eii)
(Note ii) 721 =
Interest income from Guangzhou 2K & & )1 5t FR 89 F1] &
Kafelaku (Note ii) WA (B &Eii) 210 -
Notes: Mzt -

[0] Richfield Develop Limited and Bright Creator Limited are
related companies controlled by Mr. Chan Chun Kit, a former
director and ex-controlling shareholder of the Company. Rental
expenses and management fee paid to the related companies
were charged at term mutually agreed by both parties.

(ii) Kafelaku Coffee International and Guangzhou Kafelaku are
related companies controlled by Mr. Liang, an executive director
and controlling shareholder of the Company. Management fee
and cost of material paid and interest income received to the
related companies were charged at term mutually agreed by
both parties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MR RMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 {2 = F —JF+=-H=+—HIFFE

36 Related Party Transactions (Continued)
(b) Balances with related parties

36 B AR S @)

(b) SRBAEETT AV ER

()  Amount due from a related company

M

JE U — ] B B 1 B FR0E

Maximum Maximum
amount amount
outstanding outstanding
during the year 2024 during the year 2023
FRER ERN&R
FEBEE —3-mE  KEERE C—T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL TR TEL TR
Guangzhou Kafelaku* EMFER" 11,539 10,425 = =

* For identification purpose only.

Amount due from a related company is
unsecured, with interest rate at 3.95% (2023:
Nil) per annum and repayable on demand.

Y ERES

JE U — I BE B A R B A
TR 12 3. 95%(}3:5?
) 2 FEFRF B AL EK
Elkf'!_c’

(i)  Amounts due to directors (i) JERTEEFIE

2024 2023

a1 3 —B=F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FER TET

Mr. Liang RESE - 2,016

Mr. MA Xiaoping BNFELE 126 18

Mr. Cui Zifeng EFRESE 126 18

252 2,052
Amounts due to directors are unsecured, ENEETRHEAEEIE ¢

interest free and repayable on demand.

BIBRERERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI IERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 = F —JF+=-H=+—HIFF&E

36 Related Party Transactions (Continued) 36 BEA RS (@)
(c) Key management compensation (c) TEEE NS FH M
The emoluments of executive directors and WTESKFTEEEEKENG
members of key management were as follows: BN
2024 2023
—EF-ME ZT=fF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHExT FET
Directors’ fee =¥k 216 191
Basic salaries, allowances BEXRFE EZREF
and benefits 5,064 3,058
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAT 140 60
Employer’s contribution to BARESETEEEHK
pension scheme 68 118
5,488 3,427
Total remuneration is included in “Employee benefits FEBEIENEERMNAS] (R
expenses” (see note 9). BIEEQ) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MR RMET @
For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 —F —NF+ - A =+—HIFFZF

37 Statement of Financial Position of the 37 A& A KRR

Company
(@) Company-level statement of financial () AREEMBRRE
position
2024 2023
—2-pmNFE —F_=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FER FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Plant and equipment 5 R % 3
Interests in subsidiaries Bt A Rl 2,323 11,217
2,326 11,217
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other TE 5 5RIR K B FE UL
receivables IR o1 39
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEYD 579 388
670 427
Total assets EESR 2,996 11,644
EQUITY e
Share capital [ EN 24 14,103 11,051
Reserve i 37(b) (32,800) (5,666)
Total equity R (18,697) 5,385
Current liabilities mEEE
Other payables H b pE A /%UE\ 5,684 4,207
Amounts due to directors EREER 252 2,052
Amount due to a subsidiary e —FE WE RIFIAE 37(c) 13,757 =
19,693 6,259
Non-current liability FREBEE
Debenture BEREE 2,000 =
Total liabilities =Rk 21,693 6,259
Total equity and liabilities EERkaEEEE 2,996 11,644
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (19,023) (5,832)
These financial statements were approved and R-ZEBE_RAF=A= —I— -
authorised for issue by the Board of directors on 31 SERERFENEZS ﬁ7f % R
March 2025 and are signed by: xUWAHATALE %
LIANG Naiming MA Xiaoping
R BNE
Director Director
EE EE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI IERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 = F —JF+=-H=+—HIFF&E

37 Statement of Financial Position of the 37 A2 7B R T (@)

Company (Continued)
(b) Movements in components of reserve of (b) AR EHEARNEE
the Company
Shares held
for share Share-based
Share award  compensation Other Accumulated
premium scheme reserve reserve losses Total
AROKE

THERN R
RO EE Rkt BMEE EtREE  2HER @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TiEm TiEm TiET TR TR

Balanceat 1 January 2023 ~ R-Z-=F

—A—-BMEsH 118,902 = = 8 (95,510) 23,470
Loss and total comprehensive  EREER2EF X
expense for the year &% - - - = (29,136) (29,136)

Balance at 31 December 2023 WZE==%#+-A

and 1 January 2024 =+-Bk
“TImE
-A-BMhEs 118,902 - - 18 (124,646) (5,666)
Loss and total comprehensve  EREERZAF X
expense for the year &% - - - - (66,208) (66,208)
Issue of shares, net of Bl - Mk
transaction costs (note 24) R AR (it 24) 25,151 - - - - 25,151

Issue of shares for share award  513%17 B2 BT 2347
scheme and recognition of {3 REETRM (R
shared-based compensation ~ AEBMEERR

expense - (1,105) 15,028 - - 13,923
Balance at 31 December 204 R-Z-ME+=R
=+-AmEs 144,053 (1,105 15028 78 (190854  (32,800)
(c) Amount due to a subsidiary (c) BN —EHERRNKE
The amount is unsecured, interest free and ZAREAEERT 2R ARKE
repayable on demand. KEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —JF + = H =+ —HIFFZ

37 Statement of Financial Position of the 37 K2 BB EARNE @
Company (Continued)

d) EEMBQRFE
RBEBHRNONETENBRARIFE

(d) Particulars of principal subsidiaries
Details of the principal subsidiaries at the end of the

reporting period are as follows:

mF :

Place of Effective
incorporation Particulars of interest held
and operation and issued share by the
Name type of legal entity capital Company Principal activities
AL A L IR AR i B LN Dig
£8 RieERERY ERTRAFE ERER IEXH
2024 2023
ZEomE CRC
Solarday Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited HK$20,000 100% 100% Ceased business
liability company
HEREFR AR B% BBREMAR 20,0007 100% 100% (FlL&E
Great Virtue Investment Hong Kong, limited HK$10,000 100% 100% Ceased business
Limited liability company
EmBREERLA B - BREARR 10,000487T 100% 100% fFIL&iE
Great Virtue (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, limited HK$10,000 100% 100% Ceased business
Investment Limited liability company
Bm(ER)REBRAR BB AREEAR 10,0007 100% 100% f{2IL&E
Excel Linker (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, limited HK$1 100% 100% Ceased business
Limited liability company
&8 (Z8) ER DA & BREAAR 1AL 100% 100% f{2IL&i8
Smart Best (Asia) Limited Hong Kong, limited HK$100 100% 100%  Ordering of food
liability company ingredient for the
Group
&GN ARRF B8 BBREMAF 1008 100% 100% AAEEERM
Tiena Company Limited Hong Kong, limited HK$1 100% 100% Restaurant operation
liability company
RERBERDA % BREAAR 1AL 100% 100% EEZE
MEE ORI BHBERAF  The PRC, limited RMB23,530,000 100% 100% Restaurant operation
liability company
MERE (R ERERAR  FE AR¥23530,0007t 100% 100% BiE4E
BREELNR
FHER (R ESEHR The PRC, limited RMB13,000,000 100% 100% Restaurant operation
BRAHE liability company
MER CRI) B EHK hE - AR¥13,0000007C 100% 100% EiEEE
ARAT BREERR
MEBZE ORI BR The PRC, limited HK$5,000,000 100% 100% Ceased business
BRAF liability company
MERZE (RI) ER g 5,000,000 %75 100% 100% fFIL&iE

BRAT

BEREERA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ARE MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —F+ = H =+ —HIFFZ

37 Statement of Financial Position of the 37 K2 A ERNE @
Company (Continued)

(d) Particulars of principal subsidiaries (d) EEHEQAIFE @

(Continued)

Place of Effective
incorporation Particulars of interest held
and operation and issued share by the
Name type of legal entity capital Company Principal activities
LT AR L R A o B NN g3
£ RieERER ERITRAFE BRER TEER
2024 2023
SoRE CEoCE
MEZE ORYI) B# The PRC, limited HK$500,000 100% 100% Ceased business
ARAT liability company
MEZRE ORI B HE 500,000/ T 100% 100% @IL&EE
BRAHE BEREERA
LEERRERBRAR The PRC, limited RMB3,750,000 70%  70% Ceased business
liability company
HEERRRERAR HE AR®3750000C  70% 70% fEILEE
BREARA
Yaoliang The PRGC, limited RMB5,500,000 70%  70% Ceased business
liability company
BR FE - AR®¥5500000C  70% 70% fFILEE
BREERT
Jiangsu Kafelaku Holding The PRC, limited RMB29,046,123 100% - Coffee operations
Co., Ltd.* liability company
(“Jiangsu Kafelaku”)
TEHBERER AR HE AR#29,046,1237C  100% - UIBEER
(IR BREERT

* Incorporated during the year ended 31 December 2024

# For identification purpose only.

The above table lists out the subsidiaries of the
Group which, in the opinion of the Directors,
principally affect the results of the Group for the year
or form a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group at the end of the year.

To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt capital in issue
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

248 wRmMEHERARAT — T MEEERS

REE =T -—WF+=-A=+—HIF
E ML T

¢ 5 -

NEMBRARADENREZTERS
HUAGEAFEREEER N
FEIGAEERNFEREESR
BENEXRILI MK -

EZEgRRMINEMMEBRRF
BEIBREREITE

RAF R RRANFZAAAREA
E P~ R A B TIEAMERSAR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #2 —F —JF + = H =+ —HIFFZ

37 Statement of Financial Position of the 37 &2 TR R T @)
Company (Continued)

FEERE S

TRINEANEEE ERIFERAE
HOFEEWMBRARFB - AT
2B BEENBEMRD

(e) Non-controlling interests (e)
The following table shows details of non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group that has a material
non-controlling interests. The summarised financial

information presented below represents the A HATNEHE -
amounts before any inter-company elimination.
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Yaoliang and its subsidiary BERENEBAT TER FHET
Proportion of ownership interest  3E 12 B% & 25 AT 5 8 5 1
held by non-controlling interests B 2kt 30% 30%
Current assets MBEE - -
Non-current assets EMBEE - =
Current liabilities mBEE (8,398) (8,680)
Non-current liabilities ERBBE - S
Net liabilities BEFE (8,398) (8,680)
Non-controlling interests FEFE R fE A (2,520) (2,604)
Revenue Wz - -
Loss for the year FAEE - (25)
Total comprehensive income EHEA LR 281 211
Total comprehensive income FEVERR M 2 B 4G
attributable to non-controlling ZHEWALREE
interests 84 63

Cash flows from operating
activities

Cash flows from investing
activities

Cash flows from financing
activities

REEBEHMBREN

B

REZBABREN

el

BEEBABRER

fein
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 —FE —NF+ - A =+—HIFFZF

38 Share-Based Payment Transactions

On 24 May 2024 (the “Adoption Date”), the Company
terminated the share option scheme adopted on 16 June
2016 (the “2016 Share Option Scheme”) and replaced
by a new share scheme (the “Share Scheme”). The
purpose of the Share Scheme is to enable the Company
to continue to grant options to eligible participants which
have been included the full-time employees and directors
(other than independent non-executive directors) of the
holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or associated
companies of the Company and the independent
contractors, consultants, advisors, suppliers and
business partners. The Share Scheme aims to motivate
and incentivise the eligible participants (the “Grantees”)
to continuously contribute to the operation, development
and long-term growth of the Group. There were no
options outstanding under the 2016 Share Option
Scheme up to the date of its termination. The Share
Scheme became effective on 24 May 2024 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for
10 years from Adoption Date.

Pursuant to the Share Scheme, the maximum number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted
when aggregated with shares subject to any other share
schemes, shall not exceed 10% of the shares in issue
of the Company at its Adoption Date (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit”). The Company may seek approval
by its shareholders in general meeting to refresh the
Scheme Mandate Limit by excluding options previously
granted under the Share Scheme (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised). No options
may be granted under the Share Scheme or any other
schemes of the Company if this will result in this limit
being exceeded. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant
in the Share Scheme within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of shares in excess of this
limit is subject to the shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 —F —NF+ - A =+—HIFFZF

38

39

Share-Based Payment Transactions
(Continued)

Share options or awards granted to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company,
or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive directors of
the Company.

Grant of Awards Pursuant to Share Scheme
Pursuant to the Share Scheme adopted by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 24
May 2024, the Company has on 29 August 2024 allotted
an aggregate of 110,500,000 shares (the “Awarded
Shares”) and granted to the employee participants. The
Awarded Shares shall be vested on 31 January 2025
and subjected to the grantees meeting the performance
targets to be determined by the Group from time to time.
As at 31 December 2024, the Awarded Shares were
held by the trustee of the Share Scheme.

The fair value of the Awarded Shares amounting to
approximately HK$18,785,000 was determined with
reference to the market prices of the Company’s shares
at the grant date. During the year ended 31 December
2024, the Group recognised the shared-based
compensation expense relating to the Share Scheme of
approximately HK$15,028,000 in profit or loss.

Event After the Reporting Period

On 3 January 2025, Jiangsu Kafelaku, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
construction contract with Jiangsu Xuncai Construction
Engineering Co., Ltd.* (T & A X EZ TR ER A R])
(the “Contractor”), an independent third party, pursuant
to which the Contractor has conditionally agreed to
carry out the construction of the in-house civet coffee
production base on the land located at the east side
of Yingbin Avenue, Coastal Economic Zone and south
side of Haiwang Road of Dongtai City, Jiangsu Province,
the PRC at the consideration of RMB66,088,580 (the
“Construction Contract”). Further details are set out in
the Company’s announcements dated 3 January 2025,
28 January 2025, 17 February 2025 and 31 March 2025,
and the Company’s Circular dated 31 March 2025.

* For identification purpose only.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BEELE
Results E
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t-HLEE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
“E-NE —F-=# -—E--F —T--F —T-TF
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TET THT THET THET AT
Revenue Wz 139,620 178,523 135,552 274,566 236,397
(Loss) profit before taxation ~ Ex i Al (B518) % 7l (45,349) 7,545 (46,217)  (101,289) (40,499)
Income tax (expense) credit  Fi{5% (B K% (3,331) 427 3,123 1,150 74
(Loss) profit for the year FN(EE) B (48,680) 7,972 (43,094)  (100,138) (40,425)
Attributable to: AT AL FELG
Owners of the Company AREHEEA (48,680) 7,987 (41,352) (92,430) (39,466)
Non-controling interests g - (15) (1,742) (7,708) (959)

(48,680) 7072 (43004) (100,138  (40,425)

Assets, Liabilities and Non-Controlling &% - 88 RFERER
Interests

Year ended 31 December
BEt-HA=1t-HLEE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
“EZNE —B-=f —B--F —“E--F —T-%F

HK$000  HK$000  HK$O00  HK$000  HK$'000
TER TAT TARL TAEL TAET

Total assets BELS 87,624 108,008 141,924 200,796 325364
Total liabilities BERE (152,042)  (165,736)  (208,586)  (245234)  (270,646)
Net (iabilties) assets F(BE)EE (64,418) (57,728) (66,662) (44,438) 54,718
Non-controlling interests RS 4,782 4,942 5,062 3,682 (4,105)
Equity attributable to ARRHEANEGES

the owners of the Company (59,636) (52,786) (61,600) (40,756) 50,613

The summary above does not form part of the audited E#BEZE S THEK KL FXGE P BIRED
consolidated financial statements. — B e
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